
  

 

 

 

 

 
 

Bob Fox, Mayor City Council Chambers 

Dan Presson, Ward 1 City Hall  

Shelly Moore, Ward 2 401 Independence Street 

Vacant, Ward 3 

Robbie Guard, Ward 4 Agenda Documents, Video 

Ryan Essex, Ward 5 Minutes, and Other Information  

Stacy Kinder, Ward 6 www.cityofcape.org/citycouncil  

 

August 19, 2019 

5:00 PM 
   

Invocation 

Pastor Timothy Lee of The Apostolic Promise Church in Cape Girardeau 
 

Pledge of Allegiance 
 

Study Session 

No action will be taken during the study session 
 

Presentations 

• Silver Springs II Apartments Presentation 
 

Communications/Reports 

• City Council 

• Staff 
 

Items for Discussion 

• Planning and Zoning Commission Report 

• Appearances regarding items not listed on the agenda 

This is an opportunity for the City Council to listen to comments regarding items not listed on the 

agenda. The Mayor may refer any matter brought up to the City Council to the City Manager if action is 

needed. Individuals who wish to make comments must first be recognized by the Mayor or Mayor Pro 

Tem. Each speaker is allowed 5 minutes. The timer will buzz at the end of the speaker’s time. 

• Agenda review 

 

 

 

CITY OF CAPE GIRARDEAU, MISSOURI 

City Council Agenda 

http://www.cityofcape.org/citycouncil


 

 

Regular Session 

Call to Order/Roll Call 

Adoption of the Agenda 

Appearances regarding Items Listed on the Agenda 

 

Consent Agenda 

 

1. Approval of the August 5, 2019, City Council regular session and closed session minutes, and of the 

August 12, 2019, City Council special meeting minutes.  

2. BILL NO. 19-118, an Ordinance authorizing the City Manager to execute a State Block Grant 

Agreement with the Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission to fund the promotion of 

scheduled passenger air service at the Cape Girardeau Regional Airport. Second and Third 

Readings.  

3. BILL NO. 19-119, an Ordinance approving the Record Plat of LaFont's First Amended.  Second and 

Third Readings.  

4. BILL NO. 19-120, an Ordinance approving the Record Plat of Sabella's First Subdivision.  Second 

and Third Readings.  

5. BILL NO 19-123., an Ordinance providing for the levying of the annual City revenue tax; public 

health tax; Special Business District No. 2 tax; for the fiscal year ending on the 30th day of June, 

2020. Second and Third Readings. 

6. BILL NO. 19-124, an Ordinance amending Schedule F of Section 26-247 of the City Code, by 

establishing no parking anytime on the north side of Jim Drury Way. Second and Third Readings.  

7. BILL NO. 19-125, an Ordinance amending Schedule A of Section 26-228 of the City Code,  by 

repealing certain speed limits on South West End Boulevard and establishing new speed limits on 

South West End Boulevard, in the City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri.  Second and Third Readings. 

Individuals who wish to make comments regarding items listed on the agenda must first be 

recognized by the Mayor or Mayor Pro Tem. Each speaker is allowed 5 minutes and must stand at the 

public microphone and state his/her name and address for the record. The timer will buzz at the end 

of the speaker's time. 

The Consent Agenda is a meeting method to make City Council meetings more efficient and 

meaningful to the members of the audience. All matters listed within the Consent Agenda have been 

distributed to each member of the Cape Girardeau City Council for reading and study, are considered 

to be routine, and will be enacted by one motion of the council with no separate discussion. Staff 

recommends approval of the Consent Agenda. If separate discussion is desired, that item may be 

removed from the Consent Agenda and placed on the Regular Agenda by request of a member of the 

City Council. 



 

 

8. BILL NO. 19-121, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute an Agreement with 

Koehler Engineering and Land Surveying, Inc., for general engineering and infrastructure projects, 

in the City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri.  Reading and Passage. 

9. BILL NO. 19-122, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute an Agreement with Bowen 

Engineering and Land Surveying, Inc., for general engineering and infrastructure projects, in the 

City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri.  Reading and Passage. 

10. Bill No. 19-128 A Resolution authorizing application to the Edward Byrne Memorial Justice 

Assistance Grant (JAG) Program FY 2019 Local Solicitation, and authorizing the City Manager to 

execute all necessary grant program documents. Reading and Passage.  

11. BILL NO. 19-134, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute an Agreement with M-B 

Companies, Inc., for snow removal equipment at the Cape Girardeau Regional Airport, in the City 

of Cape Girardeau, Missouri.  Reading and Passage.  

12. BILL NO. 19-135, a Resolution of support for the proposal from MACO Development Company, 

LLC, for the Silver Springs II Apartments housing development.  Reading and Passage.  

13. Bill No. 19- 136, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to submit a letter of recommendation 

to the United States Department of Transportation for SkyWest Airlines to provide air carrier 

service under the Essential Air Service Program at the Cape Girardeau Regional Airport. Reading 

and Passage. 

 

Items Removed from Consent Agenda       

 

New Ordinances               

14. Bill No 19-129, an Ordinance amending Chapter 7 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cape 

Girardeau, Missouri, regarding Automatic Pool Covers. First Reading  

15. Bill No 19-130, an Ordinance amending Chapter 7 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of   Cape 

Girardeau, Missouri, regarding Storm Shelters. First Reading.   

16. Bill NO. 19-131, an Ordinance of the City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri, extending the imposition of 

the present one-quarter of one percent Capital Improvement Sales Tax from its expiration date of 

December 31, 2019 to December 31, 2034.  First Reading.   

17. BILL NO. 19-132, an Ordinance authorizing the Mayor to execute a Special Warranty Deed to Jerry 

Collins and Brenda Collins,  for property located at 3207 Bernice Street, in the City of Cape 

Girardeau, Missouri.  First Reading. 

18. BILL NO. 19-133, an Ordinance accepting a Temporary Construction Easement from Terry and 

Cynthia McDowell, for the Hopper Road Box Culvert Project, in the City of Cape Girardeau, 

Missouri.  First Reading.  



 

 

Other Business  

19. Consideration of Appeal of Denial for Liquor License Renewal Application for Ricky Lynn Werner, 

d/b/a River Valley Banquet Center, LLC 631 South Sprigg Street  

20. Appointment of Ward 3 unexpired term 

 

Meeting Adjournment 

Closed Session 

The City Council of the City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri, may, as a part of a study session or regular or 

special City Council meeting, vote to hold a closed session to discuss issues listed in RSMo. Section 

610.021, including but not limited to: legal actions, causes of legal action or litigation, leasing, 

purchasing or sale of real estate, hiring, firing, disciplining, personnel issues, or confidential or 

privileged communications with its attorneys. 

 • Legal actions and litigation, confidential communications with legal counsel, and property 

transactions, pursuant to RSMo. Sections 610.021(1), and (2). 

  

Memos 
  

 • Appointment to the Convention & Visitors Bureau Executive Board  

 • Appointment to the Golf Course Advisory Board. 

 

Advisory Board Minutes 

 



Staff: 
Agenda:

Bruce Taylor, Deputy City Clerk
8/19/2019

AGENDA REPORT 
Cape Girardeau City Council

SUBJECT

Approval of the August 5, 2019, City Council regular session and closed session minutes, and of the August 12,
2019, City Council special meeting minutes.

ATTACHMENTS:
Name: Description:

2019.08.05_RegularsessionMinutes.pdf Minutes 2019-08-05 regular session

2019.08.05_ClosedSessionMinutes.pdf Minutes 2019-08-05 closed session

2019.08.12_SpecialMeetingMinutes.pdf Minutes 2019-08-12 special meeting

http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22370&ItemID=7038
http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22387&ItemID=7038
http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22388&ItemID=7038


  

 Regular August 5,  2019 KK-261 
 

STUDY SESSION – August 5, 2019 
 

NO ACTION TAKEN DURING THE STUDY SESSION  
 

The Cape Girardeau City Council held a study session at the Cape Girardeau City Hall on 

Monday, August 5, 2019, starting at 5:00 p.m. with Mayor Bob Fox presiding and Council 

Members Ryan Essex, Robbie Guard, Stacy Kinder, Shelly Moore, and Dan Presson present.  
 

 
REGULAR SESSION – August 5, 2019 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 

The Cape Girardeau City Council convened in regular session at the Cape Girardeau City Hall on 

Monday, August 5, 2019, at 6:25 p.m., with Mayor Bob Fox presiding and Council Members 

Ryan Essex, Robbie Guard, Stacy Kinder, Shelly Moore, and Dan Presson present. 
 
ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA   
 

A Motion was made by Dan Presson, Seconded by Shelly Moore, to approve and adopt the 

Agenda. 

Motion passed. 6-0. Ayes: Essex, Fox, Guard, Kinder, Moore, Presson. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
A public hearing regarding the levying of the annual City revenue tax; public health tax; Special 

Business District No. 2 tax; for the fiscal year ending on the 30th day of June, 2020. 

    

Mayor Bob Fox opened the Public Hearing. 

There being no appearances, the Public Hearing was closed. 

 

APPEARANCES 

None. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 

Approval of the July 15, 2019, City Council regular session  minutes.  

 

BILL NO. 19-112, an Ordinance approving the Record Plat of Southeast Health West Campus.  

Second and Third Readings.  

 

BILL NO. 19-113, an Ordinance approving the Record Plat of U-Haul of Cape Girardeau 

Subdivision.  Second and Third Readings.  

 

BILL NO. 19-117, a Resolution of support for the proposal from Starview Development, LLC, 

for the Star Vue Apartments workforce housing development.  Reading and Passage.  

 

BILL NO. 19-126, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute Performance Guarantee 

Agreements with GMA Development, LLC, for Shadow Wood Villas, in the City of Cape 

Girardeau, Missouri.  Reading and Passage. 

DRAFT



  

 Regular August 5,  2019 KK-262 
 

BILL NO. 19-127, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a License and Indemnity 

Agreement with Marquette Tower Property, LLC,  for installation of a sign at 338 Broadway 

Street, in the City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri. Reading and Passage.  

 

Acceptance of Improvements and Authorize Final Payment to Reinhold Electric, for Project No. 

15-077A-1, Runway 10-28 Lighting Rehabilitation at the Cape Girardeau Regional Airport.  

 

Acceptance of the Improvements and Authorize Final Payment to Penzel Construction, Inc. for 

the improvements to the Capaha Ball Field in the City of Cape Girardeau. 

 

Acceptance of streetlight improvements serving Deerfield Estates Phase 1 and the approval of the 

Release of Performance Guarantee Agreement for Deerfield Estates Phase 1. 

 

Reschedule the second City Council Meeting in October from October 21, 2019, to October 17, 

2019.  

 

A Motion was made by Ryan Essex, Seconded by Robbie Guard,  to approve and adopt. 

Motion passed. 6-0. Ayes: Essex, Fox, Guard, Kinder, Moore, Presson. 

 

BILL NO. 19-112 will be Ordinance No. 5212; BILL NO. 19-113 will be Ordinance No. 5213; 

BILL NO. 19-117 will be Resolution No. 3274; BILL NO. 19-126 will be Resolution No. 3275; 

and BILL NO. 19-127 will be Resolution No. 3276.  

 
NEW ORDINANCES 
 
BILL NO. 19-118, an Ordinance authorizing the City Manager to execute a State Block Grant 

Agreement with the Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission to fund the promotion 

of scheduled passenger air service at the Cape Girardeau Regional Airport. First Reading.  

 

Council Member Dan Presson asked about the number of enplanements. Airport Manager Bruce 

Loy replied that for this year starting in January there have been 6,688 enplanements, and 1,289 

of those were made in July. 

 

A Motion was made by Dan Presson, Seconded by Robbie Guard, to approve. 

Motion passed. 6-0. Ayes: Essex, Fox, Guard, Kinder, Moore, Presson. 

 

BILL NO. 19-119, an Ordinance approving the Record Plat of LaFont's First Amended. First 

Reading.  

 

A Motion was made by Robbie Guard, Seconded by Dan Presson, to approve. 

Motion passed. 6-0. Ayes: Essex, Fox, Guard, Kinder, Moore, Presson. 

 

BILL NO. 19-120, an Ordinance approving the Record Plat of Sabella's First Subdivision.  First 

Reading.  

 

A Motion was made by Ryan Essex, Seconded by Dan Presson, to approve. 

Motion passed. 6-0. Ayes: Essex, Fox, Guard, Kinder, Moore, Presson. 

 

BILL NO 19-123, an Ordinance providing for the levying of the annual City revenue tax; public 

health tax; Special Business District No. 2 tax; for the fiscal year ending on the 30th day of June, 

2020. First Reading. 

DRAFT



  

 Regular August 5,  2019 KK-263 
 

A Motion was made by Robbie Guard, Seconded by Dan Presson, to approve. 

Motion passed. 6-0. Ayes: Essex, Fox, Guard, Kinder, Moore, Presson. 

 

BILL NO. 19-124, an Ordinance amending Schedule F of Section 26-247 of the City Code, by 

establishing no parking anytime on the north side of Jim Drury Way. First Reading. 
 

A Motion was made by Ryan Essex, Seconded by Stacy Kinder, to approve. 

Motion passed. 6-0. Ayes: Essex, Fox, Guard, Kinder, Moore, Presson. 

 

BILL NO. 19-125, an Ordinance amending Schedule A of Section 26-228 of the City Code,  by 

repealing certain speed limits on South West End Boulevard and establishing new speed limits on 

South West End Boulevard, in the City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri.  First Reading.  
 

A Motion was made by Robbie Guard, Seconded by Dan Presson, to approve. 

Motion passed. 6-0. Ayes: Essex, Fox, Guard, Kinder, Moore, Presson. 

 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

Visit with applicants to fill the unexpired term as Council member for Ward 3 
 

During the Study Session this evening,, the City Council spoke with nine Ward 3 citizens who 

had applied to fill the unexpired term for Ward 3 Council Member. The City Council selected 

three of those individuals from whom they will make an appointment at the next meeting.  
 

A Motion was made by Robbie Guard, Seconded by Stacy Kinder, to name Tom Roy, Christina 

Mershon, and Nathaniel Thomas as finalists to be considered for appointment at the August 19, 

2019 Council Meeting.  

Motion passed. 6-0. Ayes: Essex, Fox, Guard, Kinder, Moore, Presson. 

 

Setting a Special Council Meeting on Monday, August 12, 2019, at 11:45 a.m., to canvass the 

August 6, 2019, Special Municipal Election results and to declare the results.  
 

A Motion was made by Ryan Essex, Seconded by Robbie Guard, to approve. 

Motion passed. 6-0. Ayes: Essex, Fox, Guard, Kinder, Moore, Presson. 

 

MEETING ADJOURNMENT 
 

A Motion was made by Ryan Essex, Seconded by Stacy Kinder  to adjourn from regular session 

and to convene to closed session for legal actions and litigation, confidential communications 

with legal counsel, property transactions, and personnel, pursuant to RSMo. Sections 610.021(1), 

(2), and (3). 

Motion passed. 6-0. Ayes: Essex, Fox, Guard, Kinder, Moore, Presson. 
 

The Regular Session ended at 6:34 p.m. 

 

_____________________________ 

Bob Fox, Mayor 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Bruce Taylor, Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

DRAFT



  

 Special August 12, 2019 KK-667 

 

SPECIAL SESSION – August 12, 2019 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

The Cape Girardeau City Council convened in special session on Monday, August 12, 2019, at 

11:45 a.m., with Mayor Bob Fox presiding and Council Members Ryan Essex, Robbie Guard, 

Shelly Moore, and Dan Presson present. Stacy Kinder was absent. 

 

ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

 

A Motion was made by Ryan Essex, Seconded by Robbie Guard, to approve and adopt the 

Agenda. 

Motion passed. 5-0. Ayes: Essex, Fox, Guard, Moore, Presson. Absent: Kinder 

 

CANVASS THE RETURNS AND DECLARE THE RESULTS OF THE AUGUST 6, 2019, 

SPECIAL MUNICIPAL ELECTION 

 

Mayor Fox stated that the August 6, 2019, election results had been received from County Clerk 

Kara Clark Summers. Pursuant to Section 7.09(a) of the City Charter, the City Council canvassed 

the returns and declared the results of the August 6, 2019, Special Municipal Election as follows: 
 

CAPE GIRARDEAU CITY QUESTION 

(extension of Capital Improvements sales tax) 

Yes – 1,072 

No – 401 
 

A Motion was made by Robbie Guard, Seconded by Dan Presson,  to approve. 

Motion passed. 5-0. Ayes: Essex, Fox, Guard, Moore, Presson. Absent: Kinder 

 

MEETING ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no further business, the Cape Girardeau City Council special session ended at  

11:47 a.m. 
 

A Motion was made by Robbie Guard, Seconded by Ryan Essex, to adjourn. 

Motion passed. 5-0. Ayes: Essex, Fox, Guard, Moore, Presson. Absent: Kinder 

 

____________________________________ 

Bob Fox, Mayor 

 

 

 

____________________________ 

Bruce Taylor, Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DRAFT



Staff: 
Agenda:

Bruce W. Loy, Airport Manager
8/5/2019

AGENDA REPORT 
Cape Girardeau City Council 19-176

SUBJECT

State Block Grant Agreement with the Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission to fund Air Service
Promotion and Marketing and a Catchment Leakage Study at the Cape Girardeau Regional Airport, in the City
of Cape Girardeau, Missouri, Project No. AIR 196-077A-1.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The funding from this block grant agreement will fund 90% of research and marketing efforts for
improvement and promotion of the scheduled passenger air service at the Cape Girardeau Regional Airport
(CGI).  The funds will be used for airline service promotion/marketing and a catchment leakage study, in an
effort to increase passenger boardings.  The grant funds total $170,000 with the City required to match 10%, or
$18,888, making the total available funds at $188,888.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION

SkyWest Airlines started scheduled passenger air service between Cape Girardeau Regional Airport and Chicago
O'Hare International Airport on December 1, 2017, utilizing a two-year Essential Air Service (EAS) contract
with the U.S. Department of Transportation (USDOT).  Having a code share agreement with United Airlines, the
service has operated as United Express, operated by SkyWest Airlines.  The airline is utilizing a CRJ-200, 50-
seat regional jet with flight attendant and lavatory.  

This air service promotion funding will allow Airport/City staff to provide increased air service promotion and
explore options for improved scheduled air service for our community.  Additionally, this grant will provide
funding for a catchment leakage study, to learn where our passengers are coming from, what airport they are
originating from (if not Cape Girardeau), and their final destination.  This information assists in targeting
the marketing funds.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The availability of our annual State marketing funds for the 2018-19 Fiscal Year (over $88,000), increased our
annual passenger enplanements to 8,891.  This enplanement number was sufficient to guarantee the airport a
$600,000 grant,available to the City in Fiscal Year 2020. 

The immediate financial impact of this grant for the City is the 10% match to the $170,000 grant, which totals
$18,888, allowing a total expenditure of $188,888.  Those funds will only be used as the grant funds are
expended.  

The hopeful and potential positive impact to the City is that usage of these marketing funds results in increased
passenger boardings, eventually allowing the City to see a total annual passenger boarding count of 10,000. 
Passenger boarding counts, or enplanents, reaching 10,000 for the calendar year would provide the Cape
Girardeau Regional Airport an annual guarantee of $1,000,000 in grant funds from the Federal Aviation
Administration for airport eligible projects.  In other words, an $18,888 City expenditure should net the airport
$1,000,000.   

STAFF RECOMMENDATION



It is recommended the City Council approve an ordinance allowing the City Manager to execute the
attached Block Grant Agreement, Project No. AIR 196-077A-1, with the Missouri Highways and Transportation
Commission, in the amount of $170,000 to fund the promotion of scheduled passenger air service at the Cape
Girardeau Regional Airport.

ATTACHMENTS:
Name: Description:

MODOT_Block_Grant_Agreement_-_Promote_passenger_Service__Airport.doc Ordinance

Airport_Aid_Agremeent_City_of_Cape_Girardeau_AIR_196-077A-1.pdf Air Service Grant Agreement 2019, AIR 196-077A-1

http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22293&ItemID=6999
http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22235&ItemID=6999


BILL NO.      19-118    ORDINANCE NO.         

 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 

EXECUTE A STATE BLOCK GRANT AGREEMENT WITH 

THE MISSOURI HIGHWAYS AND TRANSPORTATION 

COMMISSION TO FUND THE PROMOTION OF 

SCHEDLULED PASSENGER AIR SERVICE AT THE CAPE 

GIRARDEAU REGIONAL AIRPORT 

________________________________________________________________ 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPE GIRARDEAU, 

MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Article 1. The City Manager is hereby authorized and 

directed to execute, on behalf of the City, a State Block Grant 

Agreement between the City of Cape Girardeau and the Missouri 

Highways and Transportation Commission to fund determination of 

options for improvement and promotion of the scheduled passenger 

air service at the Cape Girardeau Regional Airport. The City 

Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to attest to said 

document and to affix the seal of the City thereto. The 

Amendment shall be in substantially the form attached hereto, 

which document is hereby approved by the City Council, with such 

changes therein as shall be approved by the officers of the City 

executing the same. 

 

Article 2. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect 

ten days after its passage and approval. 

 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS   day of    , 2019. 

 

 

 

              

       Bob Fox, Mayor 

 

 

(SEAL) 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

    __________ 

Bruce Taylor, Deputy City Clerk 



 

-1- 
 

CCO Form: MO02      Sponsor: City of Cape Girardeau 
Approved:   08/09  (AMB)     Project No.: AIR 196-077A-1 
Revised:   03/17 (MWH) 
Modified:  
 

MISSOURI HIGHWAYS AND TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
AIRPORT AID AGREEMENT FOR AIR SERVICE PROMOTION 

 
 THIS GRANT AGREEMENT is entered into by the Missouri Highways and 
Transportation Commission (hereinafter, "Commission") and the City of Cape Girardeau 
(hereinafter, "Sponsor"). 
 
 WITNESSETH: 
 
 WHEREAS, the Sponsor has applied to the Commission for a grant of funds 
under §305.230.4(1)(m) RSMo; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Commission has agreed to award funds available under 
§305.230.4(1)(m) RSMo to the Sponsor with the understanding that such funds will be 
used for a project pursuant to this Agreement for the purposes generally described in 
the Sponsor's grant application/request dated May 29, 2019, and specifically described 
as follows: 
 

Air Service Promotion and Marketing and Catchment Leakage Study; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, promises, and 
representations in this Agreement, the parties agree as follows: 
 
 (1) PURPOSE:  The purpose of this Agreement is to provide financial 
assistance to the Sponsor under §305.230 RSMo. 
 
 (2) AMOUNT OF GRANT:  The amount of this grant is One Hundred Seventy 
Thousand Dollars ($170,000); provided, however, that in the event state funds available 
to the Commission under §305.230 RSMo are reduced so that the Commission is 
incapable of completely satisfying its obligations to all the Sponsors for the current state 
fiscal year, the Commission may recompute and reduce this grant.  The designation of 
this grant does not create a lump sum quantity contract, but rather only represents the 
amount of funding available for qualifying expenses.  In no event will the Commission 
provide the Sponsor funding for work that is not actually performed.  The release of all 
funding under this Agreement is subject to review and approval of all project expenses 
to ensure that they are qualifying expenses under this program.     
 
 (3) AMOUNT OF MATCHING FUNDS:  The amount of local matching funds, 
and/or other resources, to be furnished by the Sponsor is Eighteen Thousand Eight 
Hundred Eighty-Eight Dollars ($18,888).  The Sponsor warrants to the Commission that 
it has sufficient cash on deposit, or other readily available resources, to provide the local 



 

-2- 
 

matching funds to complete the project. 
 
 (4) PROJECT TIME PERIOD:  The project period shall be from July 1, 2019 
through June 30, 2020.  The Commission's representative may, in writing, extend the 
project time period for good cause as shown by the Sponsor.  The grant funds in 
paragraph (2) not expended or duly obligated during the project time period shall be 
released for use in other projects under §305.230 RSMo. 
 
 (5) WITHDRAWAL OF GRANT OFFER:  The Commission reserves the right 
to amend or withdraw this grant offer at any time prior to acceptance by the Sponsor. 
 
 (6) PAYMENT:  Payments to the Sponsor are made on an advance basis.  
The Sponsor may request incremental payments during the course of a project or a 
lump sum payment upon completion of the work.  However, this advance payment is 
subject to the limitations imposed by paragraph (8)(B) of this Agreement. 
 
  (A) The Sponsor may request payment at any time subsequent to the 
execution of this Agreement by both parties.  Requests for reimbursement shall be 
supported with invoices.  After the Sponsor pays incurred costs, copies of checks used 
to pay providers must be submitted to the Commission. 
 
  (B) It is understood and agreed by and between the parties that the 
Commission shall make no payment which could cause the aggregate of all payments 
under this Agreement to exceed ninety percent (90%) of the maximum state (Aviation 
Trust Fund) obligation stated in this Agreement or eighty-one percent (81%) of actual 
total eligible project cost, whichever is lower, until the Sponsor has met and/or 
performed all requirements of this grant Agreement to the satisfaction of the 
Commission. 
 
  (C) Within ninety (90) days of final inspection of the project funded 
under this grant, the Sponsor shall provide to the Commission a final payment request 
and all financial performance and other reports as required by the conditions of this 
grant. 
 
  (D) If the Commission determines that the Sponsor was overpaid, the 
amount of overpayment shall be remitted to the Commission.   
 
 (7) AUDIT OF RECORDS:  The Sponsor must maintain all records relating to 
this Agreement, including but not limited to invoices, payrolls, etc.  These records must 
be available at all reasonable times at no charge to the Commission and/or its 
designees or representatives during the period of this Agreement and any extension 
thereof, and for three (3) years from the date of final payment made under this 
Agreement. 
 
 (8) FINANCIAL SUMMARY:  Upon request of the Commission, the Sponsor 
shall provide to the Commission a financial summary of the total funds expended.  The 



 

-3- 
 

summary must show the source of funds and the specific items for which they were 
expended.  
 
 (9) NONDISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  The Sponsor shall comply with all state 
and federal statutes applicable to the Sponsor relating to nondiscrimination, including, 
but not limited to, Chapter 213, RSMo; Title VI and Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 
1964 as amended (42 U.S.C. §2000d and §2000e, et seq.); and with any provision of 
the "Americans with Disabilities Act" (42 U.S.C. §12101, et seq.). 
 
 (10) CANCELLATION:  The Commission may cancel this Agreement at any 
time for a material breach of contractual obligations by providing the Sponsor with 
written notice of cancellation.  Should the Commission exercise its right to cancel this 
Agreement for such reasons, cancellation will become effective upon the date specified 
in the notice of cancellation sent to the Sponsor. 
 
 (11) LACK OF PROGRESS:  Any lack of progress which significantly 
endangers substantial performance of the project within the specified time shall be 
deemed a violation of the terms of this Agreement.  The determination of lack of 
progress shall be solely within the discretion of the Commission.  The Commission shall 
notify the Sponsor in writing once such a determination is made. 
 
 (12) VENUE:  It is agreed by the parties that any action at law, suit in equity, or 
other judicial proceeding to enforce or construe this Agreement, or regarding its alleged 
breach, shall be instituted only in the Circuit Court of Cole County, Missouri. 
 
 (13) LAW OF MISSOURI TO GOVERN:  This Agreement shall be construed 
according to the laws of the State of Missouri.  The Sponsor shall comply with all local, 
state and federal laws and regulations relating to the performance of this Agreement. 
 
 (14) WORK PRODUCT:  All documents, reports, exhibits, etc. produced by the 
Sponsor at the direction of the Commission and information supplied by the 
Commission shall remain the property of the Commission. 
 
 (15) CONFIDENTIALITY:  The Sponsor shall not disclose to third parties 
confidential factual matters provided by the Commission except as may be required by 
statute, ordinance or order of court, or as authorized by the Commission.  The Sponsor 
shall notify the Commission immediately of any request for such information. 
 
 (16) NONSOLICITATION:  The Sponsor warrants that it has not employed or 
retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working for the 
Sponsor, to solicit or secure this Agreement, and that it has not paid or agreed to pay 
any company or person, other than a bona fide employee, any fee, commission, 
percentage, brokerage fee, gift or any other consideration, contingent upon or resulting 
from the award or making of this Agreement.  For breach or violation of this warranty, 
the Commission shall have the right to annul this Agreement without liability, or in its 
discretion, to deduct from this Agreement price or consideration, or otherwise recover, 



 

-4- 
 

the full amount of such fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift or contingent 
fee. 
 
 (17) DISPUTES:  Any disputes that arise under this Agreement shall be 
decided by the Commission or its representative. 
 
 (18) INDEMNIFICATION:   
 

(A) To the extent allowed or imposed by law, the Sponsor shall defend, 
indemnify and hold harmless the Commission, including its members and department 
employees, from any claim or liability whether based on a claim for damages to real or 
personal property or to a person for any matter relating to or arising out of the Sponsor's 
wrongful or negligent performance of its obligations under this Agreement. 

 
(B) The Sponsor will require any contractor procured by the Sponsor to 

work under this Agreement: 
 

 (1) To obtain a no cost permit from the Commission’s district 
engineer prior to working on the Commission’s right-of-way, which shall be signed by an 
authorized contractor representative (a permit from the Commission’s district engineer 
will not be required for work outside of the Commission’s right-of-way); and 

 
(2) To carry commercial general liability insurance and 

commercial automobile liability insurance from a company authorized to issue insurance 
in Missouri, and to name the Commission, and the Missouri Department of 
Transportation and its employees, as additional named insureds in amounts sufficient to 
cover the sovereign immunity limits for Missouri public entities ($500,000 per claimant 
and $3,000,000 per occurrence) as calculated by the Missouri Department of Insurance, 
Financial Institutions and Professional Registration, and published annually in the 
Missouri Register pursuant to Section 537.610, RSMo. 

 
  (C) In no event shall the language of this Agreement constitute or be 
construed as a waiver or limitation for either party’s rights or defenses with regard to 
each party’s applicable sovereign, governmental, or official immunities and protections 
as provided by federal and state constitution or law. 
 
 (19) NOTIFICATION OF CHANGE:  The Sponsor shall immediately notify the 
Commission of any change in conditions or law which may significantly affect its ability 
to perform the project in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement. 
 
 (20) AMENDMENTS:  Any change in this Agreement, whether by modification 
or supplementation, must be accomplished by a formal contract amendment signed and 
approved by the duly authorized representatives of the Sponsor and the Commission. 
 
 (21) ASSIGNMENT:  The Sponsor shall not assign, transfer or delegate any 
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of the Commission. 



 

-5- 
 

 
 (22) BANKRUPTCY:  Upon filing for any bankruptcy or insolvency proceeding 
by or against the Sponsor, whether voluntarily, or upon the appointment of a receiver, 
trustee, or assignee, for the benefit of creditors, the Commission reserves the right and 
sole discretion to either cancel this Agreement or affirm this Agreement and hold the 
Sponsor responsible for damages. 
 
 (23) COMMISSION REPRESENTATIVE:  The Commission's chief engineer is 
designated as the Commission's representative for the purpose of administering the 
provisions of this Agreement.  The Commission's representative may designate by 
written notice other persons having the authority to act on behalf of the Commission in 
furtherance of the performance of this Agreement. 
 
 (24) AIRPORT USE:  The Sponsor agrees to operate the airport for the use 
and benefit of the public.  The Sponsor further agrees that it will keep the airport open to 
all types, kinds, and classes of aeronautical use on fair and reasonable terms without 
discrimination between such types, kinds and classes.  Any proposal to temporarily 
close the airport for non-aeronautical purposes must first be approved by the 
Commission.  Otherwise, at no time shall the airport be closed to accommodate a non-
aeronautical event or activity. 
  
 (25) SAFE OPERATION OF AIRPORT:  The Sponsor agrees to operate and 
maintain in a safe and serviceable condition the airport and all connected facilities which 
are necessary to serve the aeronautical users of the airport other than facilities owned 
or controlled by the United States.  The Sponsor further agrees that it will not permit any 
activity on the airport’s grounds that would interfere with its safe use for airport 
purposes.  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to require that the 
airport be operated for aeronautical uses during temporary periods when snow, ice, or 
other climatic conditions interfere with safe operations. 
 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank] 



 

-6- 
 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have entered into and accepted this 
Agreement on the last date written below.  
 
 
 Executed by the Sponsor this _____ day of _____________________, 20____. 
 
 Executed by the Commission this ____ day of ___________________, 20____. 
 
 
 
MISSOURI HIGHWAYS AND 
TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION  CITY OF CAPE GIRARDEAU                                                                
 
 
                                                        By____________________________                                                             
 
Title                                                  Title____________________________   
 
 
Attest:       Attest: 
 
 
                                                        By___________________________                                                           
Secretary to the Commission 
       Title__________________________ 

 
 
Approved as to Form:    Approved as to Form: 
 
 
                                                                                                                     
Commission Counsel 
       Title ____________________________ 
 
 
       Ordinance No.                                           
       (if applicable) 
 
 
        
 
 
 
 
 
 



Staff: 
Agenda:

Ryan Shrimplin, AICP - City
Planner
8/5/2019

AGENDA REPORT 
Cape Girardeau City Council 19-177

SUBJECT

An Ordinance approving the Record Plat of LaFont's First Amended.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The attached ordinance approves a record plat for a two-lot subdivision at 402 Chesley Drive.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION

A record plat has been submitted for LaFont’s First Amended, located at 402 Chesley Drive.  The property is
zoned R-1 (Single-Family Suburban Residential).  The plat subdivides a lot into two lots.  The plat shows an
exception for a reduced utility easement width along the rear lot lines.  Staff supports the exception because
there are no existing or proposed City utilities in the locations where the easement is required.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

The staff report to the Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of the record plat.

BOARD OR COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION

The Planning and Zoning Commission, at its June 12, 2019 meeting, recommended approval of the record plat
with a vote of 8 in favor, 0 in opposition, and 0 abstaining.

ATTACHMENTS:
Name: Description:

Record_Plat_LaFont_s_First_Amended.doc Ordinance

Staff_Review-Referral-Action_Form.pdf LaFont's First Amended - Staff RRA Form

Map_-_LaFont_s_First_Amended.pdf LaFont's First Amended - Map

Application_-_LaFont_s_First_Amended_Subd..pdf LaFont's First Amended - Application

LaFont.pdf LaFont's First Amended - Record Plat

http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22298&ItemID=7014
http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22251&ItemID=7014
http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22255&ItemID=7014
http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22253&ItemID=7014
http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22254&ItemID=7014


BILL NO.     19-119         ORDINANCE NO.     

  

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE RECORD PLAT OF 

LAFONT’S FIRST AMENDED 

              

 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPE 

GIRARDEAU, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

     ARTICLE 1. The record plat of LaFont’s First Amended, being 

a resubdivision of LaFont’s First as recorded in Plat Book 24 at 

Page 22 of the County Land Records, in the City and County of 

Cape Girardeau, State of Missouri, submitted by Dale P. LaFont 

and Terry E. Brewer-LaFont, bearing the certification of Timothy 

J. Sander, a Registered Land Surveyor, dated the 7th day of May, 

2019, including all exceptions and variances, is hereby 

approved. 

 

 ARTICLE 2. The City Clerk is hereby directed to sign the 

record plat with the date of Council approval and affix thereto 

the seal of the City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri. 

 

 ARTICLE 3. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect 

ten days after its passage and approval. 

 

 PASSED AND APPROVED THIS ______ DAY OF _____________, 2019. 

 

 

 

              

      Bob Fox, Mayor  

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

      __ 

Bruce Taylor, Deputy City Clerk 

 





408

409

405

402

407

414

421

403

415

411

3103

3105

3103

Ch
es

ley
 D

r

Bloomfield Rd

Meadow Lark Ln

LaFont's First Amended

.

0 60 12030 Feet

Created by: Development Services
                July 29, 2019





LOT-1
30,852 Sq Ft ±

LOT-2
37,398 Sq Ft ±

C Bloomfield Road (Right of W
ay Varies)

L

C
 C

he
sl

ey
 D

riv
e 

(5
0'

 R
ig

ht
 o

f W
ay

)

L

New Shared
Driveway Easement

LOT 1

LOT 1

LOT 2

S
AN

D
E

R
   

 L
AN

D
   

 S
U

R
V

E
YI

N
G

T
IM

O
T

H
Y

 J
. S

A
N

D
E

R
, P

L
S

P
ho

ne
 N

um
be

r:
  (

57
3)

45
0-

20
00

   
   

   
  E

-M
ai

l: 
  s

an
de

rs
ur

ve
y2

00
3@

gm
ai

l.c
om

LOT 4

LOT 1

Existing 4' Service
 Pole Easement Per

Northview Acres
(Plat Book 5, Page 5)

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' Utility and Sewer Easement Along the Front Lot Lines (PB 24, Pg 22)

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' Utility and Sewer Easement Along  the Front Lot Lines (PB 24, Pg 22)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N/F Dale P. LaFont & Terry E. Brewer-LaFont) (Doc. No. 2017-06071)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N/F Dale P. LaFont & Terry E. Brewer-LaFont) (Doc. No. 2017-06071)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N/F Dale P. LaFont) (Doc. No. 2013-05761)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N/F Warren S.  Hastings Trust) (BOOK 672, PAGE 591) (BOOK 1255, PAGE 468)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N/F Larry J. & Stephanie J.  Westrich Trust) (Doc. No. 2011-06883)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N/F Donald G. & Linda Shelton, ET UX) (Doc. No. 2017-13580)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N/F Kidd Land  Management, LLC) (Doc. No. 2018-02477)

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' Utility and Sewer Easement Along the Rear Lot Lines (PB 24, Pg 22)

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' Utility and Sewer  Easement Along the  Rear Lot Lines (PB 24, Pg 22)

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' Utility and Sewer Easement Along the Side Lot Line (PB 24, Pg 22)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE IN FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIKESTON, MISSOURI

AutoCAD SHX Text
20052 US HIGHWAY 61

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
 63801

AutoCAD SHX Text
90

AutoCAD SHX Text
05/07/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
TJS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TJS

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
Record Plat:  %%ULaFont's First Amended

AutoCAD SHX Text
A Resubdivision of LaFont's First as recorded

AutoCAD SHX Text
in Plat Book 24 at Page 22 of the County Land Records,

AutoCAD SHX Text
in the City and County of Cape Girardeau, State of Missouri

AutoCAD SHX Text
[

AutoCAD SHX Text
]

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUBDIVISION DEDICATION WE, THE UNDERSIGNED, DALE P. LaFONT AND TERRY E. BREWER-LaFONT, HUSBAND AND WIFE, OWNERS IN FEE OF LaFONT'S FIRST AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 24 AT PAGE 22 OF THE COUNTY LAND RECORDS, IN THE CITY AND COUNTY OF CAPE GIRARDEAU, STATE OF MISSOURI, CONTAINING 68,250 SQUARE FEET, MORE OR LESS, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: BEGIN at the Northeast Corner of Lot 1 of LaFont's First (Found 1/2" Iron Rod), thence S 07°24'17" W, 133.38 feet; thence S 02°27'17" W, 225.65 feet; thence S 82°22'17" W, 20.16 feet; thenceS 07°24'17" W, 43.03 feet; thence N 78°00'48" W, 102.38 feet; thence N 59°08'06" W, 41.37 feet;thence N 82°35'43" W, 60.00 feet to the East Right of Way Line of Chesley Drive; thence, alongsaid East Right of Way Line of Chesley Drive, N 07°24'17" E, 254.20 feet to the South Right ofWay Line of Bloomfield Road; thence, along said South Right of Way Line of Bloomfield Road,  N 64°52'02" E, 237.24 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING, being subject to any easements ofrecord, do hereby subdivide said tract into two lots as shown hereon and do hereby name said subdivision "LaFONT'S FIRST AMENDED".  The shared driveway easement shown hereon is hereby established for the use and benefit of the current and future owners of Lots 1 and 2 and their respective tenants and invitees, for the sole purpose of providing ingress and egress between Lots 1 and 2, and between such lots and the adjacent street(s).  Each lot owner has an equal share of the financial responsibility for maintaining the driveway within said easement. _________________________________ DALE P. LaFONT, HUSBAND. _________________________________ TERRY E. BREWER-LaFONT, WIFE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF MISSOURI  COUNTY OF CAPE GIRARDEAU Filed for record this _______ day of ____________ A.D., 2019 in Document Number __________________ ____________________________ Andrew David Blattner, Recorder of Deeds  Cape Girardeau County, Missouri

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF MISSOURI  COUNTY OF CAPE GIRARDEAU On this ________ day of ______________, 2019, before me, a Notary Public for said State and County, appeared Dale P. LaFont & Terry E. Brewer-LaFont, Husband & Wife, to me known to be the persons described herein, who did execute the foregoing instrument, and who acknowledged that they executed the same as their free act and deed. IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand and affix my official seal this _______ day of  ______________ A.D., 2019. My commission expires _____________________. ____________________________________ Notary Public I, _______________________, City Clerk of the City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri, hereby certify that this plat was approved by the City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri, by Ordinance  No. __________ passed and approved this _____ day of _______________ A.D., 2019. ______________________________ City Clerk, City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASSESSOR'S MAP NUMBER 20-314

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY SURVEY CLASS...."URBAN"

AutoCAD SHX Text
     TITLE REFERENCES TITLE REFERENCES DOC. NO. 2017-06071 (SUB) DOC. NO. 2013-05761 (ADJ) DOC. NO. 2018-02477 (ADJ) DOC. NO. 2017-13580 (ADJ) DOC. NO. 2011-06883 (ADJ) BOOK 672, PAGE 591 (ADJ) BOOK 1255, PAGE 468 (ADJ)

AutoCAD SHX Text
                  SURVEYOR CERTIFICATION SURVEYOR CERTIFICATION THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT I, TIMOTHY J SANDER, HAVE SURVEYED THE FORGOING DESCRIBED PARCEL OF LAND AT THE REQUEST OF DALE P. LaFONT AND HAVE PREPARED THE ANNEXED PLAT, WHICH IS A TRUE AND CORRECT REPRESENTATION OF SAID SURVEY, TO THE BEST OF MY ABILITY AND THAT SAID PLAT AND SURVEY WERE DONE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CURRENT MINIMUM STANDARDS FOR PROPERTY BOUNDARY SURVEYS IN THE STATE OF MISSOURI AS MADE EFFECTIVE JUNE 30, 2017. DONE THIS   7 th.   DAY OF MAY  ,  2019.                          ____________________________________                          TIMOTHY J. SANDER, MO-PLS 2003013179                          20052 US HIGHWAY 61                          SIKESTON, MISSOURI   63801

AutoCAD SHX Text
                REFERENCES  REFERENCES  1.  NORTH BASIS PER GPS OBSERVATION ALONG THE      EAST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF CHESLY DRIVE      (N 07°24'17" E) - MISSOURI STATE PLANE    COORDINATE SYSTEM, NAD 1983 - ZONE EAST. 2.  ABSTRACT OF TITLE. 3.  P.O.B.  =  POINT OF BEGINNING. 4.  N/F = NOW OR FORMERLY. 5.           = ORIGINAL LOT NUMBERS. 6.           = NEW LOT NUMBERS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO PORTION OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED PARCEL LIES WITHIN THE 100 YEAR FLOOD PLAIN, AS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
INDICATED ON THE FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP NUMBER 29031C0262E WITH AN EFFECTIVE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE OF SEPTEMBER 29, 2011.

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%ULOT SIZES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL NUMBER OF LOTS = 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
SMALLEST LOT = 30,852 Sq Ft %%P

AutoCAD SHX Text
LARGEST LOT = 37,398 Sq Ft %%P

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UZONING

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURRENT ZONING = R1

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UBUILDING SETBACKS (SINGLE-FAMILY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT YARD = 30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
REAR YARD = 25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDE YARD = 6'

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%URECORD OWNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DALE P. LaFONT & 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TERRY E. BREWER-LaFONT

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UDEVELOPER OF SUBDIVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DALE P. LaFONT &

AutoCAD SHX Text
402 CHESLEY DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAPE GIRARDEAU MO

AutoCAD SHX Text
63703

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UPLAT PREPARED BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANDER LAND SURVEYING

AutoCAD SHX Text
TIMOTHY J SANDER, PLS

AutoCAD SHX Text
20052 US HIGHWAY 61

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIKESTON, MO

AutoCAD SHX Text
63801

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL AREA = 68,250 Sq Ft %%P

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAXIMUM HEIGHT  = 2 1/2 STORIES / 35'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MINIMUM LOT AREA = 10,000 Sq Ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
MINIMUM LOT WIDTH  = 80'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(SINGLE-FAMILY SUBURBAN RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Scale:  1" = 30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAXIMUM DENSITY = 4 UNITS PER ACRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SYMBOL LEGEND 1.    = 1/2" IRON RODS (SET). 2.    = 1/2" IRON RODS (FND). 3.    = COTTON PICKER SPINDLES (SET). 4.                    = SUBDIVISION BOUNDARY LINE. 5.                    = NEW LOT LINE.   6.                    = BUILDING SETBACK LINE 7.                    = EXISTING UTILITY EASEMENT LINE. 8.                    = NEW SHARED DRIVEWAY EASEMENT LINE. 9.                    = ADJOINER PROPERTY LINE. 10.                   = RIGHT OF WAY LINE. 11.                   = STREET CENTERLINE. 12.                   = EXISTING SERVICE POLE EASEMENT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOCUMENT NUMBER 2017-06071

AutoCAD SHX Text
TERRY E. BREWER-LaFONT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOOMFIELD ROAD 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHESLEY DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH SILVER SPRINGS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
Subject Parcel

AutoCAD SHX Text
Vicinity Map

AutoCAD SHX Text
(Not to Scale)

AutoCAD SHX Text
AN EXCEPTION IS SHOWN FOR A REDUCED

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY EASEMENT WIDTH ALONG THE REAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT LINES OF LOTS 1 AND 2.



Staff: 
Agenda:

Ryan Shrimplin, AICP - City
Planner
8/5/2019

AGENDA REPORT 
Cape Girardeau City Council 19-178

SUBJECT

An Ordinance approving the Record Plat of Sabella's First Subdivision.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The attached ordinance approves a record plat for combining tracts at 2510 Jonquil Lane.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION

A record plat has been submitted for Sabella’s First Subdivision, located at 2510 Jonquil Lane.  The property is
zoned R-1 (Single-Family Suburban Residential).  The plat combines three tracts to form one new lot.  The plat
shows a variance for a reduced front yard setback.  Staff supports the variance due to the location of the existing
home relative to the front lot line.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

The staff report to the Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of the record plat.

BOARD OR COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION

The Planning and Zoning Commission, at its July 10, 2019 meeting, recommended approval of the record plat
with a vote of 9 in favor, 0 in opposition, and 0 abstaining.

ATTACHMENTS:
Name: Description:

Record_Plat_Sabella_s_First_Subdivision.doc Ordinance

Staff_Review-Referral-Action_Form.pdf Sabella's First Subdivision - Staff RRA Form

Map_-_Sabella_s_First_Subdivision.pdf Sabella's First Subdivision - Map

Application_-_Sabella_s_First_Subdivision_Record_Plat.pdf Sabella's First Subdivision - Application

Sabellas_Subdivision-Plat.pdf Sabella's First Subdivision - Record Plat

http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22299&ItemID=7013
http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22243&ItemID=7013
http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22244&ItemID=7013
http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22245&ItemID=7013
http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22246&ItemID=7013


BILL NO.     19-120        ORDINANCE NO.     

 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE RECORD PLAT OF 

SABELLA’S FIRST SUBDIVISION  

              

 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPE 

GIRARDEAU, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

     ARTICLE 1. The record plat of Sabella’s First Subdivision, 

being a Resubdivision of the West 47.3 feet of Lot 2, All of Lot 

3, and the East 56.9 feet of Lot 4, All in Block 3 of Holland 

Hills as recorded in Plat Book 06 at Page 55 of the County Land 

Records, in the City and County of Cape Girardeau, State of 

Missouri, submitted by Deborah D. Sabella Revocable Trust 

Agreement dated November 25, 2014, bearing the certification of 

Timothy J. Sander, a Registered Land Surveyor, dated the 6th day 

of May, 2019, including all variances and exceptions, is hereby 

approved. 

 

 ARTICLE 2. The City Clerk is hereby directed to sign the 

record plat with the date of Council approval and affix thereto 

the seal of the City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri. 

 

 ARTICLE 3. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect 

ten days after its passage and approval.  

 

 PASSED AND APPROVED THIS _____ DAY OF ______________, 2019. 

 

 

 

              

      Bob Fox, Mayor  

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

      __ 

Bruce Taylor, Deputy City Clerk 

 





Jonquil Ln

Allendale Dr

Greenway Dr

Sabella's First Subdivision

.
Legend

Sabella's First Subdivision
Parcels
Lot Line0 50 10025 Feet

Created by: Development Services
                   Carol Peters
                   June 17, 2019





C Jonquil Lane (50' Right of Way)

L

16,703 Sq Ft ±(0.383 Acre ±)

=

D

C Allendale Drive(50' Right of Way)

L

C
 N

or
th

 C
ap

e 
R

oc
k 

D
riv

e
 (

80
' R

ig
ht

 o
f W

ay
)

L

25' Rear Setback Line

25' Front
Setback Line

6' Side
Setback Line

6' Side Setback Line

LOT 1

LOT 2

LOT 2
LOT 3

LOT 4

LO
T 

4

LO
T 

5 LOT 1

10' Utility Easement (New)

10' Utility Easement (New)

5'
 U

til
ity

 E
as

em
en

t (
N

ew
)

5'
 U

til
ity

 E
as

em
en

t (
N

ew
)

Existing 5' Utility PoleEasement

LOT 4

LOT 1

SANDER    LAND    SURVEYING TIMOTHY J. SANDER, PLS

Phone Number:  (573)450-2000           E-Mail:   sandersurvey2003@gmail.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
SE Corner Lot 1, Block 03, Holland Hills (Found 1/2"  Iron Rod)  (P.O.C.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Record Plat:  %%USabella's First Subdivision

AutoCAD SHX Text
A Resubdivision of the West 47.3 feet of Lot 2, All of Lot 3, and the East 56.9 feet of Lot 4,

AutoCAD SHX Text
All in Block 3 of Holland Hills as recorded in Plat Book 06 at Page 55 of the County Land

AutoCAD SHX Text
 Records, in the City and County of Cape Girardeau, State of Missouri

AutoCAD SHX Text
[

AutoCAD SHX Text
]

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUBDIVISION DEDICATION I, THE UNDERSIGNED, DEBORAH D. SABELLA, TRUSTEE OF THE DEBORAH D. SABELLA REVOCABLE TRUST AGREEMENT DATED NOVEMBER 25, 2014, OWNER IN FEE OF THE WEST 47.3 FEET OF LOT 2, ALL OF LOT 3, AND THE EAST 56.9 FEET OF LOT 4, ALL IN BLOCK 3 OF HOLLAND HILLS AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 06 AT PAGE 55 OF THE COUNTY LAND RECORDS, IN THE CITY AND COUNTY OF CAPE GIRARDEAU, STATE OF MISSOURI, CONTAINING 16,703 SQUARE FEET, MORE OR LESS, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCE at the Southeast Corner of Lot 1 in Block 3 of Holland Hills (Found 1/2" Iron Rod), thence, along the North Right of Way Line of Jonquil Lane, N 81°37'00" W,147.00 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING; thence, continue, N 81°37'00" W, 182.60feet; thence N 08°23'00" E, 94.10 feet to the North Line of Lot 4 of said Block 3;thence, along the North line of said Lot 4 and Lot 3, S 81°37'00" E, 135.33 feet tothe South Right of Way Line of Allendale Drive, being a non-tangent curve to the left; thence along the arc of said curve, having a radius of 200.00 feet, 50.72 feet (Chord bearing S 60°45'58" E, 50.58 feet); thence, leaving said South Right of WayLine; S 08°23'00" W, 76.10 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING, being subject to anyeasements of record, do hereby subdivide said tract into one lot as shown hereon and do hereby name said subdivision "SABELLA'S FIRST SUBDIVISION". The utility easements shown hereon are hereby granted to the City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri, in perpetuity for public purposes, including the installation, maintenance, repair, replacement, and expansion of City water and sewer systems, and as may be authorized by the City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri to be used by a public or private utility provider for purposes related to the installation, maintenance, repair, replacement, and expansion of such utility systems. _________________________________ DEBORAH D. SABELLA, TRUSTEE DEBORAH D. SABELLA REVOCABLE  TRUST AGREEMENT DATED NOVEMBER 25, 2014

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF MISSOURI  COUNTY OF CAPE GIRARDEAU Filed for record this _______ day of ____________ A.D., 2019 in Document Number __________________ ____________________________ Andrew David Blattner, Recorder of Deeds  Cape Girardeau County, Missouri

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF MISSOURI  COUNTY OF CAPE GIRARDEAU On this ________ day of ______________, 2019, before me, a Notary Public for said State and County, appeared Deborah D. Sabella, Trustee of the Deborah D. Sabella Revocable Trust Agreement Dated November 25, 2014, to me known to be the person described herein, who did execute the foregoing instrument, and who acknowledged that she executed the same as the free act and deed of said Trust. IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand and affix my official seal this _______ day of  ______________ A.D., 2019. My commission expires _____________________. ____________________________________ Notary Public I, _______________________, City Clerk of the City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri, hereby certify that this plat was approved by the City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri, by Ordinance  No. __________ passed and approved this _____ day of _______________ A.D., 2019. ______________________________ City Clerk, City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri

AutoCAD SHX Text
     TITLE REFERENCES TITLE REFERENCES DOC. NO. 2014-12763 (SUB) DOC. NO. 2015-11565 (SUB) DOC. NO. 2008-14889 (ADJ) DOC. NO. 2014-08471 (ADJ)

AutoCAD SHX Text
                  SURVEYOR CERTIFICATION SURVEYOR CERTIFICATION THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT I, TIMOTHY J SANDER, HAVE SURVEYED THE FORGOING DESCRIBED PARCEL OF LAND AT THE REQUEST OF DEBORAH D. SABELLA AND HAVE PREPARED THE ANNEXED PLAT, WHICH IS A TRUE AND CORRECT REPRESENTATION OF SAID SURVEY, TO THE BEST OF MY ABILITY AND THAT SAID PLAT AND SURVEY WERE DONE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CURRENT MINIMUM STANDARDS FOR PROPERTY BOUNDARY SURVEYS IN THE STATE OF MISSOURI AS MADE EFFECTIVE JUNE 30, 2017. DONE THIS   6 th.   DAY OF MAY  ,  2019.                          ____________________________________                          TIMOTHY J. SANDER, MO-PLS 2003013179                          20052 US HIGHWAY 61                          SIKESTON, MISSOURI   63801

AutoCAD SHX Text
                REFERENCES  REFERENCES  1.  NORTH BASIS PER RECORD PLAT OF HOLLAND     HILLS (PLAT BOOK 06, PAGE 55) ALONG THE      NORTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF JONQUIL LANE     (N 81°37'00" W)2.  ABSTRACT OF TITLE. 3.  P.O.B.  =  POINT OF BEGINNING. 4.  N/F = NOW OR FORMERLY. 5.           = ORIGINAL LOT NUMBERS. 6.           = NEW LOT NUMBERS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO PORTION OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED PARCEL LIES WITHIN THE 100 YEAR FLOOD PLAIN, AS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
INDICATED ON THE FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP NUMBER 29031C0262E WITH AN EFFECTIVE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE OF SEPTEMBER 29, 2011.

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%ULOT SIZES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL NUMBER OF LOTS = 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SMALLEST LOT = 16,703 Sq Ft %%P

AutoCAD SHX Text
LARGEST LOT = 16,703 Sq Ft %%P

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UZONING

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURRENT ZONING = R1

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UBUILDING SETBACKS (SINGLE-FAMILY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT YARD = 30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
REAR YARD = 25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDE YARD = 6'

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%URECORD OWNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEBORAH D. SABELLA

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVOCABLE TRUST AGREEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UDEVELOPER OF SUBDIVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEBORAH D. SABELLA, TRUSTEE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2510 JONQUIL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAPE GIRARDEAU MO

AutoCAD SHX Text
63701

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UPLAT PREPARED BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANDER LAND SURVEYING

AutoCAD SHX Text
TIMOTHY J SANDER, PLS

AutoCAD SHX Text
20052 US HIGHWAY 61

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIKESTON, MO

AutoCAD SHX Text
63801

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL AREA = 16,703 Sq Ft %%P

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAXIMUM HEIGHT  = 2 1/2 STORIES / 35'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MINIMUM LOT AREA = 10,000 Sq Ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
MINIMUM LOT WIDTH  = 80'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(SINGLE-FAMILY SUBURBAN RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAXIMUM DENSITY = 4 UNITS PER ACRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATED NOVEMBER 25, 2014

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEBORAH D. SABELLA

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASSESSOR'S MAP NUMBER 15-912

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY SURVEY CLASS...."URBAN"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SYMBOL LEGEND 1.    = 1/2" IRON RODS (SET). 2.    = 1/2" IRON RODS (FND). 3.                    = SUBDIVISION BOUNDARY LINE. 4.                    = BUILDING SETBACK LINE. 5.                    = NEW UTILITY EASEMENT LINE. 6.                    = ADJOINER PROPERTY LINE.     7.                    = LOT LINE TO BE ELIMINATED. 8.                    = LOT LINE TO REMAIN. 9.                    = RIGHT OF WAY LINE. 10.                   = STREET CENTERLINE. 11.                   = EXISTING UTILITY POLE EASEMENT LINE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE IN FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIKESTON, MISSOURI

AutoCAD SHX Text
20052 US HIGHWAY 61

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
 63801

AutoCAD SHX Text
90

AutoCAD SHX Text
05/06/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
TJS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TJS

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVOCABLE TRUST AGREEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOCUMENT NUMBER 2014-12763

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJOINER TABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOCUMENT NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F DEBORAH D SABELLA REVOCABLE TRUST AGREEMENT DATED NOVEMBER 25, 2014

AutoCAD SHX Text
2014-12763

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F Porter Trust

AutoCAD SHX Text
2015-11565

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F Ricky & Janice Louise Parrish ET UX

AutoCAD SHX Text
2008-14889

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F Anthony M. & Bethany M. Kiel, ET UX

AutoCAD SHX Text
2014-08471

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Scale:  1" = 30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
JEAN ANN DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLENDALE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
JONQUIL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH CAPE ROCK DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREENWAY DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
Subject Property

AutoCAD SHX Text
Vicinity Map (Not to Scale)

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UNOTE

AutoCAD SHX Text
A VARIANCE IS SHOWN FOR A REDUCED

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT YARD SETBACK FOR LOT 1



Staff: 
Agenda:

W. Victor Brownlees, City
Treasurer
8/5/2019

AGENDA REPORT 
Cape Girardeau City Council 19-179

SUBJECT

Ordinance Setting Property Tax Rates for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2020.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This item provides for the holding of a public hearing and the consideration of an ordinance that would establish
the property tax rates for the City of Cape Girardeau for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020. This public
hearing and ordinance are completed each year in accordance with statutory requirements, which have been
established for the setting of the property tax rates for local governments. The tax levy rates included in this
ordinance represent the current year's tax ceiling rates as calculated pursuant to Article X Section 22 of the
Missouri Constitution and Section 137.073 RSMo. The rates per $100 assessed valuation are $.3037 for the
General Fund, $.0569 for the Health Fund, and $.7076 for the Downtown Special Business District.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION

In June, the City Council approved an ordinance adopting the budget for the current fiscal year. The adopted
budget contained proposed tax levies, assumed assessed values and collection rates which would meet the
requirements of the city and constitutional and statutory requirements for the establishment of a tax rate. The tax
levies per $100 valuation proposed by the adopted budget were $0.3037 for the General Fund, $0.0569 for the
Health Fund and $0.7076 for the Downtown Special District. These were the same rates as the previous year’s
levy.  

Based on preliminary assessment figures recently received from the County the City tax levies will remain the
same for both the General Fund and the Health Fund as a result of a marginal increase of 1.12% in its current
year's base assessed value (total assessed values - assessed values on new construction and annexed
property). The Downtown Special Business District's levy will also remain the same as in the previous year as
there has been no change to its base assessed value.

The initial assessed values of real property increased $15,614,682 (2.97%) while the initial assessed values of
personal property increased $6,016,387 (4.72%) when compared to assessed valuations of the previous year. The
assessed values of new construction and improvements were $14,329,540, indicating an overall increase in base
valuations of real property.

Cape Girardeau County has until August 15, 2019, to provide final assessment values to the City. Consequently
the rates above may change for the second and third reading of this ordinance. In recognition of this potential
change, the public notice informing residents of the public hearing regarding proposed tax rates refers to the
maximum allowable rates approved by voters.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The projected General Fund real estate and personal property tax revenue is $1,987,528 based on the proposed
levy, initial assessed values and expected collection rates. This is $31,922 (1.63%) more than was projected for
the 2018 - 2019 adopted budget. 



A property owner that owns a house worth $200,000 would only pay $137.07 in real estate tax to the City, which
is no change from the previous year. Residents would pay $12.02 for each $10,000 of personal property they
own.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

In order to complete the fiscal requirements of the current budget year, it is recommended the City
Council approve the attached ordinance which would implement the tax rates for the current fiscal year.

ATTACHMENTS:
Name: Description:

TAX_LEVY.2020.doc Ordinance

http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22314&ItemID=7008


 

BILL NO.    19-123       ORDINANCE NO.          

     

AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE LEVYING OF THE 

ANNUAL CITY REVENUE TAX; PUBLIC HEALTH TAX; 

SPECIAL BUSINESS DISTRICT NO. 2 TAX; FOR THE 

FISCAL YEAR ENDING ON THE 30TH DAY OF JUNE, 2020 

                   

                                                             

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPE GIRARDEAU, 

MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

ARTICLE 1.  There is hereby levied for the fiscal year ending on 

the 30th day of June, 2020, a City revenue tax of Thirty and Thirty-

seven One Hundredths Cents ($.3037) on the One Hundred Dollars 

($100.00) assessed valuation of all property within the City limits 

made taxable by law for state and county purposes and not by general 

law exempt from taxation for municipal purposes. 

 

ARTICLE 2.  There is hereby levied for the fiscal year ending on 

the 30th day of June, 2020, a public health tax of Five and Sixty-nine 

One Hundredths Cents ($.0569) on the One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) 

assessed valuation of all property within the City limits made taxable 

by law for state and county purposes and not by general law exempt from 

taxation for municipal purposes. 

 

ARTICLE 3.  There is hereby levied for Special Business District 

No. 2 of Cape Girardeau, Missouri, for the fiscal year ending on the 

30th day of June, 2020, an ad valorem real estate tax of Seventy and 

Seventy-six One Hundredths Cents ($.7076) on the One Hundred Dollars 

($100.00) assessed valuation of all real estate within the Special 

Business District No. 2 of Cape Girardeau, Missouri, not by general law 

exempt from taxation. 

 

ARTICLE 4.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase 

or portion of this ordinance is for any reason held invalid or 

unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion 

shall be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision and such 

holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions hereof. 

 

ARTICLE 5.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect ten 

days after its passage and approval. 

 

 PASSED AND APPROVED THIS        DAY OF             , 2019. 

 

 

           

   Bob Fox, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

Bruce Taylor, Deputy City Clerk 

 



Staff: 
Agenda:

Kelly Green P.E., City Engineer
8/5/2019

AGENDA REPORT 
Cape Girardeau City Council 19-180

SUBJECT

An Ordinance to establish no parking anytime on the north side of Jim Drury Way in the City of Cape Girardeau,
Missouri by amending Traffic Schedule F of the City Code. 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION

The Parks Department requested city staff to review no parking on Jim Drury Way at the Cape Girardeau
SportsPlex.  Currently, when cars are parked on the north side of Jim Drury Way there becomes a sight distance
issue for those who are pulling out of the SportspPlex parking lot.  Upon review, staff proposes to establish no
parking anytime along the north side of Jim Drury Way from Veterans Memorial Drive to Limbaugh Lane. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT

Establishing the no parking anytime will require no direct funding.  Public Works crews will install the signs on
Jim Drury Way.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends the City Council amend Schedule F of the Traffic Ordinance as stated in the summary
attachment as it relates to Jim Drury Way.

ATTACHMENTS:
Name: Description:

Amending_Schedule_F_26-247-No_Parking_Jim_Drury_Way.doc Ordinance

Jim_Drury_Way_Ordinance_Information.pdf Ord Info

Jim_Drury_Way_Traffic_Schedule_Map.pdf Location Map

http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22312&ItemID=6998
http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22271&ItemID=6998
http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22272&ItemID=6998


1 

 

BILL NO.    19-124               ORDINANCE NO.                 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SCHEDULE F OF 

SECTION 26-247 OF THE CITY CODE, BY 

ESTABLISHING NO PARKING ANYTIME ON THE 

NORTH SIDE OF JIM DRURY WAY, IN THE CITY 

OF CAPE GIRARDEAU, MISSOURI 

                                                                               

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPE 

GIRARDEAU, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

    ARTICLE 1. Schedule F of Section 26-247 of the Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri, is hereby 

amended by establishing no parking anytime at the following 

location: 

 

Jim Drury Way – North Side, from Veterans Memorial 

Drive to Limbaugh Lane.  

 

 ARTICLE 2. It is the intention of the governing body and it 

is hereby ordained that the provisions of this ordinance shall 

become and be made a part of the Code of Ordinances of the City 

of Cape Girardeau, Missouri, and the sections of this Code may 

be renumbered to accomplish such intention. 

 

 ARTICLE 3. This ordinance shall take effect and be in force 

from and after ten days after its final passage and approval. 

 

  

 PASSED AND APPROVED THIS        DAY OF           , 2019. 

 

 

 

         

Bob Fox, Mayor 

 

 

 

______________________________ 

Bruce Taylor, Deputy City Clerk 



City of Cape Girardeau
Traffic Schedule F

Proposed No Parking Anytime
Jim Drury Way

                 Proposed No Parking Anytime

Jim Drury Way

Elk Ln

Lim
ba

ug
h L

n

Veterans Memorial Dr

Ü



Staff: 
Agenda:

Kelly Green P.E., City Engineer
8/5/2019

AGENDA REPORT 
Cape Girardeau City Council 19-181

SUBJECT

Ordinance to amend Traffic Schedule A of Section 26-228 of the City Code, by by repealing the 35 MPH speed
limit from Jefferson Avenue to Route 74 and establishing the speed limit on South West End Boulevard
between Highway 74 and Southern Expressway.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

An Ordinance to amend Traffic Schedule A of Section 26-228 by repealing the 35 MPH speed limit from
Jefferson Avenue to Route 74 and establishing the speed limit on South West End Boulevard between Route 74
and Southern Expressway. 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION

Engineering received an inquiry regarding speed limits on South West End Boulevard.  Ordinance No. 1414
(approved January 3, 1979) established a speed limit of 35 MPH on South West End from Jefferson Avenue to
Route 74.  The Route 74 referred to in this ordinance is the old Route 74, which is now Southern Expressway. 
Since then, the new Route 74 has been constructed.  The attached ordinance establishes the 35 MPH speed limit
from the new Route 74 to Southern Expressway.  

During the review of this inquiry, it was decided the speed limit of 35 MPH on South West End from Jefferson
Avenue to Route 74 should be repealed.  The section of South West End Boulevard from Jefferson to new Route
74 will be changed to 30 MPH as all other streets not specifically designated by the ordinance.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The changing of the traffic schedule will require no direct funding.  Public Works crews will install the modified
signs on South West End Boulevard.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends the City Council amend Schedule A of the Traffic Ordinance as stated in the summary
attachment as it relates to South West End Boulevard. 

ATTACHMENTS:
Name: Description:

Amending_Sch_A-Speed_Limits__repeal_and_establish__South_West_End_Boulevard.doc Ordinance

Amend_Schedule_A_S_West_End.pdf Location Map

http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22313&ItemID=6860
http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=21992&ItemID=6860


 

 

 

BILL NO.     19-125              ORDINANCE NO.                   

  

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SCHEDULE A OF SECTION 

26-228 OF THE CITY CODE, BY REPEALING CERTAIN 

SPEED LIMITS ON SOUTH WEST END BOULEVARD AND 

ESTABLISHING NEW SPEED LIMITS ON SOUTH WEST 

END BOULEVARD, IN THE CITY OF CAPE GIRARDEAU, 

MISSOURI 

                                                                               

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPE GIRARDEAU, 

MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

ARTICLE 1.  Schedule A of Section 26-228 of the Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri, is hereby 

amended by repealing the speed limit along South West End Boulevard, 

in the City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri, at the following locations: 

 

South West End Boulevard from Jefferson Avenue to MO  

Route 74/Shawnee Parkway – 35 MPH. 

 

ARTICLE 2.  Schedule A of Section 26-228 of the Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri, is hereby 

amended by establishing speed limits in the City of Cape Girardeau, 

Missouri, at the following locations: 

 

South West End Boulevard from Jefferson Avenue to MO  

Route 74/Shawnee Parkway – 30 MPH.  

 

South West End Boulevard from MO Route 74/Shawnee  

Parkway to Southern Expressway – 35 MPH. 

 

ARTICLE 3.  It is the intention of the governing body and it is 

hereby ordained that the provisions of this ordinance shall become 

and be made a part of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cape 

Girardeau, Missouri, and the sections of this Code may be renumbered 

to accomplish such intention.  

 

ARTICLE 3.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect ten 

days after its passage and approval. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS        DAY OF           , 2019. 

 

    

   ____________________________________ 

   Bob Fox, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

Bruce Taylor, Deputy City Clerk 



S S
pri

gg
 St

S W
es

t E
nd

 B
lvd

Linden St

Elm St

Jefferson Ave

Walnut St

Shawnee Pkwy

Maple St

Southern Expy

Bloomfield St

College St

S R
an

ne
y A

ve

Locust St

Hickory St

Gibo
ney

 Ave

S E
llis

 StCousin St

S P
ac

ific
 S

t

S B
en

ton
 St

Hackberry St

S F
red

eri
ck

 St

S H
an

ov
er 

St

S P
ark

 Av
e

Good Hope St

Morgan Oak St

S H
en

de
rso

n A
ve

Willow St

S M
idd

le 
St

S M
iss

ou
ri A

ve

Pear St

S L
ou

isia
na

 Av
e

Be
au

de
an

 Ln

Fort St

Brenda Kay Ct

Parkway Dr

We
st 

Fo
rt S

t

Napa
 Circl

e

Rear Giboney Ave
S P

ac
ific

 S
t

S B
en

ton
 St

Pear St

S E
llis

 St

Be
au

de
an

 Ln

Ü

City of Cape Girardeau
Amend Traffic Schedule A

S. West End Blvd.

Repeal 35 MPH

Establish 35 MPH



Staff: 
Agenda:

Kelly Green, P.E., City Engineer
8/19/2019

AGENDA REPORT 
Cape Girardeau City Council 19-183

SUBJECT

A Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute an agreement for a General Services Agreement for
general works and infrastructure projects with Koehler Engineering and Land Surveying, Inc.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The attached General Services Agreement will allow the Engineering Division to issue task orders to Koehler
Engineering and Land Surveying, Inc. for professional services necessary to complete any general works and
infrastructure projects.  The attached General Services Agreement is a renewal of the previous General Services
Agreement approved by Council July 7, 2014. 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION

The purpose of the attached General Services Agreement is to set the general contract provisions between the
consultant and the City.  From the General Services Agreement, Task Orders will be issued for defining the
specific work, scope, and fee for each task.  The City Manager will be authorized to sign the task orders on
behalf of the City.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

All costs will be generated per the Task Orders and will be charged to the specific projects utilizing various
funds necessary.

SUSTAINABILITY: ECONOMIC, ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL IMPACTS

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends the Council approve a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into an Agreement
with Koehler Engineering and Land Surveying, Inc. for general works and infrastructure projects.

ATTACHMENTS:
Name: Description:

Agreement__Koehler_Engineering__General_Services.doc Resolution

Koehler_Engineering___Land_Surveying__Inc._-_General_Services_Agreement.pdf Koehler Engineering & Land Surveying, Inc. GSA

http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22297&ItemID=7018
http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22278&ItemID=7018


BILL NO.     19-121       RESOLUTION NO.    

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 

EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH KOEHLER 

ENGINEERING AND LAND SURVEYING, INC., FOR 

GENERAL ENGINEERING AND INFRASTRUCTURE 

PROJECTS, IN THE CITY OF CAPE GIRARDEAU, 

MISSOURI 

________________________________________________________________ 

  

 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPE 

GIRARDEAU, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 ARTICLE 1.  The City Manager, for and on behalf of the City 

of Cape Girardeau, Missouri, is hereby authorized to execute an 

Agreement with Koehler Engineering and Land Surveying, Inc., for 

general engineering and infrastructure projects, in the City of 

Cape Girardeau, Missouri. The Agreement shall be in 

substantially the form attached hereto, which document is hereby 

approved by the City Council, and incorporated herein by 

reference, with such changes therein as shall be approved by the 

officers of the City executing the same. 

 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS _______ DAY OF _____________, 2019. 

 

 

 

              

      Bob Fox, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

      _ 

Bruce Taylor, Deputy City Clerk 

 



























































Staff: 
Agenda:

Kelly Green, P.E., City Engineer
8/19/2019

AGENDA REPORT 
Cape Girardeau City Council 19-184

SUBJECT

A Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute an agreement for a General Services Agreement for
general works and infrastructure projects with Bowen Engineering and Land Surveying, Inc.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The attached General Services Agreement will allow the Engineering Division to issue task orders to Bowen
Engineering and Land Surveying, Inc. for professional services necessary to complete any general works and
infrastructure projects.  The attached General Services Agreement is a renewal of the previous General Services
Agreement approved by Council July 7, 2014. 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION

The purpose of the attached General Services Agreement is to set the general contract provisions between the
consultant and the City.  From the General Services Agreement, Task Orders will be issued for defining the
specific work, scope, and fee for each task.  The City Manager will be authorized to sign the task orders on
behalf of the City.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

All costs will be generated per the Task Orders and will be charged to the specific projects utilizing various
funds necessary.

SUSTAINABILITY: ECONOMIC, ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL IMPACTS

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends the Council approve a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into an Agreement
with Bowen Engineering and Land Surveying, Inc. for general works and infrastructure projects.

ATTACHMENTS:
Name: Description:

Agreement__Bowen_Engineering__General_Services.doc Resolution

Bowen_Engineering___Surveying_Inc._-_General_Services_Agreement.pdf Bowen Engineering and Land Surveying, Inc. GSA

http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22296&ItemID=7019
http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22277&ItemID=7019


BILL NO.     19-122        RESOLUTION NO.    

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 

EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH BOWEN ENGINEERING 

AND LAND SURVEYING, INC., FOR GENERAL 

ENGINEERING AND INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECTS, IN 

THE CITY OF CAPE GIRARDEAU, MISSOURI 

________________________________________________________________ 

  

 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPE 

GIRARDEAU, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 ARTICLE 1.  The City Manager, for and on behalf of the City 

of Cape Girardeau, Missouri, is hereby authorized to execute an 

Agreement with Bowen Engineering and Land Surveying, Inc., for 

general engineering and infrastructure projects, in the City of 

Cape Girardeau, Missouri. The Agreement shall be in 

substantially the form attached hereto, which document is hereby 

approved by the City Council, and incorporated herein by 

reference, with such changes therein as shall be approved by the 

officers of the City executing the same. 

 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS _______ DAY OF _____________, 2019. 

 

 

 

              

      Bob Fox, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

      _ 

Bruce Taylor, Deputy City Clerk 

 





































Staff: 
Agenda:

Police/Chief W. Blair
8/19/2019

AGENDA REPORT 
Cape Girardeau City Council 19-184

SUBJECT

A Resolution authorizing application for the Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Program
FY 2019 Local Solicitation.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Cape Girardeau Police Department would like to apply for the Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance
Grant (JAG) Program FY 2019 Local Solicitation. Funds from the grant will be used towards the purchase one
patrol vehicle.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION

The Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Program FY 2019 Local Solicitation grant is a
formula based grant in which the City of Cape Girardeau qualifies for a specific amount of funding. This year’s
allocation for the City of Cape Girardeau is $ 16,117. The funding will be used towards the purchase one patrol
vehicle.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

No financial impact. This grant will supplement funds already budgeted for in the vehicle replacement fund.

SUSTAINABILITY: ECONOMIC, ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL IMPACTS

N/A

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the Council, by resolution, authorize application for this JAG grant and authorize the City
Manager to enter into an agreement with the Department of Justice if the City is awarded the grant.

ATTACHMENTS:
Name: Description:

Resolution_JAG_Grant_2019.doc Resolution

FY2019_JAG_Certification.pdf FY2019 JAG Certification

JAG_Overview.pdf JAG Overview

JAG_narrative.docx JAG Narrative

http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22399&ItemID=7032
http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22338&ItemID=7032
http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22339&ItemID=7032
http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22340&ItemID=7032


BILL NO.    19-128       RESOLUTION NO.    

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING APPLICATION TO THE 

EDWARD BYRNE MEMORIAL JUSTICE ASSISTANCE 

GRANT (JAG) PROGRAM FY 2019 LOCAL 

SOLICITATION, AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY 

MANAGER TO EXECUTE ALL NECESSARY GRANT 

PROGRAM DOCUMENTS 

              

 

 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPE 

GIRARDEAU, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 ARTICLE 1. The City Manager, for and on behalf of the City 

of Cape Girardeau, Missouri, is hereby authorized to execute a 

grant application to the Edward Byrne Memorial Justice 

Assistance Grant (JAG) Program FY 2019 Local Solicitation, and 

is hereby authorized to execute all necessary grant program 

documents. The grant will be used towards the purchase of one 

patrol vehicle. A summary of said Application is attached to 

this Resolution and made a part hereof. 

 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS _______ DAY OF __________, 2019. 

 

 

 

              

      Bob Fox, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

      _ 

Bruce Taylor, Deputy City Clerk 

 



8/7/2019 https://grants.ojp.usdoj.gov/gmsexternal/applicationReview.do?print=yes

https://grants.ojp.usdoj.gov/gmsexternal/applicationReview.do?print=yes 1/2

APPLICATION FOR
FEDERAL ASSISTANCE

2. DATE SUBMITTED Applicant Identifier

1. TYPE OF SUBMISSION

Application Non-Construction

3. DATE RECEIVED BY STATE State Application Identifier

4. DATE RECEIVED BY
FEDERAL AGENCY

Federal Identifier

5.APPLICANT INFORMATION
Legal Name

Cape Girardeau Police Department

Organizational Unit

Cape Girardeau Police Dept
Address

2530 Maria Louise Ln
Cape Girardeau, Missouri
63701-4320

Name and telephone number of the person to be
contacted on matters involving this application

Droege, Ryan
(573) 335-6621

6. EMPLOYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER (EIN)

43-6000593

7. TYPE OF APPLICANT

Municipal
8. TYPE OF APPLICATION

New

9. NAME OF FEDERAL AGENCY

Bureau of Justice Assistance
11. DESCRIPTIVE TITLE OF APPLICANT'S
PROJECT

Cape Girardeau Police Department Patrol Fleet
Expansion

10. CATALOG OF FEDERAL DOMESTIC ASSISTANCE

NUMBER: 16.738
CFDA
TITLE:

Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance
Grant Program

12. AREAS AFFECTED BY PROJECT

Equipment - General Vehicles - Police (Sedan)
13. PROPOSED PROJECT
Start Date: October 01, 2018
End Date: September 30, 2020

14. CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICTS OF

a. Applicant
b. Project MO08

15. ESTIMATED FUNDING 16. IS APPLICATION SUBJECT TO REVIEW
BY STATE EXECUTIVE ORDER 12372
PROCESS?

This preapplication/application was made
available to the state executive order 12372
process for review on 08/06/2019

Federal $16,117
Applicant $2,000
State $0 
Local $0 
Other $0
Program Income $0 17. IS THE APPLICANT DELINQUENT ON

ANY FEDERAL DEBT?

N
TOTAL $18,117

18. TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE AND BELIEF, ALL DATA IN THIS APPLICATION
PREAPPLICATION ARE TRUE AND CORRECT, THE DOCUMENT HAS BEEN DULY AUTHORIZED



8/7/2019 https://grants.ojp.usdoj.gov/gmsexternal/applicationReview.do?print=yes

https://grants.ojp.usdoj.gov/gmsexternal/applicationReview.do?print=yes 2/2

BY GOVERNING BODY OF THE APPLICANT AND THE APPLICANT WILL COMPLY WITH THE
ATTACHED ASSURANCES IF THE ASSISTANCE IS REQUIRED.

Close Window



Staff: 
Agenda:

Bruce W. Loy, Airport Manager
8/19/2019

AGENDA REPORT 
Cape Girardeau City Council 19-186

SUBJECT

A resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute an agreement with M-B Companies, Inc. to acquire airport
multi-tasking snow removal equipment consisting of one multi-tasking snow removal carrier vehicle, one high
speed rotary plow, one 16 foot wide runway broom and one 18 foot wide flared snow plow.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Cape Girardeau Regional Airport requests the Cape Girardeau City Council to authorize the City Manager
to enter into a contract (See Attached) with the low bidder, M-B Companies, Inc. (M-B) to acquire one airport
multi-tasking snow removal carrier vehicle and multi-tasking attachments at the Cape Girardeau Regional
Airport.  

The acquisition includes the purchase of an airport multi-tasking snow removal equipment consisting of one
multi-tasking snow removal carrier vehicle, one high speed rotary plow, one 16 foot wide runway broom and
one 18 foot wide flared snow plow.
M-B's Base Bid includes the vehicle chassis and the rotary snow blower for $593,159.00.  Additionally, MoDOT
agreed to fund the Bid Alternate #1, consisting of a 4,600 pivot lift airport broom head, 46 inch diameter and 16
feet in length, for $73,627.00.  Because we need an additional long snow plow, as well as the blower and
sweeper, we were able to include the Bid Alternate #2 consisting of one 18 foot wide flared (reversible) snow
plow attachment for $32,153.00.  Except for the 18 foot flared snow plow attachment (which will be funded
100% by the City), the remaining items will be funded 95% by the FAA and MoDOT, resulting in an overall
expenditure of $698,939.00, or $633,447 to be paid by MoDOT/FAA and $65,492 to be paid by the City.  The
contract allows for 335 days for completion from the date of the official Notice to Proceed.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION

The airport's attempts to acquire a snow blower unit has been in the works since our FAA Part 139 Airfield
Inspection.  Our inspector at the time noticed a large amount of snow berms during the inspection and
recommended the airport begin the acquisition process to purchase a snow blower unit to be pushed by a front
end loader, which would have made our unit a year round piece of equipment.  After going out for bid twice and
having two failed attempts to get a Buy American waiver approved by the FAA for the front end loader unit, we
finally agreed to advertise for a Snow Blower unit with a full "truck" chassis.  The resulting bid tabulations for
that RFP are attached.  The Base Bid provided by M-B Companies, Inc. was the low bidder at $593,159.00 and
the FAA did approve their Buy American statement. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT

This Project No. 13-077A-2, will be funded with 95% grant funds from the Missouri Department of
Transportation (MoDOT) with a 5% match provided by the City.  Because the City is recognized by the MoDOT
and the FAA as a "depressed" community, due to recent flooding, we are only having to provide a 5% match,
rather than the normal 10%.  Additionally, because of the 5% difference in our City share, we 
are able to purchase additional equipment, solely at our expense, and still pay less than we would have funding
10% of the project costs.  The financial breakdown follows:

Base Bid - One MB4 Snow Blower Chassis and One MB4 Rotary Snow Blower - 



   Cost -  $593,159.00 MoDOT - $563,501.00  City - $29,658

Bid Alternate #1 - One 4,600 Pivot Lift Airport Broom Head, 46 Dia. x 16 feet length -

  Cost - $  73,627.00  MoDOT -  $69,946.00  City - $3,681.00

Bid Alternate #2 - One P5000 Airport, 18 Foot Wide Flared (Reversible) Snow Plow -

  Cost - $  32,153.00  MoDOT -  $     -0-   City - $32,153.00

Total Costs for the Base Bid, plus Alternates #1 and #2:

       Total Cost - $698,939.00  MoDOT - $633,447.00  City - 65,492.00

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended the City Council authorize the City Manager to sign and execute the attached contract with
M-B Companies, Inc. for an amount of $698,939,00 to acquire one airport multi-tasking snow removal carrier
vehicle and various multi-tasking attachments at the Cape Girardeau Regional Airport, Project No. 13-077A-2. 

ATTACHMENTS:
Name: Description:

Agreement__M-
B_Companies__Inc.__Airport__Snow_Removal_Equipment.doc

Resolution

CGI_contract_docs_August_12_2019_REVISED.pdf
Contract Agreement with M-B Companies, Inc. for a Multi-Tasking Snow Blower
and various attachments

M-B_Snow_Removal_Equipment_Examples.pdf M-B Snow Blower and Attachment Pics

Snow_Removal_Bid_Opening06182019.pdf Snow Blower Bids.2019

http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22419&ItemID=7063
http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22407&ItemID=7063
http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22409&ItemID=7063
http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22408&ItemID=7063


BILL NO.     19-134       RESOLUTION NO.    

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 

EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH M-B COMPANIES, 

INC., FOR SNOW REMOVAL EQUIPMENT AT THE CAPE 

GIRARDEAU REGIONAL AIRPORT, IN THE CITY OF 

CAPE GIRARDEAU, MISSOURI 

________________________________________________________________ 

  

 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPE 

GIRARDEAU, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 ARTICLE 1.  The City Manager, for and on behalf of the City 

of Cape Girardeau, Missouri, is hereby authorized to execute an 

agreement with M-B Companies, Inc., for acquisition of snow 

removal equipment, in the City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri. The 

Agreement shall be in substantially the form attached hereto, 

which document is hereby approved by the City Council, and 

incorporated herein by reference, with such changes therein as 

shall be approved by the officers of the City executing the 

same. 

 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS _______ DAY OF _____________, 2019. 

 

 

 

              

      Bob Fox, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

      _ 

Bruce Taylor, Deputy City Clerk 

 



CGI  Contract Agreement 
 13-077A-2 

 Page 1 of 5 August 12, 2019 

CONTRACT AGREEMENT 

AIRPORT MULTI-TASKING SNOW REMOVAL EQUIPMENT 

CITY OF CAPE GIRARDEAU 

State Block Grant Project No. 13-077A-2 
 
THIS AGREEMENT, made as of this ___________ day of ________________, 
20______, is 
 
BY AND BETWEEN 
 
the OWNER:  Name:    THE CITY OF CAPE GIRARDEAU, MO 
   Address:    401 INDEPENDENCE STREET 
   City/State/Zip Code:  CAPE GIRARDEAU, MO  63703 
 
And the MANUFACTURER: Name:    M-B Companies, Inc. 
     Address:   1200 Park Street 
     City/State/Zip Code:   Chilton, WI 53014 
 
WITNESSETH: 
 
WHEREAS it is the intent of the Owner acquire snow removal equipment for the Cape 
Girardeau Regional Airport at City of Cape Girardeau, MO generally described as 
follows; 
 

PURCHASE OF AIRPORT MULTI-TASKING SNOW REMOVAL EQUIPMENT 
CONSISTING OF ONE MULTI-TASKING SNOW REMOVAL CARRIER 
VEHICLE, ONE HIGH SPEED ROTARY PLOW, ONE 16 FOOT WIDE 
RUNWAY BROOM AND ONE 18 FOOT WIDE FLARED SNOW PLOW. 

 
hereinafter referred to as the Project. 
 
NOW THEREFORE in consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter set forth, 
OWNER and MANUFACTURER agree as follows: 
Article 1 – Work 

It is hereby mutually agreed that for and in consideration of the payments as 
provided for herein to the MANUFACTURER by the OWNER, MANUFACTURER 
shall faithfully furnish all necessary labor, equipment, and material and shall fully 
perform all necessary work to complete the Project in strict accordance with this 
Contract Agreement and the Contract Documents. 



CGI  Contract Agreement 
 13-077A-2 

 Page 2 of 5 August 12, 2019 

Article 2 – Contract Documents 
MANUFACTURER agrees that the Contract Documents consist of the following: this 
Agreement, General Provisions, Supplementary Provisions, Specifications, all 
issued addenda, Notice-to-Bidders, Instructions-to-Bidders, Proposal and associated 
attachments, Insurance certificates, documents incorporated by reference, 
documents incorporated by attachment, and all OWNER authorized change orders 
issued subsequent to the date of this agreement. All documents comprising the 
Contract Documents are complementary to one another and together establish the 
complete terms, conditions and obligations of the MANUFACTURER. All said 
Contract Documents are incorporated by reference into the Contract Agreement as if 
fully rewritten herein or attached thereto.  

Article 3 – Contract Price 
In consideration of the faithful performance and completion of the Work by the 
MANUFACTURER in accordance with the Contract Documents, OWNER shall pay 
the MANUFACTURER an amount equal to as described as follows: 

 
BASE Bid consisting of One MB4 Front Mount Snow Blower Chassis Multi-
Tasking Snow Removal Vehicle and One MB4 High Performance Airport Snow 
Blower Package: 

 
Five Hundred Ninety three thousand, one hundred fifty nine dollars and zero 
cents 
(Amount in Written Words)      

 
$593,159.00 
(Amount in Numerals) 

 
Bid Alternate #1 consisting of One 4,600 Pivot Lift Airport Broom Head, 46 
inch diameter & 16 foot length: 

 
Seventy three thousand, six hundred and twenty seven dollars and zero cents 
(Amount in Written Words)      
 
$73,627.00 
(Amount in Numerals) 

 
Bid Alternate #2 consisting of One P5000 Airport, 18 Foot Wide Flared 
(Reversible) Snow Plow 

 
Thirty Two thousand, one hundred and fifty three dollars and zero cents 
(Amount in Written Words)      
 
$32,153.00 
(Amount in Numerals) 

 



CGI  Contract Agreement 
 13-077A-2 

 Page 3 of 5 August 12, 2019 

subject to the following; 
 

a. Said amounts are based on the schedule of prices for the quantities stated 
in MANUFACTURER’S Bid Proposal, which is attached to and made a part of 
this Agreement; 
 
b. Said amount is the aggregate sum of the result of the 
MANUFACTURER’S stated unit prices multiplied by the associated estimated 
quantities; 

Article 4 – Payment 
Upon the completion of the work and its acceptance by the OWNER, all sums due 
the MANUFACTURER by reason of faithful performance of the work, taking into 
consideration additions to or deductions from the Contract price by reason of 
alterations or modifications of the original Contract, will be paid to the 
MANUFACTURER by the OWNER after said completion and acceptance.   
 
The acceptance of final payment by the MANUFACTURER shall be considered as a 
release in full of all claims against the OWNER, arising out of, or by reason of, the 
work completed, and materials furnished under this Contract. 
 
OWNER shall make progress payments to the MANUFACTURER in accordance 
with the terms set forth in the General Terms and Conditions. 

Article 5 – Contract Time 
The MANUFACTURER agrees to commence work within ten (10) calendar days of 
the date specified in the OWNER’S Notice-to-Proceed. MANUFACTURER further 
agrees to complete said work within (335) THREE HUNDRED AND THIRTY FIVE 
consecutive calendar days of the commencement date stated within the Notice-to-
Proceed. 
 
It is expressly understood and agreed that the stated Contract Time is reasonable 
for the completion of the Work, taking all factors into consideration. Furthermore, 
extensions of the Contract Time may only be permitted by execution of a formal 
modification to this Contract Agreement in accordance with the General Terms and 
Conditions and as approved by the OWNER. 

Article 6 – Liquidated Damages 
The MANUFACTURER and OWNER understand and agree that time is of essence 
for completion of the Work and that the OWNER will suffer additional expense and 
financial loss if said products are not completed and delivered within the authorized 
Contract Time. Furthermore, the MANUFACTURER and OWNER recognize and 
understand the difficulty, delay, and expense in establishing the exact amount of 
actual financial loss and additional expense. Accordingly, in place of requiring such 
proof, the MANUFACTURER expressly agrees to pay the OWNER as liquidated 



CGI  Contract Agreement 
 13-077A-2 

 Page 4 of 5 August 12, 2019 

damages the non-penal sum of ($150) ONE HUNDRED AND FIFTY dollars per day 
for each Calendar day required in excess of the authorized Contract Time. 

 
Furthermore, the MANUFACTURER understands and agrees that; 

 
a. the OWNER has the right to deduct from any moneys due the 
MANUFACTURER, the amount of said liquidated damages; 
 
b. Not Used. 

Article 7 – MANUFACTURER’S Representations 
The MANUFACTURER understands and agrees that all representations made by 
the MANUFACTURER within the Proposal shall apply under this Agreement as if 
fully rewritten herein. 

Article 8 – MANUFACTURER’S Certifications 
The MANUFACTURER understands and agrees that all certifications made by the 
MANUFACTURER within the Proposal shall apply under this Agreement as if fully 
rewritten herein.  

Article 9 – Miscellaneous 
a. MANUFACTURER understands that it shall be solely responsible for the means, 
methods, techniques, sequences and procedures of manufacturer in connection with 
completion of the Project Work; 
 
b. MANUFACTURER understands and agrees that it shall not accomplish any work 
or furnish any materials that are not covered or authorized by the Contract 
Documents unless authorized in writing by the OWNER or ENGINEER; 
 
c. The rights of each party under this Agreement shall not be assigned or 
transferred to any other person, entity, firm or corporation without prior written 
consent of both parties;  
 
d. OWNER and MANUFACTURER each bind itself, their partners, successors, 
assigns and legal representatives to the other party in respect to all covenants, 
agreements, and obligations contained in the Contract Documents. 

Article 10 – OWNER’S Representative 
The OWNER’S Representative, herein referred to as ENGINEER, is defined as 
follows: 
 
Crawford, Murphy & Tilly, Inc. 
One S. Memorial Drive, Suite 500 
St. Louis, MO 63102 
 



CGI  Contract Agreement 
 13-077A-2 

 Page 5 of 5 August 12, 2019 

Said ENGINEER will act as the OWNER’S representative and shall assume all rights 
and authority assigned to the ENGINEER as stated within the Contract Documents 
in connection with the completion of the Project Work. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, OWNER and MANUFACTURER have executed five (5) 
copies of this Agreement on the day and year first noted herein.  

 
OWNER 
 
Name: _________________________________ 
Address: ________________________________ 
 _________________________________ 
 __________________________________ 
 
 
By: __________________________________ 
 Signature 

 
 __________________________________ 
 Title of Representative  

 
 
ATTEST 

 
By:  __________________________________ 
 Signature 

  
__________________________________ 
Title 

 
MANUFACTURER 

 
Name: __________________________________ 
Address: ________________________________  
 __________________________________ 
 __________________________________ 
 
 
By: ___________________________________ 
 Signature 

 
 ___________________________________ 
 Title of Representative  
 
 
ATTEST 
 
By:  ___________________________________ 
 Signature 

  
___________________________________ 
Title 

 



CGI  Contract Agreement 
 13-077A-2 

  August 12, 2019 

 

 
 
 

ATTACHMENT: 
 
 
 

PAGES EXCERPTED FROM M-B’S BID PROPOSAL DOCUMENTS 
SUBMITTED TO THE CITY WITH THEIR PROPOSAL FORM 



 

 

 

 

 



 

 





Staff: 
Agenda:

Ryan Shrimplin AICP, City
Planner
8/19/2019

AGENDA REPORT 
Cape Girardeau City Council 19-187

SUBJECT

A Resolution of support for the proposal from MACO Development Company, LLC, for the Silver Springs II
Apartments housing development.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The attached resolution ratifies the City Council's support of the Silver Springs II Apartments housing
development proposed by MACO Development Company, LLC.  A presentation on the proposed development
will be given during the City Council's study session.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION

MACO Development Company, LLC is proposing to build a three-story elevator building with 60 apartments
for seniors citizens on an approximately 6.83 acre site at 550 North Silver Springs Road.  The proposed project
is the second phase of Silver Springs Apartments.  MACO Development Company, LLC is requesting a
resolution of support from the City Council to include with its tax credit application to the Missouri Housing
Development Commission (MHDC).  A written description and drawings of the proposed development are
attached.  A presentation on the proposed development will be given during the City Council's study session. 
The financing and tax credits are made available through MHDC and will provide the financial resources to
develop these apartments with affordable rents.  These financing and tax credits are limited and competitive
resources.

SUSTAINABILITY: ECONOMIC, ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL IMPACTS

This development will provide safe and affordable housing needed in Cape Girardeau.  It will also help the City
further the goals and objectives of the comprehensive plan related to the provision of different housing types that
meet all socio-economic needs of the community.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends approval of the resolution of support for the Silver Springs II Apartments housing
development.

ATTACHMENTS:
Name: Description:

Resolution-Support_Silver_Springs_II_Apts__MACO_Development.doc Resolution

Silvers_Springs_Apartment_II-Description_and_Narrative.pdf Sivler Springs Apartment-Description and Narrative

3516_Silver_Springs.p.pdf 3516 Silver Springs

http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22421&ItemID=7053
http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22375&ItemID=7053
http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22376&ItemID=7053


BILL NO.    19-135       RESOLUTION NO.    

 

A RESOLUTION OF SUPPORT FOR THE PROPOSAL FROM 

MACO DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, LLC, FOR THE SILVER 

SPRINGS II APARTMENTS HOUSING DEVELOPMENT 

___________            

 

 WHEREAS, MACO Development Company, LLC, is proposing to 

develop the property at 550 North Silver Springs Road for a 

senior housing apartment community; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Cape Girardeau recognizes the need for 

safe, affordable, quality senior housing; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the financing and tax credits available through 

the Missouri Housing Development Commission will provide the 

financial resources to develop these apartments with affordable 

rents; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the financing and tax credits available through 

the Missouri Housing Development Commission are limited and 

competitive resources. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF CAPE GIRARDEAU, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 ARTICLE 1.  The City Council hereby expresses its support 

for the proposal from MACO Development Company, LLC, for the 

2019 MHDC Multi-family Rental Production Program Notice of 

Funding Availability, for the Silver Springs II Apartments 

housing development. 

 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS       DAY OF          , 2019. 

 

 

 

              

      Bob Fox, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

   ___      ______ 

Bruce Taylor, Deputy City Clerk 

 





SILVER SPRINGS
APARTMENTS II,

Cape Girardeau, MO

JULY 2019

COPYRIGHT  a 2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHASE 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHASE 2



SITE

SITE LOCATION MAP

SILVER SPRINGS APARTMENTS II
Cape Girardeau, Missouri

JULY 2019

COPYRIGHT  a 2019

GPS WAYPOINT
N 37° 18' 45"
W 89° 33' 59"

APPROX. 550 N. SILVER SPRINGS
CAPE GIRARDEAU, MO 63701



SITE PLAN

SILVER SPRINGS APARTMENTS II
Cape Girardeau, Missouri

JULY 2019

COPYRIGHT  a 2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHASE 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHASE 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3-STORY BLDG.  (60) 2-BR UNITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
100 YEAR FLOODPLAIN 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1" = 160'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE SIZE (PHASE 2): 6.83 ACRES PARKING: (125) PARKING SPACES TOTAL



1ST FLOOR BUILDING PLAN
JULY 2019

SILVER SPRINGS APARTMENTS II
Cape Girardeau, Missouri COPYRIGHT  a 2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACC. 2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAILBOXES

AutoCAD SHX Text
MECH

AutoCAD SHX Text
OFFICE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text
 STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMON AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1" = 40'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
NON-DWELLING AREA = 5,222 SF UNIT DWELLING AREA = 17,100 SF TOTAL 1ST FLOOR AREA = 22,322 SF 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(20) 2-BR UNITS 1ST FLOOR 



2ND FLOOR BUILDING PLAN
JULY 2019

SILVER SPRINGS APARTMENTS II
Cape Girardeau, Missouri COPYRIGHT  a 2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACC. 2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
MECH

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMUNITY AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMON AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FITNESS ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
TV LOUNGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1" = 40'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
NON-DWELLING AREA = 5,222 SF UNIT DWELLING AREA = 17,100 SF TOTAL 2ND FLOOR AREA = 22,322 SF 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(20) 2-BR UNITS 2ND FLOOR 



3RD FLOOR BUILDING PLAN
JULY 2019

SILVER SPRINGS APARTMENTS II
Cape Girardeau, Missouri COPYRIGHT  a 2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACC. 2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
MECH

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMON AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-BR UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPUTER CENTER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMUNITY AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
TV LOUNGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1" = 40'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
NON-DWELLING AREA = 5,222 SF UNIT DWELLING AREA = 17,100 SF TOTAL 3RD FLOOR AREA = 22,322 SF 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(20) 2-BR UNITS 3RD FLOOR 



JULY 2019

SILVER SPRINGS APARTMENTS II
Cape Girardeau, Missouri COPYRIGHT  a 2019

1ST FLOOR COMMON AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEVATOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIL BOXES

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"



JULY 2019

SILVER SPRINGS APARTMENTS II
Cape Girardeau, Missouri COPYRIGHT  a 2019

2ND FLOOR COMMON AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEVATOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"



JULY 2019

SILVER SPRINGS APARTMENTS II
Cape Girardeau, Missouri COPYRIGHT  a 2019

3RD FLOOR COMMON AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEVATOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"



ACCESSIBLE 2-BR UNIT

SILVER SPRINGS APARTMENTS II
Cape Girardeau, Missouri

JULY 2019

COPYRIGHT  a 2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 3/16" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
855 SF MEASURED OUTSIDE OF STUD WALL AND CENTERLINE OF PARTY WALL



TYPICAL 2-BR UNIT

SILVER SPRINGS APARTMENTS II
Cape Girardeau, Missouri

JULY 2019

COPYRIGHT  a 2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
75% OF UNITS TO RECEIVE SHOWERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
25% OF UNITS TO RECEIVE TUB/SHOWERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 3/16" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
855 SF MEASURED OUTSIDE OF STUD WALL AND CENTERLINE OF PARTY WALL



BUILDING ELEVATION

SILVER SPRINGS APARTMENTS II
Cape Girardeau, Missouri

JULY 2019

COPYRIGHT  a 2019



Staff: 
Agenda:

Bruce W. Loy, Airport Manager
8/19/2019

AGENDA REPORT 
Cape Girardeau City Council 19 -188

SUBJECT

A resolution authorizing the City Manager to submit a letter of recommendation to the U.S. Department of
Transportation recommending SkyWest Airlines provide scheduled air carrier service for two years beginning
December 1, 2019, under the Essential Air Service program at the Cape Girardeau Regional Airport.  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Essential Air Service (EAS) contract with SkyWest Airlines and the U.S. Department of Transportation
(U.S. DOT), funding SkyWest Airlines to provide scheduled air carrier passenger service between the Cape
Girardeau Regional Airport (CGI) and Chicago O'Hare International Airport (ORD), expires November 30,
2019.  As such, on May 14, 2019, the U.S. DOT submitted a Request for Proposals (RFP) to all air carriers
interested in providing scheduled air carrier service at CGI, with a June 26, 2019 due date for the airline
proposals.  Additionally, the U.S. DOT included the communities of Quincy, Illinois and Marion, Illinois in the
RFP.  

Cape Girardeau received proposals from three (3) air carriers: Air Choice One, Boutique, and SkyWest.  Air
Choice One and Boutique submitted proposals for 24 weekly round-trips to varying destinations out of CGI,
including Chicago, St. Louis, and Nashville.  SkyWest, because they fly a 50-seat Regional Jet, is only allowed
to propose 12 weekly round-trips.  The Airport Advisory Board is recommending to the City Council, and
Airport Management agrees, to keep SkyWest as the scheduled air carrier for a two-year contract beginning
December 1, 2019.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION

Beginning December 1, 2017, SkyWest Airlines began providing 50 seat Regional Jet service between the Cape
Girardeau Regional Airport (CGI) and the Chicago O'Hare International Airport under the United Airlines code. 
Since then, CGI passenger boardings have nearly doubled, with an 84% increase YTD, comparing Jan-July,
2019 boarding numbers with our 2017 numbers.

With the SkyWest contract ending December 1, 2019, the USDOT submitted RFP's to all air carriers interested
in providing scheduled air service for the CGI community and region.  We received proposals from three
carriers: Air Choice One, Boutique, and SkyWest.

The proposals are summarized below:

Air Choice One: Service provided in the Cessna Grand Caravan and the Beech 1900
  
Option 1: 4 daily Round Trips (RT) from CGI to St. Louis (STL)
Option 2: 2 daily RT to STL and 2 daily RT to Nashville (BNA)

Boutique:  Service provided in 8 or 9 seat Pilatus PC-12

Option 1: 2 daily RT from CGI to ORD and 2 daily RT to STL
Option 2: 2 daily RT from CGI to ORD and 2 daily RT to BNA                
                   
SkyWest (United Express): Service provided in 50 seat CRJ-200 Regional Jet



Option 1: 2 daily direct RT flights from CGI to Chicago O'Hare
                                          (weekend schedule is 1 RT each Sat. and Sun.)    
                                                       
These proposals were provided with the understanding the City of Cape Girardeau would submit a
recommendation to the U.S. DOT by August 9, 2019; however, we asked the USDOT for a two week extension,
which they approved, making our deadline August 23, 2019.   After viewing the proposals, the Airport Advisory
Board felt interviewing the carriers was unnecessary. Their reasoning was simple.  Both carriers,  Boutique and
Air Choice fly eight (8) and/or nine (9) seat aircraft making it nearly impossible to mathematically reach 10,000
annual boardings, even considering a constant 80% load factor.  The Board voted at their July 9, 2019 meeting,
and agreed unanimously to recommend SkyWest.  Airport Staff agrees with the Airport Advisory Board to
recommend the U.S. DOT award a new, two-year EAS contract to SkyWest Airlines, providing a total of 12
weekly, direct round-trip flights between CGI and ORD. 

In selecting a carrier to provide subsidized EAS for a community, the U.S. DOT will consider five factors: (a)
service reliability; (b) contractual and marketing arrangements with a larger carrier at the hub; (c) interline
arrangements with a larger carrier at the hub; (d) community views, giving substantial weight to the views of the
elected officials representing the users; and (e) whether the carrier has included a plan in its proposal to market
its service to the community. 

As stated above, the U.S. DOT will give substantial weight to the recommendation of the City Council when
making their air carrier selection for the City of Cape Girardeau. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The airport will continue to see increases in revenues as a result of the continuation of scheduled air service with
SkyWest Airlines.  Based on current passenger boardings through July, 2019, the City will see $1,000,000
annually in guaranteed Airport Improvement Program (AIP) grant funds.  Considering this is a two-year
contract, that would mean $2,000,000 in AIP grant funds over the term of the EAS contract.

Including office rental, ramp fees, landing fees, and fuel sales, the total revenues expected as a result of the new
contract with SkyWest are estimated to be just over $200,000 annually, or more than $400,000 over the term of
the two-year contract.  When adding the potential for the AIP grant funds, the airport could see $2.4 million in
total revenue and grant funding as a result of our continued air service with SkyWest.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended the City Council approve a resolution authorizing the City Manager to submit a letter of
recommendation to the United States Department of Transportation (U.S. DOT) recommending the U.S. DOT
fund a new, two-year contract with SkyWest Airlines, as proposed, beginning December 1, 2019, to provide 12
weekly round-trip flights with scheduled air carrier service under the Essential Air Service program at the Cape
Girardeau Regional Airport.

ATTACHMENTS:
Name: Description:

CGI_2019-
Air_Choice_One_Proposal_to_Provide_Essential_Air_Service_at__Cape_Girardeau_MO__June_26th__2019.pdf

2019 Air Choice One EAS
Proposal

CGI_2019-Boutique_Air_CGI-MWA-UIN_2019_Bid.pdf 2019 Boutique EAS Proposal

CGI-2019_SkyWest_Proposal_to_Provide_EAS_at_CGI_MWA_UIN_2019.pdf 2019 SkyWest EAS Proposal

http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22423&ItemID=7061
http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22424&ItemID=7061
http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22425&ItemID=7061






 

Air Service Proposal 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Cape Girardeau, Missouri DOT-OST-1996-1559 

Marion, Illinois DOT-OST-2000-7881 

Quincy, Illinois DOT-OST-2003-14492 
 

 
June 26, 2019 

  

 



 

About Boutique Air 

Our Story 
Headquartered in San Francisco, California, Boutique Air has been in operation since 2007. We              
began by flying fire surveillance missions for the U.S. Forestry Service and Bureau of Land               
Management. We evolved to provide air charter services across the west coast with our fleet of                
Pilatus and Cessna aircraft. As a charter operator we have received certifications from both              
industry-leading safety organizations, ARG/US and Wyvern. Boutique Air employs pilots that are            
highly experienced and hold the most advanced FAA ratings - a key reason for our continued                
perfect safety record.  
 
In July of 2012, Boutique Air applied for commuter operating authority from the Department of               
Transportation. We quickly passed tests on financial fitness and management competency,           
receiving authority for scheduled service in January of 2014. We began flying scheduled service              
between Los Angeles and Las Vegas in January of 2014. 
 
We have worked to develop effective distribution channels. We have connections in place with              
all of the major Global Distribution Systems (GDSs), which travel agents use to access the               
market. You will find us on Worldspan and Galileo (Travelport), Sabre, and Amadeus. In              
addition, we are on the major Online Travel Agencies (OTAs), including Expedia, Travelocity,             
Priceline, Orbitz, CheapTickets, and CheapOAir. 
 
 

EAS Contracts 
On April 22, 2014 Boutique Air received its first EAS contract when the DOT selected the airline                 
to provide service between Clovis and DFW. Since then, we have continued our track record of                
success and now serve 16 different EAS communities and operate out of 30 different airports.               
Continuing on a path of successful growth in the EAS market, Boutique Air began service to                
Johnstown, PA and Victoria, TX in November of 2018, and has been recommended by the town                
of Rutland, VT to become their next air service carrier. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

548 Market St, Suite 73298 | San Francisco, CA 94104 | t. 415.449.0505 | f. 415.738.7671 
1 



 

What People Are Saying About Boutique Air 
 
Boutique Air PC-12, one of the best turboprop aircraft on the market!... Give them a try!! 

-Tarek A. via Yelp.com 
 

We also feel that the PC-12 aircraft bid by Boutique Air presents the safest and most                
comfortable option for the traveling public. 

-Hon. Mayor David Lansford in Recommendation Letter 
City of Clovis, NM 

 
Flew with Boutique from LA to Vegas and back and must say I was extremely surprised. From                 
the ease of check-in, To the flight itself, the whole process was great. Price was competitive                
with any other airline out there. I plan on flying boutique for all my Vegas outings, and may even                   
look into renting the whole plane for a group trip. Thanks Boutique! 

-Kevin J. via Yelp.com 
 

We find that Boutique Air is fit, willing and able to operate as a commuter air carrier,  
and capable of providing reliable Essential Air Service... 

-Susan L. Kurland in Clovis EAS Award 
Asst. Sec. for Aviation and International Affairs 

US DOT 
 

Right now Boutique Air is a very cool secret. 
-Examiner.com 

 
Flew with Boutique Air from LA to Las Vegas round trip and it was a great experience. Good                  
service, on time departures, and a hassle free and nice way to travel in general. A really                 
nice pilot and copilot as well. 

-Patrick S. via Yelp.com 
 
Smooth flights and personable staff are part of the experience… 

-Clovis News Journal 

  

548 Market St, Suite 73298 | San Francisco, CA 94104 | t. 415.449.0505 | f. 415.738.7671 
2 



 

Route Map 

 

  

548 Market St, Suite 73298 | San Francisco, CA 94104 | t. 415.449.0505 | f. 415.738.7671 
3 



 

Aircraft:  
Boutique Air currently operates a modern fleet of Pilatus PC-12 aircraft. All flights are flown by                
Captains with over 1,200 hours of flight experience and an instrument rating. While we are               
certified to fly single pilot we opt to fly with a two pilot crew. Boutique Air ensures pilots provide                   
a level of customer service beyond that of normal commercial airlines. 
  

● 8 Passenger Executive Configuration or 9 Passenger Commuter Configuration 
● Pressurized Cabin 
● Power Outlets 
● Enclosed Lavatory 

 
 
 
 
 

548 Market St, Suite 73298 | San Francisco, CA 94104 | t. 415.449.0505 | f. 415.738.7671 
4 



 

Historical Passenger Traffic Performance 
Boutique Air has established a proven track record in resuscitating air service in EAS              
communities which have been devastated by poor execution from prior carriers as illustrated by              
the passenger traffic graphs below. 

 
 

 

548 Market St, Suite 73298 | San Francisco, CA 94104 | t. 415.449.0505 | f. 415.738.7671 
5 



 

Note on Codeshare, Interline and MileagePlus Frequent Flyer Agreements 

Boutique Air launched its interline agreement with United Airlines in May 2017 and its              
codeshare agreement in May 2018. Customers have flow-through ticketing and baggage           
capabilities for those flights that connect with United Airlines. 
 
Passengers are also able to book through United.com and connect with any of United’s flights at                
our mutual hubs.  
 
Boutique Air also participates in United Airlines’ MileagePlus Frequent Flyer Program.           
Passengers can earn and redeem award miles on all Boutique Air flights.  
 
Boutique Air is also proud to announce that it launched an interline agreement with              
American Airlines in December of 2018. 
 
(Image of interline fares currently available from MSS through Boston to Newark on United.com) 

 

548 Market St, Suite 73298 | San Francisco, CA 94104 | t. 415.449.0505 | f. 415.738.7671 
6 



 

Proposal 

Overview 
Our proposals would be flown in eight or nine-seat, modern, pressurized Pilatus PC-12 aircraft.              
The term is for two years. 
 
CGI 24 Weekly Nonstop Roundtrips (Daily RTs) 
 ORD STL BNA TOTAL SUBSIDY 

CGI 2 2 0 $2,979,765 

CGI 2 0 2 $3,039,192 

 
MWA 36 Weekly Nonstop Roundtrips (Daily RTs) 
 ORD STL BNA TOTAL SUBSIDY 

MWA 2 4 0 $3,289,698 

MWA 0 3 3 $3,239,205 

 
UIN 36 Weekly Nonstop Roundtrips (Daily RTs) 
 ORD STL TOTAL SUBSIDY 

UIN 2 4 $3,290,756 

UIN 0 6 $2,903,318 

 
 
In order to increase brand recognition in these communities, Boutique Air will spend at least               
$50,000 per year in each community if it is selected for advertising & marketing to help ensure                 
that air service for the community is a success. We will utilize a combination of radio, print,                 
billboard, TV, and internet advertising. 
 
Note on Service Start Date 
Boutique Air will begin service 60-90 days after the DOT issues the order selecting Boutique Air                
as the EAS carrier. Boutique air will start service as early as operationally possible and will                
coordinate with the incumbent carrier to ensure there is not a service interruption. 
 
Note on Selection by Multiple Communities 
If Boutique Air is selected to provide service in both Quincy and Marion the annual subsidy can                 
be reduced by $35,000 per community or $70,000 total. In order for Boutique Air to be selected                 
in Cape Girardeau it must also be selected to serve at least one of the other two communities;                  
this combination allows us to reduce our Cape Girardeau costs by $200,000, which has been               

548 Market St, Suite 73298 | San Francisco, CA 94104 | t. 415.449.0505 | f. 415.738.7671 
7 



 

done in the matrix above. Marion and Quincy, however, can be selected as stand alone               
contracts.  
 

 
Community Input 
Shortly after the bids are complete, Boutique Air will schedule meetings with airport and/or city               
officials. This will allow us to answer any questions and provide additional information. 
 
While we can’t promise we will be able to implement everyone’s suggestions, we welcome              
feedback from the community, as well as anyone who may have an interest in the proposed                
flights. What we can promise is that we will listen to your feedback, and give it the attention and                   
consideration it deserves. 
 
With respect and appreciation, 
 
Shawn Simpson 
CEO 
  

548 Market St, Suite 73298 | San Francisco, CA 94104 | t. 415.449.0505 | f. 415.738.7671 
8 



 

Cape Girardeau, MO 
24 Nonstop RTs Summary Financials 
Operations ORD STL BNA 

 Scheduled Flights 2,496 2,496 2,496 

 Completed Flights (98%) 2,446 2,446 2,446 

 Scheduled Block Hours 4,326 2,038 2,662 

 Scheduled Seats 19,968 19,968 19,968 

 Scheduled ASMs 6,769,152 2,256,384 3,554,304 

 
    

Revenue    

 Passengers 14,976 13,578 13,578 

 Average Fare $110 $49 $69 

 Fare Revenue $1,647,360 $665,334 $936,899 

 Total Revenue $1,647,360 $665,334 $936,899 

 
    

Expenses    

 Fuel $1,042,786 $491,313 $641,714 

 Ownership $960,000 $760,000 $760,000 

 Maintenance and Reserves $1,739,213 $819,437 $1,070,285 

 Crew $673,046 $403,828 $420,803 

 Airport Rent $276,373 $274,562 $136,678 

 Landing Fees $35,212 $9,129 $57,905 

 Staff $175,500 $169,000 $182,000 

 Insurance $20,000 $20,000 $20,000 

 Marketing and Distribution $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 

 Other Indirect Costs $188,403 $101,459 $131,171 

 Total Costs $5,160,533 $3,098,727 $3,470,555 

 
    

Profit Element $258,027 $154,936 $173,528 

 Margin 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 

 
    

Total Annual Subsidy Year 1 $3,771,200 $2,588,330 $2,707,185 
** Year 2 subject to a 2.5% adjustment for inflation 
 
 
 
 

548 Market St, Suite 73298 | San Francisco, CA 94104 | t. 415.449.0505 | f. 415.738.7671 
9 



 

Marion, IL 
36 Nonstop RTs Summary Financials 
Operations ORD STL BNA 

 Scheduled Flights 3,744 3,744 3,744 

 Completed Flights (98%) 3,669 3,669 3,669 

 Scheduled Block Hours 5,616 2,496 3,557 

 Scheduled Seats 29,952 29,952 29,952 

 Scheduled ASMs 8,895,744 2,995,200 5,121,792 

 
    

Revenue    

 Passengers 20,367 19,469 19,469 

 Average Fare $119 $45 $45 

 Fare Revenue $2,423,716 $876,096 $876,096 

 Total Revenue $2,423,716 $876,096 $876,096 

 
    

Expenses    

 Fuel $1,353,616 $601,607 $857,290 

 Ownership $960,000 $760,000 $760,000 

 Maintenance and Reserves $2,257,632 $1,003,392 $1,429,834 

 Crew $887,630 $394,502 $562,166 

 Airport Rent $386,317 $365,124 $227,240 

 Landing Fees $53,797 $14,672 $87,835 

 Staff $175,500 $169,000 $182,000 

 Insurance $20,000 $20,000 $20,000 

 Marketing and Distribution $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 

 Other Indirect Costs $237,408 $118,848 $165,158 

 Total Costs $6,381,901 $3,497,146 $4,341,524 

 
    

Profit Element $319,095 $174,857 $217,076 

 Margin 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 

 
    

Total Annual Subsidy Year 1 $4,277,280 $2,795,907 $3,682,504 

    
** Year 2 subject to a 2.5% adjustment for inflation 
 
 
 

548 Market St, Suite 73298 | San Francisco, CA 94104 | t. 415.449.0505 | f. 415.738.7671 
10 



 

Quincy, IL 
36 Nonstop RTs Summary Financials 
Operations ORD STL 

 Scheduled Flights 3,744 3,744 

 Completed Flights (98%) 3,669 3,669 

 Scheduled Block Hours 4,742 2,746 

 Scheduled Seats 29,952 29,952 

 Scheduled ASMs 6,529,536 2,815,488 

 
   

Revenue   

 Passengers 19,469 19,469 

 Average Fare $79 $45 

 Fare Revenue $1,538,035 $876,096 

 Total Revenue $1,538,035 $876,096 

 
   

Expenses   

 Fuel $1,143,054 $661,768 

 Ownership $760,000 $760,000 

 Maintenance and Reserves $1,906,445 $1,103,731 

 Crew $749,555 $433,953 

 Airport Rent $275,242 $258,964 

 Landing Fees $52,818 $13,694 

 Staff $175,500 $169,000 

 Insurance $20,000 $20,000 

 Marketing and Distribution $50,000 $50,000 

 Other Indirect Costs $204,211 $128,333 

 Total Costs $5,336,825 $3,599,442 

 
   

Profit Element $266,841 $179,972 

 Margin 5.0% 5.0% 

 
   

Total Annual Subsidy Year 1 $4,065,631 $2,903,318 
** Year 2 subject to a 2.5% adjustment for inflation 
 
 

548 Market St, Suite 73298 | San Francisco, CA 94104 | t. 415.449.0505 | f. 415.738.7671 
11 



 

 

 

 
 

444 S. River Road | St. George Utah 84790 | 435.634.3000 | skywest.com 

June 25, 2019 
 
Michael Martin 
United States Department of Transportation  
Office of Aviation Analysis 
1200 New Jersey Ave SE 
Washington, DC 20590 
 
SkyWest Airlines’ Essential Air Service Proposal for Marion, IL, Quincy, IL, and Cape Girardeau, MO.  
 
Dear Mr. Martin: 
 
Attached is SkyWest Airlines’ proposal to provide air service from Marion, IL, Cape Girardeau, MO and Quincy, IL to 
Chicago O’Hare International Airport (ORD). SkyWest welcomes the opportunity to continue service in Quincy, IL and 
Cape Girardeau, MO while adding new service to Marion, IL. Our combination of safe and reliable aircraft, well-timed 
schedules, and access to one of the world’s largest airline networks will provide passengers with quality air service and 
stimulate economic growth in the region. 
 
As directed by the RFP, we will offer each community 12 round-trip nonstop flights per week for a two year term to 
(ORD). All flights will depart and arrive to facilitate seamless connections to United’s large and diverse flight schedule 
in ORD which will make the service convenient for both business and leisure travelers. With more than 620 United or 
United Express departures per day at Chicago O’Hare International Airport to over 175 unique destinations, our 
proposal makes it easy to get to destinations across the country and around the world. All flights are subject to gate 
availability and don’t have up line scheduling restrictions. 
 
SkyWest believes this proposal provides the best overall option for air service in Marion, Quincy, and Cape Girardeau, 
with excellent connectivity at Chicago O’Hare International Airport. 
 

Thank you for your consideration. 

 

Greg Atkin 

Managing Director – Market Development 

SkyWest Airlines 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



skywest.com 

About SkyWest Airlines 
 

 

With over 13,000 aviation professionals operating nearly 

2,400 daily flights, SkyWest Airlines connects millions of 

passengers each month to 258 destinations across North 

America. SkyWest operates in partnership with Alaska 

Airlines, American Airlines, Delta Air Lines, and United 

Airlines and has a fleet of 484 aircraft. 

Headquartered in St. George, Utah, SkyWest’s industry- 

leading workforce and excellent leadership team have 

consistently generated top tier operational reliability, 

setting the standard for excellence in the regional airline 

industry. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Fortune World’s Most Admired Companies 2019 

 ATW Regional Airline of the Year three times 

 Bombardier’s top reliability award for the CRJ200 

six times 

 The FAA’s AMT Employer Gold Award for 

Excellence multiple times 

 



Critical Attributes of SkyWest’s Proposal 

 

50 Seat Twinjet Service 

The CRJ-200 is a quiet and modern twinjet that is both safe and fast. All SkyWest CRJ200 aircraft 

are serviced by a highly-trained flight attendant and each plane features a restroom, further 

adding to the comfort and convenience of each passenger’s flying experience. SkyWest operates 

200 CRJ-200 aircraft and plans to keep this aircraft in our fleet for many years to come.  

 

 

 

  

  

 

Superior Traffic Generation 

SkyWest 50 seat jets provide the best opportunity for passenger growth. SkyWest service 

provides significantly higher seat capacity than other regional operators and delivers industry 

leading reliability. Passengers also benefit greatly from seamless connectivity to one the largest 

global airlines in the world. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Critical Attributes of SkyWest’s Proposal 

 

Superior Network and Connectivity 

This service will be marketed as United Express and will feature seamless bookings, connections, 

and baggage transfers that will access United Airlines’ vast global network. This includes over 

5,400 daily flights to more than 370 airports. United is also the largest member of the Star 

Alliance network, which allows travelers to connect to more than 22,000 daily flights to nearly all 

parts of the globe.  This full codeshare and connectivity makes it simple for passengers to plan 

their travel and to effortlessly fly to their destination. 

 

Superior Airports and Terminals 

Chicago is among the largest cities in the country. In addition, it is also the chief hub for United 

Airlines. Flights will arrive and depart from United’s main terminal. This means passengers will not 

have to re-clear security or hop on a bus to make a connection. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Route Map 



Critical Attributes of SkyWest’s Proposal 

 

Superior Reliability 

SkyWest has been named the most reliable CRJ-200 operator in North America five times since 

2007. We have also been named the #1 On Time carrier for contiguous 48 states several times.  
    

 

Subsidy Cap Compliant 

All applicable SkyWest EAS communities are comfortably compliant with the DOT’s $200 per 

passenger subsidy cap.  In Quincy, Marion, and Cape Girardeau our proposals are also well within 

compliance of the subsidy cap.  It is likely that most other air service proposals will either be not 

compliant or dangerously close to non-compliance with the cap.  Those proposals put air service 

in these communities in jeopardy.  The SkyWest proposal will provide measurable assurance in 

complying with DOT regulations and ensuring that each community is well positioned for 

continued future air service. 

 

Marketing Plan 

SkyWest will actively market the service with a variety of promotions. We will dedicate $20,000 

to each community for marketing support. We advertise in print, digital, radio, online, and other 

means necessary. This effort will assist in generating awareness of the flight options offered. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 



EAS Bid    

 
SkyWest Airlines        
Essential Air Service Bid       
6/26/2019        

   MWA  CGI  UIN 

   ORD  ORD  ORD 

Number of round trips per week  12  12  12 

        
Aircraft type    CRJ  CRJ  CRJ 

        
Passenger Revenue       
Passengers              27,000                 25,000               21,000  

Average fare    $          79.00    $             79.00    $           79.00  

Revenue    $  2,133,000    $     1,975,000    $   1,659,000  

        
Block Time        
Trip block time (minutes)                     82                         84                       76  

Total scheduled block time                 1,706                   1,747                 1,581  

Total completed block time   98%               1,671                   1,712                 1,549  

        
RPMS        
Passengers              27,000                 25,000               21,000  

Stage length                    297                      339                     222  

Total RPMs         8,019,000           8,475,000         4,662,000  

        
ASMs        
Scheduled departures                1,248                   1,248                 1,248  

Competed departures 98%               1,223                   1,223                 1,223  

Stage length                    297                      339                     222  

Available Seats                      50                         50                       50  

Total ASMs      18,532,800         21,153,600       13,852,800  

        
Marketing Costs    $        20,000    $          20,000    $         20,000  

Direct operating expenses   $  3,687,701    $     3,703,929    $   3,386,643  

RPM related    $      110,680    $        102,482    $         86,085  

Departure related    $  1,080,262    $     1,080,262    $   1,080,262  

ASM related    $      172,726    $        197,152    $      129,108  

Total expenses    $  5,071,369    $     5,103,824    $   4,702,098  

        
Operating income (loss)   $ (2,938,369)   $   (3,128,824)   $ (3,043,098) 

        
5% profit margin    $      241,494    $        243,039    $      223,909  

        
Annual subsidy requirement   $  3,179,862    $     3,371,863    $   3,267,007  

        
Effective Subsidy rate per unit       
Subsidy per trip    $          2,600    $             2,757    $           2,671  

Subsidy per passenger   $              118    $                135    $              156  

        
Load factor   43%  40%  34% 

 



Staff: 
Agenda:

Gary Hill, Building and Code
Enforcement Manager
8/19/2019

AGENDA REPORT 
Cape Girardeau City Council 19-189

SUBJECT

An Ordinance amending Chapter 7 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri, relating
to Automatic Pool Covers.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This proposed Ordinance would repeal the provision which allows for an automatic pool cover to be provided as
a substitution for a fence barrier.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION

Section 305.1(2) of the 2015 International Swimming Pool and Spa Code permits an automatic swimming pool
cover that complies with American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM) F1346 as a substitution for a
fence barrier.

Since recently amended City Ordinance language now refers to the International Swimming Pool and Spa Code
for barrier requirements, an automatic swimming pool cover is now permitted to be substituted for a fence
barrier.

Inspections and the Board of Appeals believe the effectiveness of an automatic swimming pool cover is
substantially dependent on the electrical and mechanical reliability of the cover.  The effectiveness of an
automatic swimming pool cover is also substantially dependent on the responsible behavior of the owner to
consistently close the cover when the swimming pool is not in use. 

As of this date, Inspections has had very few complaints regarding unsecured swimming pools due to defective
fences, self-closing hinges, and self-latching gates.   Inspections has serious concerns if an automatic swimming
pool cover is permitted to be substituted for a fence barrier with self-closing hinges and self-latching gates;
faulty equipment and irresponsible and inconsistent behavior of many pool owners will create numerous
unsecured and unsafe swimming pools throughout the city.

On July 11, 2019 the Board of Appeals voted in support of Staff’s recommendation to amend Section 7-93 (11)
of City’s Code of Ordinances to repeal the automatic swimming pool cover exception from the 2015
International Swimming Pool and Spa Code.  Inspections and the Board of Appeals believe and experiences
have shown, a fence barrier with self-closing hinges and self-latching gates is an effective, safe, and dependable
way to secure swimming pools.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends approval of an Ordinance amending Chapter 7 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cape
Girardeau, Missouri, relating to Automatic Pool Covers.

BOARD OR COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION



On July 11, 2019 the Board of Appeals voted in support of Staff’s recommendation to amend Section 7-93 (11)
of City’s Code of Ordinances to repeal the automatic swimming pool cover exception from the 2015
International Swimming Pool and Spa Code.

ATTACHMENTS:
Name: Description:

Sec._7_257.___Same_Amendments..doc Sec. 7-257 Same Amendments

http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22341&ItemID=7031


BILL NO.     19-129        ORDINANCE NO. ___________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 7 OF THE CODE 

OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CAPE GIRARDEAU, 

MISSOURI, REGARDING AUTOMATIC POOL COVERS  

_________________________________________________________________ 

 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPE 

GIRARDEAU, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 ARTICLE 1. Section 7-93, entitled “Same-Amendments”, of 

Article IIIa of Chapter 7 of the Code of Ordinances of the City 

of Cape Girardeau, reading as follows: 

 

Sec. 7-93. - Same—Amendments.  

 

The 2015 International Swimming Pool and Spa Code adopted 

by this article is hereby modified and amended in the 

following respects.  

 

(1)  Section 101.1 is amended to read as follows:  

"Title. These regulations shall be known as the Swimming 

Pool and Spa Code of the City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri, 

hereinafter referred to, as "this code"."  

 

(2)  Section 103 is amended to read: "Inspection Services 

Division."  

 

(3)  Section 103.1 is amended to read:  

"Creation of enforcement agency. The Inspection Services 

Division is hereby created and the official in charge 

thereof shall be known as the code official."  

 

(4)  Section 103.2 is hereby amended to read:  

"The code official shall be appointed by the city manager."  

 

(5)  Section 105.6.2, Fee Schedule, is hereby amended to 

read:  

"The fees for work shall be as indicated in the following 

schedule: City Fee Schedule."  

 

(6)  Section 105.6.3, Fee Refunds, is hereby amended to 

read:  

"Upon the applicant's request, any amount remaining from 

the deposit which exceeds the cost of processing the 

application will be refunded to the applicant."  

 

(7)  Section 107.4, Violation Penalties, is hereby amended 

to read:  

"Violation Penalties. Any person who shall violate a 

provision of this code, or fail to comply therewith, or 



with any of the requirements thereof, shall upon conviction 

thereof, be subject to a fine of not less than fifty 

dollars ($50.00) per day nor more than five hundred dollars 

($500.00) per day for each day the violation exists or 

continues, or imprisonment for a term not to exceed ninety 

(90) days, or both, at the discretion of the court. Each 

day that a violation continues after due notice has been 

served shall be deemed as a separate offense."  

 

(8)  Section 107.5, Stop work orders, is hereby amended to 

read:  

"Upon notice from the code official, work on any system 

that is being performed contrary to the provisions of this 

code or in a dangerous or unsafe manner shall immediately 

cease. Such notice shall be in writing and shall be given 

to the owner of the property, or to the owner's authorized 

agent, or to the person performing the work. The notice 

shall state the conditions under which work is authorized 

to resume. Where an emergency exists, the code official 

shall not be required to give a written notice prior to 

stopping the work. Any person who shall continue any work 

in or about the structure after having been served with a 

stop work order, except such work as that person is 

directed to perform to remove a violation or unsafe 

condition, shall upon conviction thereof, be subject to a 

fine of not less than fifty dollars ($50.00) nor more than 

five hundred dollars ($500.00) per day for each day the 

violation exists or continues, or imprisonment for a term 

not to exceed ninety (90) days, or both, at the discretion 

of the court. Each day that a violation continues after due 

notice has been served shall be deemed as a separate 

offense."  

 

(9)  Section 108, Means of Appeal, is hereby modified, 

changed and amended to read as per section 7-8 of the Code 

of Ordinances of the City of Cape Girardeau.  

 

(10)  Section 305.2.11, Horizontal Balusters, is hereby 

created to read:  

"Horizontal balusters shall be prohibited in locations 

where guards or barriers are required."  

 

is hereby repealed in its entirety and a new Section 7-93, 

entitled “Same-Amendments”, is hereby enacted in lieu thereof, 

in words and figures, to read as follows, to-wit: 

 

Sec. 7-93. - Same—Amendments.  

 

The 2015 International Swimming Pool and Spa Code adopted 

by this article is hereby modified and amended in the 

following respects.  



 

(1)  Section 101.1 is amended to read as follows:  

"Title. These regulations shall be known as the Swimming 

Pool and Spa Code of the City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri, 

hereinafter referred to, as "this code"."  

 

(2)  Section 103 is amended to read: "Inspection Services 

Division."  

 

(3)  Section 103.1 is amended to read:  

"Creation of enforcement agency. The Inspection Services 

Division is hereby created and the official in charge 

thereof shall be known as the code official."  

 

(4)  Section 103.2 is hereby amended to read:  

"The code official shall be appointed by the city manager."  

 

(5)  Section 105.6.2, Fee Schedule, is hereby amended to 

read:  

"The fees for work shall be as indicated in the following 

schedule: City Fee Schedule."  

 

(6)  Section 105.6.3, Fee Refunds, is hereby amended to 

read:  

"Upon the applicant's request, any amount remaining from 

the deposit which exceeds the cost of processing the 

application will be refunded to the applicant."  

 

(7)  Section 107.4, Violation Penalties, is hereby amended 

to read:  

"Violation Penalties. Any person who shall violate a 

provision of this code, or fail to comply therewith, or 

with any of the requirements thereof, shall upon conviction 

thereof, be subject to a fine of not less than fifty 

dollars ($50.00) per day nor more than five hundred dollars 

($500.00) per day for each day the violation exists or 

continues, or imprisonment for a term not to exceed ninety 

(90) days, or both, at the discretion of the court. Each 

day that a violation continues after due notice has been 

served shall be deemed as a separate offense."  

 

(8)  Section 107.5, Stop work orders, is hereby amended to 

read:  

"Upon notice from the code official, work on any system 

that is being performed contrary to the provisions of this 

code or in a dangerous or unsafe manner shall immediately 

cease. Such notice shall be in writing and shall be given 

to the owner of the property, or to the owner's authorized 

agent, or to the person performing the work. The notice 

shall state the conditions under which work is authorized 

to resume. Where an emergency exists, the code official 



shall not be required to give a written notice prior to 

stopping the work. Any person who shall continue any work 

in or about the structure after having been served with a 

stop work order, except such work as that person is 

directed to perform to remove a violation or unsafe 

condition, shall upon conviction thereof, be subject to a 

fine of not less than fifty dollars ($50.00) nor more than 

five hundred dollars ($500.00) per day for each day the 

violation exists or continues, or imprisonment for a term 

not to exceed ninety (90) days, or both, at the discretion 

of the court. Each day that a violation continues after due 

notice has been served shall be deemed as a separate 

offense."  

 

(9)  Section 108, Means of Appeal, is hereby modified, 

changed and amended to read as per section 7-8 of the Code 

of Ordinances of the City of Cape Girardeau.  

 

(10)  Section 305.2.11, Horizontal Balusters, is hereby 

created to read:  

"Horizontal balusters shall be prohibited in locations 

where guards or barriers are required."  

 

(11) Section 305.1 General, Exceptions: 2. “Swimming pools 

with a powered safety cover that complies with ASTM F1346” 

is hereby repealed in its entirety. 

 

ARTICLE 2.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, 

phrase or portion of this ordinance is for any reason held 

invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent 

jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct 

and independent provision and such holding shall not affect the 

validity of the remaining portions hereof. 

 

 ARTICLE 3.  It is the intention of the governing body and 

it is hereby ordained that the provisions of this ordinance 

shall become and be made a part of the Code of Ordinances of the 

City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri, and the sections of this Code 

may be renumbered to accomplish such intention. 

 

 PASSED AND APPROVED THIS _____ DAY OF _____________, 2019. 

 

       

      __________________________________ 

      Bob Fox, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

Bruce Taylor, Deputy City Clerk 



Sec. 7-257. - Same—Amendments.  

The 2015 edition of the International Fire Code adopted by the City of Cape Girardeau is hereby 
modified and amended in the following respects:  

(1)  Section 101.1 shall read as follows:  

"Title. These regulations shall be known as the fire code of the City of Cape Girardeau, 
Missouri, and are herein referred to as the fire code or as "this code"."  

(2)  Section 108, Board of Appeals, is hereby modified, changed and amended to read as per 
section 7-8 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cape Girardeau.  

(3)  Section 305.1.2 is hereby deleted 

(4) Section 307.3 is hereby modified, changed and amended by adding the following:  

"or as otherwise provided by Chapter 3 "Air Pollution" in the Code of Ordinances of the City of 
Cape Girardeau."  

(5)  Section 307.4 is hereby modified, changed and amended by adding the following:  

"or as otherwise provided by Chapter 3 "Air Pollution" in the Code of Ordinances of the City of 
Cape Girardeau."  

(6)  Amend Section 505.1 to read as per Section 24-1(a) of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 
Cape Girardeau.  

(7)  Section 912.2 is hereby amended to read as follows:  

" Location. With respect to hydrants, driveways, buildings and landscaping, fire department 
connections shall be so located that fire apparatus and hose connected to supply the system 
will not obstruct access to the buildings for other fire apparatus. The location of fire department 
connections shall be approved by the fire chief and shall be located within 75 feet of a fire 
hydrant."  

(8)  Section 1015.4.1 is hereby created to read as follows:  

"Horizontal balusters may not be used in guards."  

(9)  Section 5601.1.3 is hereby modified, changed and amended to read as follows:  

" General. It shall be a violation of this code to store, offer for sale, expose for sale, sell at retail, 
or use or explode any fireworks, except as provided in Chapter 11, Articles I and II, sections 11-
48 through 11-52 of the Code of Ordinances for the City of Cape Girardeau, and except as 
provided in the rules and regulations issued for the granting of permits for supervised public 
displays of fireworks by the City of Cape Girardeau, fair associations, amusement parks and 
other organizations. Every display shall be handled by an approved licensed competent 
operator. The fireworks shall be arranged, located, discharged or fired in a manner that, in the 
opinion of the code official, will not be hazard to property or endanger any person."  

(10)  A new Section 5701.1.1 shall be added which shall read as follows:  

"Section 5701.1.1, Bulk, Processing and Industrial Plants Bulk, processing or industrial plants, 
refineries or other plants and distilleries and all buildings, tanks and equipment used for the 
storage, processing, distillation, refining or blending of flammable or combustible liquids shall be 
located, constructed and used in accordance with the building code and NFPA 30 listed in 
Appendix A and any other applicable law or ordinance of the City of Cape Girardeau."  

(11)  Section 5704.1 is hereby modified, changed and amended to read as follows:  

"General. Above ground storage tanks for the storage of combustible or flammable liquids shall 
be prohibited except as specifically provided for in this code."  



(12)  Appendix A is hereby deleted.  

(Ord. No. 4702, art. 7, 6-1-15)  



Staff: 
Agenda:

Gary Hill, Building and Code
Enforcement Manager
8/19/2019

AGENDA REPORT 
Cape Girardeau City Council 19-190

SUBJECT

An Ordinance amending Chapter 7 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri, relating
to Storm Shelters.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This proposed Ordinance would repeal the provision which requires the addition of storm shelter facilities in
certain occupancy classifications.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION

Architect Phillip Smith and Superintendent Neil Glass spoke to the Board of Appeals concerning the Storm
Shelter requirements in Section 423 of the 2015 International Building Code.  The Cape Girardeau School
District has plans to renovate and construct additions on several of their school campuses in the near future.  The
school district requested guidance from the Board of Appeals if they would be required to incorporate storm
shelters in their renovation plans.  Phillip Smith shared construction costs meeting storm shelter standards are
approximately 50% greater than conventional construction costs due to the 250 mph wind-load storm shelter
standards versus the 115 mph wind-load conventional construction standards.

Inspections contacted the International Code Council for additional clarification on storm shelter requirements. 
Inspections was told the 2015 International Building Code required all occupied additions to school district
facilities (including the proposed Aquatic Center) be constructed to storm shelter standards.  Another option
permitted in the building code is constructing a separate onsite storm shelter to house the occupant load of the
school facility. 

While it is acknowledged storm shelters provide valuable shelter for individuals seeking protection from
unpredictable high-wind events, Inspections and the Board of Appeals believe it is unreasonable for a building
code to create this unfunded mandate for Critical Emergency Operations and Educational Facilities.  A better
approach would be for community and private agencies to pool their efforts and resources to finance and
construct storm shelters as a joint venture. 

After discussion, Inspections and the Board of Appeals believe mandating the responsibility of constructing
storm shelters to individual groups through building code requirements is neither a reasonable or practical
approach.  Inspections and Board of Appeals recommend Section 7-28 (14) of City Ordinance is amended to
repeal Storm Shelter Sections 423.3 Critical emergency operations and 423.4 Group E occupancies from the
2015 International Building Code.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends approval of an Ordinance amending Chapter 7 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cape
Girardeau, Missouri, relating to Storm Shelters.



BOARD OR COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION

On July 11, 2019 the Board of Appeals voted in support of Staff’s recommendation to amend Section 7-28 (14)
of City's Code of Ordinances to repeal Storm Shelter Sections 423.3 Critical emergency operations and 423.4
Group E occupancies from the 2015 International Building Code.

ATTACHMENTS:
Name: Description:

Amending_Ch_7__regarding_Storm_Shelters.docx Ordinance

Sec._7_28.___Same_Amendments..doc Sec. 7-28 Same Amendments

http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22422&ItemID=7058
http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22389&ItemID=7058


BILL NO.    19-130        ORDINANCE NO. ___________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 7 OF THE CODE 

OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CAPE GIRARDEAU, 

MISSOURI, REGARDING STORM SHELTERS  

_________________________________________________________________ 

 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPE 

GIRARDEAU, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 ARTICLE 1. Section 7-28, entitled “Same-Amendments”, of 

Article II of Chapter 7 of the City Code, reading as follows: 

 

Sec. 7-28. - Same—Amendments.   

 

The 2015 International Building Code adopted by this 

article is hereby modified and amended in the following 

respects:  

 

(1)  Section 101.1 is hereby modified, changed and amended 

to read as follows:  

"Title. These regulations shall be known as the Building 

Code of the City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri, hereinafter 

referred to as "this code"."  

 

(2)  Section 103.1 is hereby modified, changed and amended 

to read as follows:  

"Creation of Enforcement Agency. The Division of Inspection 

Services is hereby created and the official in charge shall 

be known as the code official."  

 

(3)  Section 103.2 is hereby modified, changed and amended 

to read as follows:  

"Appointment. The code official shall be appointed by the 

city manager."  

 

(4)  Section 105.1.1, Annual permit, is hereby repealed in 

its entirety.  

(5)  Section 105.1.2, Annual permit records, is hereby 

repealed in its entirety.  

 

(6)  [Section] 105.2, Work exempt from permit, Building 

item 1 is hereby modified, changed and amended to read:  

"One-story detached accessory structures used as tool and 

storage sheds, playhouses and similar uses, provided the 

floor area is not greater than 150 square feet."  

 

(7)  [Section] 105.2, Work exempt from permit, Building 

items 2, 4, and 6 are hereby deleted.  



(8)  Section 109.7, Re-inspection Fee , add "a re-

inspection fee, as established in the City Fee Schedule, 

after the second inspection for similar inspections."  

 

(9)  Section 111.2, Certificate Issued, is hereby modified, 

changed and amended to read as follows: After the building 

official inspects the building or structure and does not 

find violations of the provisions of this code or other 

laws that are enforced by the Inspection Services Division, 

the building official shall issue a certificate of 

occupancy that contains the following:  

(a)  The building permit number and the date the 

permit was issued.  

(b)  The address of the structure and the name of the 

subdivision, the lot number and block number.  

(c)  The name and address of the owner or the owner's 

authorized agent.  

(d)  A description of that portion of the structure 

for which the certificate is issued.  

(e)  A statement that the described portion of the 

structure has been inspected for compliance with the 

requirements of this code for the occupancy and 

division of occupancy and the use for which the 

proposed occupancy is classified.  

(f)  The name of the building official.  

(g)  The edition of the code under which the permit 

was issued.  

(h)  The use and occupancy, in accordance with the 

provisions of Chapter 3.  

(i)  The type of construction as defined in Chapter 6.  

(j)  The design occupant load.  

(k)  If an automatic sprinkler system is provided, 

whether the sprinkler system is required.  

(l)  Any special stipulations and conditions of the 

building permit.  

(m)  The name of the architect.  

(n)  The name of the contractor.  

(o)  The square footage of that portion of the 

structure for which the certificate is issued.  

 

(10)  Section 113.3, Qualifications, is hereby repealed in 

its entirety and modified, changed and amended to read as 

per section 7-8 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 

Cape Girardeau.  

 

(11)  Section 114.4 is hereby modified, changed and amended 

to read as follows:  

"Violation Penalties. Any person who shall violate a 

provision of this code, or fail to comply therewith, or 

with any of the requirements thereof, shall upon conviction 



thereof, be subject to a fine of not less than fifty 

dollars ($50.00) per day nor more than five hundred dollars 

($500.00) per day for each day the violation exists or 

continues, or imprisonment for a term not to exceed ninety 

(90) days, or both, at the discretion of the court. Each 

day that a violation continues after due notice has been 

served shall be deemed as a separate offense."  

 

(12)  Section 115.3 is hereby modified, changed and amended 

to read as follows:  

"Unlawful Continuance. The violation of this section shall 

be punished by a fine not exceeding five hundred dollars 

($500.00) per day for each day the unlawful continuance 

exists or by imprisonment not exceeding three (3) months, 

or by both such fine and imprisonment. Each day that a 

violation continues after due notice has been served shall 

be deemed as a separate offense."  

 

(13)  Section 202, Definitions, amend Sleeping Unit to 

[read] as follows:  

"Sleeping Unit. Is defined to mean any room in the dwelling 

that is greater than seventy (70) square feet and has a 

built in closet space and typically could be used as a 

bedroom. This does not include rooms used for cooking, 

eating, family living or gathering and excludes bathrooms, 

toilet rooms, halls, storage, utility and workshop space 

and all unconditioned space. Such rooms and spaces that are 

also part of a dwelling unit are not sleeping units."  

 

(14)  Section 423, Storm Shelters, is hereby modified, 

changed and amended to read as per the 2009 International 

Building Code, on July 1, 2015:  

"The provision of storm shelters pursuant to the 2015 

International Building Code shall be voluntary. However, on 

and after July 1, 2018, this section on storm shelters 

shall be mandatory, and shall be in full force and effect 

as per the 2015 International Building Code."  

 

(15)  [Section] 501.2, Address identification, is hereby 

amended to read as follows:  

"New and existing buildings shall be provided with approved 

address identification. The address identification shall be 

legible and placed in a position that is visible from the 

street or road fronting the property. Address 

identification characters shall contrast with their 

background. Address numbers shall be Arabic numbers or 

alphabetical letters. Numbers shall not be spelled out. 

Each character shall be a minimum of 6 inches high with a 

minimum stroke width of ½ inch. Where required by the fire 

code official, address identification shall be provided in 



additional approved locations to facilitate emergency 

response. Where access is by means of a private road and 

the building address cannot be viewed from the public way, 

a monument, pole or other approved sign or means shall be 

used to identify the structure. Address identification 

shall be maintained."  

 

(16)  Reserved.  

 

(17)  Section 1612.3 is hereby created to read as follows:  

"Establishment of Flood Hazard Areas. To establish flood 

hazard areas, the governing body shall adopt a flood hazard 

map and supporting data. The flood hazard map shall 

include, at a minimum, areas of special flood hazard as 

identified by the Federal Emergency Management Agency in an 

engineering report entitled "The Flood Insurance Study for 

the City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri," latest edition of 

the flood map, as amended or revised with the accompanying 

Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) and flood Boundary and 

Floodway Map (FBFM) and related supporting data along with 

any revisions thereto. The adopted flood hazard map and 

supporting data are hereby adopted by reference and 

declared to be part of this section."  

 

(18)  Reserved.  

 

(19)  Section R104. Duties and Powers of the building 

official.  

R104.11.2 Moratorium. All other provisions of this Code to 

the contrary notwithstanding, no building permit shall be 

issued for construction projects utilizing shipping 

containers as building materials until October 14, 2017, 

except on applications received by the City on or before 

April 7, 2017.  

 

is hereby repealed in its entirety and a new Section 7-28, 

entitled “Same-Amendments”, is hereby enacted in lieu thereof, 

in words and figures, to read as follows, to-wit: 

 

Sec. 7-28. - Same—Amendments.  

 

The 2015 International Building Code adopted by this article is 

hereby modified and amended in the following respects:  

 

(1)  Section 101.1 is hereby modified, changed and amended to 

read as follows:  

"Title. These regulations shall be known as the Building Code of 

the City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri, hereinafter referred to as 

"this code"."  



(2)  Section 103.1 is hereby modified, changed and amended to 

read as follows:  

"Creation of Enforcement Agency. The Division of Inspection 

Services is hereby created and the official in charge shall be 

known as the code official."  

 

(3)  Section 103.2 is hereby modified, changed and amended to 

read as follows:  

"Appointment. The code official shall be appointed by the city 

manager."  

 

(4)  Section 105.1.1, Annual permit, is hereby repealed in its 

entirety.  

 

(5)  Section 105.1.2, Annual permit records, is hereby repealed 

in its entirety.  

 

(6)  [Section] 105.2, Work exempt from permit, Building item 1 

is hereby modified, changed and amended to read:  

"One-story detached accessory structures used as tool and 

storage sheds, playhouses and similar uses, provided the floor 

area is not greater than 150 square feet."  

 

(7)  [Section] 105.2, Work exempt from permit, Building items 2, 

4, and 6 are hereby deleted.  

 

(8)  Section 109.7, Re-inspection Fee , add "a re-inspection 

fee, as established in the City Fee Schedule, after the second 

inspection for similar inspections."  

 

(9)  Section 111.2, Certificate Issued, is hereby modified, 

changed and amended to read as follows: After the building 

official inspects the building or structure and does not find 

violations of the provisions of this code or other laws that are 

enforced by the Inspection Services Division, the building 

official shall issue a certificate of occupancy that contains 

the following:  

(a)  The building permit number and the date the permit was 

issued.  

(b)  The address of the structure and the name of the 

subdivision, the lot number and block number.  

(c)  The name and address of the owner or the owner's 

authorized agent.  

(d)  A description of that portion of the structure for 

which the certificate is issued.  

(e)  A statement that the described portion of the 

structure has been inspected for compliance with the 

requirements of this code for the occupancy and division of 

occupancy and the use for which the proposed occupancy is 

classified.  



(f)  The name of the building official.  

(g)  The edition of the code under which the permit was 

issued.  

(h)  The use and occupancy, in accordance with the 

provisions of Chapter 3.  

(i)  The type of construction as defined in Chapter 6.  

(j)  The design occupant load.  

(k)  If an automatic sprinkler system is provided, whether 

the sprinkler system is required.  

(l)  Any special stipulations and conditions of the 

building permit.  

(m)  The name of the architect.  

(n)  The name of the contractor.  

(o)  The square footage of that portion of the structure 

for which the certificate is issued.  

 

(10)  Section 113.3, Qualifications, is hereby repealed in its 

entirety and modified, changed and amended to read as per 

section 7-8 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cape 

Girardeau.  

 

(11)  Section 114.4 is hereby modified, changed and amended to 

read as follows:  

"Violation Penalties. Any person who shall violate a provision 

of this code, or fail to comply therewith, or with any of the 

requirements thereof, shall upon conviction thereof, be subject 

to a fine of not less than fifty dollars ($50.00) per day nor 

more than five hundred dollars ($500.00) per day for each day 

the violation exists or continues, or imprisonment for a term 

not to exceed ninety (90) days, or both, at the discretion of 

the court. Each day that a violation continues after due notice 

has been served shall be deemed as a separate offense."  

 

(12)  Section 115.3 is hereby modified, changed and amended to 

read as follows:  

"Unlawful Continuance. The violation of this section shall be 

punished by a fine not exceeding five hundred dollars ($500.00) 

per day for each day the unlawful continuance exists or by 

imprisonment not exceeding three (3) months, or by both such 

fine and imprisonment. Each day that a violation continues after 

due notice has been served shall be deemed as a separate 

offense."  

 

(13)  Section 202, Definitions, amend Sleeping Unit to [read] as 

follows:  

"Sleeping Unit. Is defined to mean any room in the dwelling that 

is greater than seventy (70) square feet and has a built in 

closet space and typically could be used as a bedroom. This does 

not include rooms used for cooking, eating, family living or 

gathering and excludes bathrooms, toilet rooms, halls, storage, 



utility and workshop space and all unconditioned space. Such 

rooms and spaces that are also part of a dwelling unit are not 

sleeping units."  

 

(14)  Section 423.3 Critical emergency operations and 423.4 

Group E occupancies, is hereby repealed in its entirety.  

 

(15)  [Section] 501.2, Address identification, is hereby amended 

to read as follows:  

"New and existing buildings shall be provided with approved 

address identification. The address identification shall be 

legible and placed in a position that is visible from the street 

or road fronting the property. Address identification characters 

shall contrast with their background. Address numbers shall be 

Arabic numbers or alphabetical letters. Numbers shall not be 

spelled out. Each character shall be a minimum of 6 inches high 

with a minimum stroke width of ½ inch. Where required by the 

fire code official, address identification shall be provided in 

additional approved locations to facilitate emergency response. 

Where access is by means of a private road and the building 

address cannot be viewed from the public way, a monument, pole 

or other approved sign or means shall be used to identify the 

structure. Address identification shall be maintained."  

 

(16)  Reserved.  

 

(17)  Section 1612.3 is hereby created to read as follows:  

"Establishment of Flood Hazard Areas. To establish flood hazard 

areas, the governing body shall adopt a flood hazard map and 

supporting data. The flood hazard map shall include, at a 

minimum, areas of special flood hazard as identified by the 

Federal Emergency Management Agency in an engineering report 

entitled "The Flood Insurance Study for the City of Cape 

Girardeau, Missouri," latest edition of the flood map, as 

amended or revised with the accompanying Flood Insurance Rate 

Map (FIRM) and flood Boundary and Floodway Map (FBFM) and 

related supporting data along with any revisions thereto. The 

adopted flood hazard map and supporting data are hereby adopted 

by reference and declared to be part of this section."  

 

(18)  Reserved.  

 

(19)  Section R104. Duties and Powers of the building official.  

R104.11.2 Moratorium. All other provisions of this Code to the 

contrary notwithstanding, no building permit shall be issued for 

construction projects utilizing shipping containers as building 

materials until October 14, 2017, except on applications 

received by the City on or before April 7, 2017.  

 



ARTICLE 2.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, 

phrase or portion of this ordinance is for any reason held 

invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent 

jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct 

and independent provision and such holding shall not affect the 

validity of the remaining portions hereof. 

 

 ARTICLE 3.  It is the intention of the governing body and 

it is hereby ordained that the provisions of this ordinance 

shall become and be made a part of the Code of Ordinances of the 

City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri, and the sections of this Code 

may be renumbered to accomplish such intention. 

 

 

 PASSED AND APPROVED THIS _____ DAY OF _____________, 2019. 

 

 

      __________________________________ 

      Bob Fox, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Bruce Taylor, Deputy City Clerk 

 



Sec. 7-28. - Same—Amendments.  

The 2015 International Building Code adopted by this article is hereby modified and amended in the 
following respects:  

(1)  Section 101.1 is hereby modified, changed and amended to read as follows:  

"Title. These regulations shall be known as the Building Code of the City of Cape Girardeau, 
Missouri, hereinafter referred to as "this code"."  

(2)  Section 103.1 is hereby modified, changed and amended to read as follows:  

"Creation of Enforcement Agency. The Division of Inspection Services is hereby created and 
the official in charge shall be known as the code official."  

(3)  Section 103.2 is hereby modified, changed and amended to read as follows:  

"Appointment. The code official shall be appointed by the city manager."  

(4)  Section 105.1.1, Annual permit, is hereby repealed in its entirety.  

(5)  Section 105.1.2, Annual permit records, is hereby repealed in its entirety.  

(6)  [Section] 105.2, Work exempt from permit, Building item 1 is hereby modified, changed and 
amended to read:  

"One-story detached accessory structures used as tool and storage sheds, playhouses and 
similar uses, provided the floor area is not greater than 150 square feet."  

(7)  [Section] 105.2, Work exempt from permit, Building items 2, 4, and 6 are hereby deleted.  

(8)  Section 109.7, Re-inspection Fee , add "a re-inspection fee, as established in the City Fee 
Schedule, after the second inspection for similar inspections."  

(9)  Section 111.2, Certificate Issued, is hereby modified, changed and amended to read as 
follows: After the building official inspects the building or structure and does not find violations of 
the provisions of this code or other laws that are enforced by the Inspection Services Division, 
the building official shall issue a certificate of occupancy that contains the following:  

(a)  The building permit number and the date the permit was issued.  

(b)  The address of the structure and the name of the subdivision, the lot number and block 
number.  

(c)  The name and address of the owner or the owner's authorized agent.  

(d)  A description of that portion of the structure for which the certificate is issued.  

(e)  A statement that the described portion of the structure has been inspected for compliance 
with the requirements of this code for the occupancy and division of occupancy and the 
use for which the proposed occupancy is classified.  

(f)  The name of the building official.  

(g)  The edition of the code under which the permit was issued.  

(h)  The use and occupancy, in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 3.  

(i)  The type of construction as defined in Chapter 6.  

(j)  The design occupant load.  

(k)  If an automatic sprinkler system is provided, whether the sprinkler system is required.  

(l)  Any special stipulations and conditions of the building permit.  

(m)  The name of the architect.  



(n)  The name of the contractor.  

(o)  The square footage of that portion of the structure for which the certificate is issued.  

(10)  Section 113.3, Qualifications, is hereby repealed in its entirety and modified, changed and 
amended to read as per section 7-8 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cape Girardeau.  

(11)  Section 114.4 is hereby modified, changed and amended to read as follows:  

"Violation Penalties. Any person who shall violate a provision of this code, or fail to comply 
therewith, or with any of the requirements thereof, shall upon conviction thereof, be subject to a 
fine of not less than fifty dollars ($50.00) per day nor more than five hundred dollars ($500.00) 
per day for each day the violation exists or continues, or imprisonment for a term not to exceed 
ninety (90) days, or both, at the discretion of the court. Each day that a violation continues after 
due notice has been served shall be deemed as a separate offense."  

(12)  Section 115.3 is hereby modified, changed and amended to read as follows:  

"Unlawful Continuance. The violation of this section shall be punished by a fine not exceeding 
five hundred dollars ($500.00) per day for each day the unlawful continuance exists or by 
imprisonment not exceeding three (3) months, or by both such fine and imprisonment. Each day 
that a violation continues after due notice has been served shall be deemed as a separate 
offense."  

(13)  Section 202, Definitions, amend Sleeping Unit to [read] as follows:  

"Sleeping Unit. Is defined to mean any room in the dwelling that is greater than seventy (70) 
square feet and has a built in closet space and typically could be used as a bedroom. This does 
not include rooms used for cooking, eating, family living or gathering and excludes bathrooms, 
toilet rooms, halls, storage, utility and workshop space and all unconditioned space. Such 
rooms and spaces that are also part of a dwelling unit are not sleeping units."  

(14)  Section 423, Storm Shelters, is hereby modified, changed and amended to read as per the 
2009 International Building Code, on July 1, 2015:  

"The provision of storm shelters pursuant to the 2015 International Building Code shall be 
voluntary. However, on and after July 1, 2018, this section on storm shelters shall be 
mandatory, and shall be in full force and effect as per the 2015 International Building Code."  

(14)     Sections 423.3 Critical emergency operations and 423.4 Group E occupancies, is hereby 

repealed in its entirety.  

(15)  [Section] 501.2, Address identification, is hereby amended to read as follows:  

"New and existing buildings shall be provided with approved address identification. The address 
identification shall be legible and placed in a position that is visible from the street or road 
fronting the property. Address identification characters shall contrast with their background. 
Address numbers shall be Arabic numbers or alphabetical letters. Numbers shall not be spelled 
out. Each character shall be a minimum of 6 inches high with a minimum stroke width of ½ inch. 
Where required by the fire code official, address identification shall be provided in additional 
approved locations to facilitate emergency response. Where access is by means of a private 
road and the building address cannot be viewed from the public way, a monument, pole or other 
approved sign or means shall be used to identify the structure. Address identification shall be 
maintained."  

(16)  Reserved.  

(17)  Section 1612.3 is hereby created to read as follows:  



"Establishment of Flood Hazard Areas. To establish flood hazard areas, the governing body 
shall adopt a flood hazard map and supporting data. The flood hazard map shall include, at a 
minimum, areas of special flood hazard as identified by the Federal Emergency Management 
Agency in an engineering report entitled "The Flood Insurance Study for the City of Cape 
Girardeau, Missouri," latest edition of the flood map, as amended or revised with the 
accompanying Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) and flood Boundary and Floodway Map 
(FBFM) and related supporting data along with any revisions thereto. The adopted flood hazard 
map and supporting data are hereby adopted by reference and declared to be part of this 
section."  

(18)  Reserved.  

(19)  Section R104. Duties and Powers of the building official.  

R104.11.2 Moratorium. All other provisions of this Code to the contrary notwithstanding, no 
building permit shall be issued for construction projects utilizing shipping containers as building 
materials until October 14, 2017, except on applications received by the City on or before April 
7, 2017.  

(Ord. No. 4702, art. 2, 6-1-15; Ord. No. 4954, art. 1, 4-17-17; Ord. No. 4989, art. 1, 7-10-17; 

Ord. No. 4995, arts. 2, 3, 8-7-17; Ord. No. 5079 , art. 1, 5-21-18)  

http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=894462&datasource=ordbank


Staff: 
Agenda:

W. Eric Cunningham, City
Attorney
8/19/2019

AGENDA REPORT 
Cape Girardeau City Council 19-191

SUBJECT

An Ordinance of the City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri, extending the imposition of the present one-quarter of
one percent Capital Improvement Sales Tax from its expiration date of December 31, 2019, to December 31,
2034.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

On August 6, 2019, the voters of the City authorized the extension of this Capital Improvements Sales Tax. The
attached Ordinance is necessary to impose that sales tax extension. 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION

Normally, an Ordinance calling an election on a sales tax proposition includes language imposing the tax,
subject to approval by the City voters.  However, in order to avoid confusion in this situation, the Ordinance
calling the election on the Capital Improvement Sales Tax on August 6, 2019, did not include that language. 
The City has two (2) Capital Improvements Sales Taxes, each with different beginning and ending dates, and
only the tax extended by the voters on August 6, 2019, has been codified in the City Code.  For that reason, the
attached Ordinance clarifies the distinction between these two (2) taxes, and then imposes the extension of the
tax that was just authorized by the voters.  In addition, the Ordinance amends the language contained in the
codified City Code in order to clarify which tax is being discussed, and it includes the new December 31, 2034,
termination date of this tax.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the City Council approve the attached ordinance. 

ATTACHMENTS:
Name: Description:

Imposing_Capital_Improvement_Sales_Tax_2019-2034.doc Ordinance

http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22427&ItemID=7069


1 

BILL NO.    19-131        ORDINANCE NO. ___________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF CAPE GIRARDEAU, 

MISSOURI, EXTENDING THE IMPOSITION OF THE 

PRESENT ONE-QUARTER OF ONE PERCENT CAPITAL 

IMPROVEMENT SALES TAX FROM ITS EXPIRATION 

DATE OF DECEMBER 31, 2019, TO DECEMBER 31, 

2034 

________________________________________________________________ 

 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPE 

GIRARDEAU, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Cape Girardeau, (the “City”) currently 

imposes two (2) sales taxes of one-quarter of one percent (for a 

total of one-half of one percent) pursuant to Section 94.577 et 

seq. of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended, for the 

purposed of funding capital improvements for the City and the 

retirement of debt under previously authorized bonded 

indebtedness for such purposes; and  

 

WHEREAS, one of those two one-quarter of one percent 

Capital Improvement sales taxes has an expiration date of 

December 31, 2037; and 

 

WHEREAS, the second of those two one-quarter of one percent 

Capital Improvement sales taxes had a scheduled expiration date 

of December 31, 2019; however, by an election held on August 6, 

2019, the voters of the City of Cape Girardeau authorized the 

extension of the imposition of said second sales tax to December 

31, 2034; and   

 

WHEREAS, due to said approval by the voters, the City 

Council desires to enact this Ordinance to extend the imposition 

of this second Capital Improvement Sales Tax for the purposes 

set out herein to its new expiration date of December 31, 2034. 

  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF CAPE GIRARDAU, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

ARTICLE 1.   Due to its approval by the voters of the City 

in the election held on August 6, 2019, there is hereby extended 

the imposition of the existing sales tax authorized by Section 

94.577 et seq. of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended, 

in the amount of one-quarter of one percent on all retail sales 

made in the City which are subject to taxation under the 

provisions of Sections 144.010 to 144.525, inclusive, of the 



2 

Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended, for the purpose of 

funding capital improvements for water system projects, airport 

improvements, street repairs, City facilities, and other capital 

projects to be approved by the City Council, from its previous 

expiration date of December 31, 2019, to its new expiration date 

of December 31, 2034.  

ARTICLE 2.  The tax referred to in Article 1 herein shall 

be in addition to any and all other sales taxes allowed by law.  

ARTICLE 3.  In order to accomplish the purposes set out in 

Article 1 of this Ordinance, and to correct the codification 

contained in the City Code, Chapter 15, Article IV, Sections 15-

116 through 15-121 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cape 

Girardeau, referring to this second Capital Improvements Sales 

Tax, reading as follows: 

Sec. 15-116. – Imposition; rules, regulations.  

There is hereby imposed upon all sellers a tax for the 

privilege of engaging in the business of selling 

taxable personal property or rendering taxable 

services at retail to the extent and in the manner 

provided in RSMo 144.010—144.510, and the rules and 

regulations of the director of revenue issued pursuant 

thereto at the rate of one-fourth of one (1) percent 

on all retail sales made in the city which are subject 

to taxation under the provisions of RSMo 144.010—

144.510. This tax is imposed pursuant to RSMo 94.577 

and to the extent provided in RSMo 144.010—144.510 and 

the rules and regulations of the director of revenue 

issued pursuant thereto.  

 

Sec. 15-117. - Purpose.  

 

The tax imposed by this article is for the limited 

purpose of funding capital improvements for flood 

control, drainage improvement and storm- water control 

projects and may include the retirement of debt under 

previously authorized bonded indebtedness for such 

limited purposes. This tax shall be in addition to any 

and all other sales taxes allowed by law. 

 

 Sec. 15-118. - Trust fund.  

 

There is hereby established a city capital 

improvements trust fund. All moneys received by the 

city from the capital improvements sales tax imposed 



3 

by this article shall be deposited by the finance 

director to the credit of this fund and used in 

accordance with state statute. 

 

Sec. 15-119. - When effective, duration.  

 

The tax authorized by this article shall become 

effective on the first day of January, 1990 and such 

tax shall continue for a period of ten (10) years from 

its date of inception and thereafter shall 

automatically terminate unless extended or renewed in 

accordance with law. 

 

Sec. 15-120. - Condition precedent; use of proceeds.  

 

This article shall become effective only in the event 

that the United States Congress appropriates 

construction funds for the Cape LaCroix-Walker Creek 

Flood Control Project previously authorized by the 

Water Resources Development Act of 1986 and described 

in the United States Army Corps of Engineers Cape 

Girardeau-Jackson Metropolitan Area Missouri 

Feasibility Report dated December, 1983. If the voters 

of this city approve this tax, and if the United 

States Congress appropriates construction funds as set 

out herein, the funds derived from the imposition of 

this tax shall be used primarily for the Cape LaCroix 

Creek-Walker Creek Flood Control Project but the use 

of the funds shall not be limited to such project but 

may be allocated to other flood control, drainage 

improvement and stormwater control projects as 

determined by the city council. Funds derived from the 

imposition of this tax may also be used for capital 

improvements for parks and recreational purposes but 

only to the extent that such parks and recreational 

purposes are directly related to and incidental to the 

Cape LaCroix Creek-Walker Creek Flood Control Project. 

 

Sec. 15-121. - Tax extended.  

 

Pursuant to section 15-119, and the election held on 

April 5, 1994, the tax authorized by this article is 

extended effective on the first day of January, 2000, 

with such tax to terminate on December 31, 2019, 

unless otherwise extended or renewed in accordance 

with law, for the purpose of funding capital 

improvements for flood control, drainage improvement, 

stormwater control projects, and for other capital 



4 

improvement projects to be designated by the Cape 

Girardeau City Council. 

 

is hereby repealed in its entirety and a new Chapter 15, Article 

IV, Sections 15-116 through 15-119 is hereby enacted in lieu 

thereof, in words and figures, to read as follows, to-wit: 

 

 Sec. 15-116. – Imposition, extension; rules, regulations. 

 

As approved by the voters of the City on August 6, 

2019, there is hereby extended the imposition of a tax 

upon all sellers for the privilege of engaging in the 

business of selling taxable personal property or 

rendering taxable services at retail to the extent and 

in the manner provided in RSMo 144.010—144.525, and 

the rules and regulations of the director of revenue 

issued pursuant thereto at the rate of one-fourth of 

one (1) percent on all retail sales made in the city 

which are subject to taxation under the provisions of 

RSMo 144.010—144.525. This tax is imposed pursuant to 

RSMo 94.577 and to the extent provided in RSMo 

144.010—144.525 and the rules and regulations of the 

director of revenue issued pursuant thereto.  

 

Sec. 15-117. - Purpose.  

 

The tax extension imposed by this article is for the 

limited purpose of funding capital improvements for 

airport improvements, street repairs, City facilities, 

and other water system projects, and may include the 

retirement of bonded indebtedness for such limited 

purposes. This tax shall be in addition to any and all 

other sales taxes allowed by law. 

 

 Sec. 15-118. - Trust fund.  

 

There is hereby established a city capital 

improvements trust fund. All moneys received by the 

city from the capital improvements sales tax imposed 

by this article shall be deposited by the finance 

director to the credit of this fund and used in 

accordance with state statute. 

 

Sec. 15-119. - When effective, duration.  

 

The extension of the imposition of the tax authorized 

by this article shall become effective on the first 

day of January, 2020, and such tax shall continue for 

a period of fifteen (15) years from its date of 



5 

inception, and thereafter shall automatically 

terminate unless extended or renewed in accordance 

with law. 

 

Secs. 15-120—15-121. - Reserved. 

 

 ARTICLE 4.   If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, 

phrase or portion of this ordinance is for any reason held 

invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent 

jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct 

and independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the 

validity of the remaining portions hereof.  

 

 ARTICLE 5.  It is the intention of the governing body and 

it is hereby ordained that the provisions of Article 3 of this 

ordinance shall become and be made a part of the Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri, and the 

sections of this Code may be renumbered to accomplish such 

intention. 

 

 ARTICLE 6.  This ordinance shall be in full force and 

effect ten days after its passage and approval. 

 

 

 

 PASSED AND APPROVED THIS ______ DAY OF ___________, 2019. 

 

 

 

      __________________________________ 

      Bob Fox, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Bruce Taylor, Deputy City Clerk 

 



Staff: 
Agenda:

Kelly Green, P.E., City Engineer
8/19/2019

AGENDA REPORT 
Cape Girardeau City Council 19-192

SUBJECT

An Ordinance authorizing the Mayor to execute a Special Warranty Deed to Jerry Collins and Brenda Collins, a
married couple for property located at 3207 Bernice Street in the City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The attached ordinance conveys property at 3207 Bernice Street, Cape Girardeau to Jerry Collins and Brenda
Collins, a married couple.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION

3207 Bernice Street was identified as surplus property that could be sold.  A Special Warranty Deed has been
prepared for this purpose and is attached.  Mr. and Mrs. Collins' home is adjacent to this property.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

Jerry and Brenda Collins are paying $6,600 for the property.  The City will pay the recording fee.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends approval of the ordinance authorizing the Mayor to execute a Special Warranty Deed to Jerry
and Brenda Collins for property located at 3207 Bernice Street, in Cape Girardeau, Missouri.

ATTACHMENTS:
Name: Description:

Collins__3207_Bernice_Street__Special_Warranty_Deed.doc Ordinance

Bernice_3207__Sales_Agreement.doc Agreement for the Sale

3027_Bernice_SWD.doc SWD City to Collins

http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22426&ItemID=7055
http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22381&ItemID=7055
http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22406&ItemID=7055


 

1 

 

BILL NO.    19-132           ORDINANCE NO. ___________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO 

EXECUTE A SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED TO JERRY 

COLLINS AND BRENDA COLLINS, FOR PROPERTY 

LOCATED AT 3207 BERNICE STREET, IN THE CITY 

OF CAPE GIRARDEAU, MISSOURI 

________________________________________________________________ 

 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPE 

GIRARDEAU, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 ARTICLE 1.  The Mayor, for and on behalf of the City of 

Cape Girardeau, Missouri, is hereby authorized to execute a 

Special Warranty Deed to Jerry Collins and Brenda Collins, a 

married couple, for property located at 3207 Bernice Street, in 

the City and County of Cape Girardeau, Missouri, more 

particularly described as follows: 

 

Lot 4, Block 1 of Lakeview Estates Subdivision No. 3 

 

In addition, the City Manager is authorized to execute all 

accompanying documents. 

 

 ARTICLE 2.  This ordinance shall be in full force and 

effect ten days after its passage and approval. 

 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS _______ DAY OF __________, 2019. 

 

  

             

     Bob Fox, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

      _ 

Bruce Taylor, Deputy City Clerk 



AGREEMENT FOR THE SALE OF REAL PROPERTY  

3207 Bernice Street 

Cape Girardeau, Missouri 63701 

 

The undersigned, City of Cape Girardeau, a Municipal Corporation organized and existing 

under the laws of the State of Missouri, in the County of Cape Girardeau in the State of Missouri,  

hereinafter called the “Seller”, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements 

herein set forth, agrees to sell and convey to Jerry Collins and Brenda Collins, a married 

couple,  hereinafter called the “Buyer”, and the Buyer agrees to purchase, the fee simple 

title to the following described land, and all rights, hereditaments, easements and 

appurtenances thereunto belonging, located in the County of Cape Girardeau, State of 

Missouri, and more particularly described as: 

 
                        Lot 4, Block 1 of Lakeview Estates Subdivision No. 3 

 

The terms and conditions of this agreement are as follows: 

 

1. Within 60 days of the full execution of this Agreement, Jerry Collins and Brenda 

Collins agree to pay the sum of $6,600 to the City of Cape Girardeau for land 

described located at 3207 Bernice Street, Cape Girardeau, Missouri.  The Seller shall 

execute and deliver a good and sufficient Special Warranty Deed conveying said 

land, with the hereditaments and appurtenances thereunto belonging to Jerry and 

Brenda Collins, A married couple in fee simple, free and clear from all liens and 

encumbrances. Closing to take place on or before September 30, 2019, unless the 

Seller and Buyer mutually agree to a different date.   

2. It is agreed that the City will defray the expenses incident to the preparation and 

recordation of the deed and easements to the City. 

3. The City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri represents that no elected City official or City 

employee shall be admitted to or share any part of this agreement, or to any benefits 

that may arise therefrom. 

4. The terms and conditions aforesaid are to apply to and bind the heirs, executors, 

administrators, successors and assigns of the Owner. 

5. All terms and conditions with respect to this agreement are expressly contained herein 

and the Owner agrees that no representative or agent of the City has made any 

representation or promise with respect to this agreement not expressly contained 

within. 

 

 

 

 

 

Remainder of page left intentionally blank 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Sales Agreement this 

_______ day of _____________________, 2019 

       

 

 

                       

       Jerry Collins 

 

                                                   

 

       ______________________________ 

       Brenda Collins 

 

 

 

 

STATE OF     ) 

      )  ss. 

COUNTY OF     ) 

 

 

 

 

 

 BE IT REMEMBERED, That on this _________ day of 

________________________, 2019, before me, personally appeared Jerry Collins and 

Brenda Collins, to me known to be the persons described in and who executed the 

foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that they executed the same as their free act and 

deed. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official 

seal, the date last above written.     

              

             

       Notary Public 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

My Commission Expires: _______________________    

 

 

 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Sales Agreement to 

be executed this _______ day of     , 2019. 

 

 

 

 

       ______________________________ 

       Scott A. Meyer, City Manager 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________ 

Bruce Taylor, Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

 

      

STATE OF MISSOURI   ) 

      ) ss. 

COUNTY OF CAPE GIRARDEAU  ) 

 

 On this _______ day of __________________ , 2019, before me appeared 

Scott A. Meyer, to me personally known, who, being by me duly sworn, did say that he is 

the City Manager of the City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri, a Municipal Corporation of 

the State of Missouri, and that the seal affixed to the foregoing instrument is the seal of 

said City and that the said instrument was signed and sealed on behalf of said City by 

authority of its City Council and acknowledged said instrument to be the free act and 

deed of said City. 

 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official 

seal, at my office in Cape Girardeau, Missouri, the day and year first above written. 

 

 

My Commission Expires: 

 

     

 

 

 

 

 



 

SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED 
 

 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 

 

 

 

That on this      day of     , 2019, THE CITY OF CAPE 

GIRARDEAU, MISSOURI, a Municipal Corporation organized and existing under the laws of the 

State of Missouri, of the County of Cape Girardeau in the State of Missouri, GRANTOR, in 

consideration of Ten Dollars  ($10.00) and other valuable consideration, to it paid by Jerry Collins and 

Brenda Collins, of the County of Cape Girardeau, in the State of Missouri, GRANTEE, (mailing 

address of said first named grantee is:  3037 Bernice Street, Cape Girardeau, MO the receipt whereof is 

hereby acknowledged, and by virtue and pursuance of an ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

SAID CITY, does by these presents, SELL AND CONVEY unto the Grantee, its successors and assigns, 

the following described lots, tracts or parcels of land, lying, being and situate in the City and County of 

Cape Girardeau and State of Missouri, to-wit: 

 

  Lot 4, Block 1 of Lakeview Estates Subdivision No. 3 

 

 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the same, together with all rights, privileges, 

appurtenances, and immunities thereto belonging or in anywise appertaining unto the said 

Grantee, and unto its successors and assigns, FOREVER, the said Grantor hereby covenanting 

that the above described premises are free and clear of all encumbrances done or suffered by the 

Grantor, and that it will Warrant and Defend the title to the said premises unto the Grantee and 

Grantee’s successors and assigns, FOREVER, against the lawful claims of all persons claiming 

through the Grantor. 

 

 

WITNESS the hand of the Grantor the day and year first above written. 

 

 

 

 

 

      THE CITY OF CAPE GIRARDEAU, MISSOURI                                                             

 (Seal) 

 

       

By:        

            Bob Fox, Mayor  

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

       

Gayle L. Conrad, City Clerk     

 

 

 

 

 

 

STATE OF MISSOURI   ) 

     ) ss. 

COUNTY OF CAPE GIRARDEAU ) 

 

 

 

 

 

 On this            day of     , 2019, before me personally appeared  Bob 

Fox, to me personally known, who being duly sworn did say that he is Mayor of the City of Cape 

Girardeau, Missouri, a municipal corporation of the State of Missouri, and that the seal affixed to this 

instrument is the official seal of said City, and that the said instrument was signed and sealed in behalf of 

said City by authority of its City Council, and acknowledged said instrument to be the free act and deed 

of said City. 

 

 

 

 IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day 

and year first above written. 

 

      

 

              

   

      Notary Public 

My commission expires: 

 

___________________ 



Staff: 
Agenda:

Stan Polivick, Public Works
Director
8/19/2019

AGENDA REPORT 
Cape Girardeau City Council 19-193

SUBJECT

An Ordinance accepting a Temporary Construction Easement from Terry and Cynthia McDowell, for the Hopper
Road Box Culvert Project, in the City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri.  First Reading.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The attached Ordinance accepts a Temporary Construction Easement from Terry and Cynthia McDowell, which
is necessary for the Hopper Road Box Culvert Project. 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION

The City is currently completing the Hopper Road Box Culvert project.  In negotiations with the McDowell's,
the City has agreed to repair the concrete driveway for 2601 Hopper Road.  A Temporary Construction Easement
is needed to allow equipment to access the driveway for repair. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT

Terry and Cynthia McDowell have donated the Temporary Construction Easement. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends approval of the Ordinance accepting a Temporary Construction Easement from Terry and
Cynthia McDowell. 

ATTACHMENTS:
Name: Description:

Temporary_Construction_Easement-
_McDowell_s__2601_Hopper_Road__Hopper_Road_Box_Culvert_Project.doc

Ordinance

2601_Hopper_Road_TCE_EXECUTED.pdf 2601 Hopper Road TCE

Agreement_to_Grant_TCE_-_2601_Hopper_EXECUTED.pdf
2601 Hopper Road Agreement to Grant
TCE

http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22420&ItemID=7051
http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22390&ItemID=7051
http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22397&ItemID=7051


 1 

BILL NO.     19-133        ORDINANCE NO.         

  

AN ORDINANCE ACCEPTING A TEMPORARY 

CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT FROM TERRY AND 

CYNTHIA MCDOWELL, FOR THE HOPPER ROAD 

BOX CULVERT PROJECT, IN THE CITY OF 

CAPE GIRARDEAU, MISSOURI 

             

 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPE 

GIRARDEAU, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 ARTICLE 1.  The City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri, 

hereby accepts, and agrees to accept a Temporary 

Construction Easement from Terry and Cynthia McDowell, for 

2601 Hopper Road, for the Hopper Road Box Culvert Project, 

in the City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri, described as 

follows: 

 

A PART OF LOT NO. 6, PLEASANT ACRES AS RECORDED 

IN PLAT BOOK NO. 5 AT PAGE NO. 11 OF THE LAND 

RECORDS OF THE COUNTY RECORDER’S OFFICE; CITY AND 

COUNTY OF CAPE GIRARDEAU, STATE OF MISSOURI.  

 

ARTICLE 2.  This ordinance shall be in full force and 

effect ten days after its passage and approval. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS ____ DAY OF   __, 2019. 

 

        

       ___      

       Bob Fox, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

     ______ 

Bruce Taylor, Deputy City Clerk 















Staff: 
Agenda:

Gayle L. Conrad, CMC/MRCC,
Director of Citizen Services/City
Clerk
8/19/2019

AGENDA REPORT 
Cape Girardeau City Council 19-194

SUBJECT

Consideration of Appeal of Denial of Renewal Application for a Retail Liquor by the Drink and Sunday Sales
Liquor License for Ricky Lynn Werner, d/b/a River Valley Banquet Center, LLC, 631 South Sprigg Street.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

As required by City ordinance, all issued liquor licenses expire on June 30th of each year.  Businesses wishing to
continue liquor operations are required to submit an Application for Liquor License Renewal.  Once submitted,
these applications are reviewed by the Cape Girardeau Police, Fire and Development Services Departments, as
well as the Cape Girardeau County Public Health Center.  Each entity determines if the business meets all
required regulations and submits to the City Manager a recommendation for approval or denial of the license. 
After reviewing the recommendations, the City Manager either approves or denies the Liquor License Renewal
Application for a one-year period beginning July 1.  If an applicant does not agree with the City Manager's
determination, the applicant may file an appeal for the matter to be heard by the Liquor License Review Board. 
Until the matter is heard by the board, the applicant is allowed to continue operation of its premises as though it
had a valid license.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION

In 2016, Mr. Ricky Lynn Werner was issued a Retail Liquor by the Drink and subsequently a Sunday Sales
liquor license for operation of the River Valley Banquet Center at 631 South Sprigg Street.  Mr. Werner
continued to submit renewals of his liquor license on an annual basis as required by ordinance.

In May of 2018, Mr. Werner applied for renewal of the liquor license for River Valley Banquet Center.  The City
Manager denied the Renewal Application based upon recommendation by the Cape Girardeau Police
Department.  Mr. Werner appealed the denial to the Liquor License Review Board.  The Board met in June of
2018, and overturned the ruling of the City Manager and directed that the liquor license be renewed.

On April 30, 2019, the City Manager issued a Liquor License Revocation Notice for the River Valley Banquet
Center due to incidents that had occurred at the address of the business.  That Revocation Notice is attached
hereto, and it states four grounds for the revocation.  Mr. Werner appealed the revocation to the Liquor License
Review Board.  The Board was not able to conduct a meeting before the liquor license expired on June 30, 2019,
so the revocation became null and void.  

In June of 2019, Mr. Werner submitted a Liquor License Renewal Application for the River Valley Banquet
Center.  The City Manager denied the Renewal Application based upon recommendation by the Cape Girardeau
Police Department.  Mr. Werner then appealed the denial to the Liquor License Review Board.  The Board held a
hearing on July 22, 2019, and by unanimous vote upheld the decision of the City Manager to deny the liquor
license renewal for the River Valley Banquet Center.  Per City Ordinance, the applicant may appeal the decision
of the Liquor License Review Board denying a liquor license to the City Council.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION



In tonight's meeting, the City Council will consider the comments and documentation provided by City staff and
the comments and the documentation provided by the licensee.  The City Council is reviewing the decision of
the City Manager not to renew the license.  It is not reviewing the decision of the Liquor License Review Board.

BOARD OR COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION

The Liquor License Review Board met on Monday, July 22, 2019, to review the appeal of the City Manager’s
denial of a renewal for a retail liquor by the drink and Sunday Sales liquor license for Ricky Lynn Werner d/b/a
River Valley Banquet Center LLC located at 631 South Sprigg Street, Cape Girardeau, Missouri.  

At this meeting of the Board, the licensee was permitted the opportunity to be heard, and the Board also received
comments from City staff.  The Board considered the information and the arguments presented by the licensee
and the documentation provided by City staff.  After considering the information, and the licensee having the
opportunity to be heard, the Board voted unanimously (3-0) to affirm the City Manager’s denial of the liquor
license renewal for Ricky Lynn Werner, d/b/a River Valley Banquet Center, LLC.  The grounds for the decision
are as follows: 

Licensee did permit or fail to prevent or suppress a violent quarrel, brawl, or fight on the premises. 
Licensee failed to operate the business in such a manner that it does not constitute a nuisance.
Licensee failed to take appropriate and necessary steps to supervise the outdoor areas of premises.
Licensee failed to comply with City Code by operating the business without a valid business license.
Licensee did not present a plan to provide for the safety of patrons in the future or how the licensee would
comply with the Standards of Conduct outlined in Sec. 5-39 of the City Code.
Licensee was currently operating the business without a valid State of Missouri liquor license.  

ATTACHMENTS:
Name: Description:

RiverValley.CouncilLetter.Appeal.2019-08-01.pdf City Council appeal letter 08-01-19

RiverValley.renewal_denial_board.2019-07-24.pdf Liquor Board denial letter 07-24-19

agenda.2019-07-22.packet.pdf Liquor Board agenda packet 07-22-19

RiverValley.renewal_denial_appeal.2019-07-01.pdf Werner appeal letter 07-01-19

RiverValley.renewal_denial.ltr.2019-06-27.pdf City Manager denial letter 06-27-19

RiverValley.renewal_denial.2019-06-27.pdf Renewal Application 06-18-19

RiverValley.revocation.2019-05-10.pdf Revocation Notice 04-30-19

http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22333&ItemID=7030
http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22335&ItemID=7030
http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22337&ItemID=7030
http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22334&ItemID=7030
http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22336&ItemID=7030
http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22332&ItemID=7030
http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22395&ItemID=7030








 
 

 
Liquor License Review Board 

 
Monday, July 22, 2019 

City Hall - Council Chambers 
401 Independence Street 

Cape Girardeau, MO  63701 
2:00 p.m. 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

 
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Introduction and Opening Comments 

 
3. Approval of Minutes of April 5, 2019, meeting. 

 
4. Appeal Review:  Denial of Liquor License Renewal Application for Ricky Lynn Werner, 

d/b/a River Valley Banquet Center, LLC, located at 631 South Sprigg Street, Cape 
Girardeau, Missouri 

a. Applicant Comment 
b. City Staff Comment 
c. Board review, discussion, and possible action   

 
5. Adjourn 

 
 
 
The Liquor License Review Board of the City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri, may vote to hold a closed session to 
discuss issues listed in RSMo. Section 610.021, including but not limited to: legal actions, causes of legal action or 
litigation, or confidential or privileged communications with its attorneys.  
 
 





















RONALD GARMS                 Attorney at Law 
P. O. Box 795 • Cape Girardeau, MO  63702 • 314.315.3131 • r.garms@garmslaw.com 
 

July 1, 2019 

Liquor Review Board 
City of Cape Girardeau 
Attention:  Gayle Conrad 
P.O. Box 617 
401 Independence Street 
Cape Girardeau, MO  63701 
 
 RE: Liquor License Denial Appeal 
  River Valley Banquet Center 
  631 South Sprigg 
 
Dear Ms. Conrad: 
 
 Mr. Werner and I have received notice by email of the denial of his liquor license 
application for the River Valley Banquet Center, and I am writing to give notice of our intent to 
appeal that action to the Liquor Review Board and above, first including the City Council, if 
necessary. 
 
 In the letter from the City Manager, reference is made to certain findings of the Cape 
Girardeau Police Department attached thereto.  However, we did not receive such findings via 
email.  Could you please look into this matter and forward that part of the City Manager’s letter to 
at least me. 
 
 Although I am not totally rehabilitated from recent heart surgery, I believe I can handle 
this type of hearing at this time unless something unexpected changes.  Could you please set this 
appeal hearing for the first date available for all of the Board members.  If it needs to start at 5:00 
p.m. or some other time outside of regular business hours, that will be fine.  I do not anticipate any 
unresolvable conflicts which I might have during the month of July.  I will need, however, to 
secure the attendance of a certified court reporter to preserve the record for any additional 
appeals/actions which I cannot do until I receive a date or dates from the Board.  Reporters are 
becoming more scarce so it might be best if you could furnish me more than one possible setting 
and let me make a choice based on reporter availability.  I should be able to get back with you 
within a day or so thereafter as all the reporters I use reply timely. 
 
 Thank you for your assistance with this matter, and I look forward to receiving some setting 
dates so we can all advance this matter to its proper resolution as quickly as possible. 
 
       Sincerely, 
        
       s/ Ronald Garms 

mailto:r.garms@garmslaw.com


 

Liquor License Review Board 1 April 18, 2019 
 

 
Liquor License Review Board 

 
April 18, 2019 

City Council Chambers 
401 Independence 

Cape Girardeau, MO  63701 
 
Board Present: Lori Meyer, Human Resources Manager, Chief Review Officer 
  Alex McElroy, Development Services Director 
  Brandon Cooper  
   
City Staff Present: Gayle Conrad, Director of Citizen Services/City Clerk 
   Greg Young, Assistant City Attorney 

Cpl. Richard Couch, Police Department 
 
Others Present: Travis Statler, Attorney for Cape Broadway, LLC d/b/a Hangout 
 Erin Bradley, Assistant to Travis Statler 
 Alam Zahed 
 Shah Reeza  
 

 
Call to Order  
 
Chief Review Officer Lori Meyer called the meeting to order at 5:05 p.m., introduced the Board 
members, and explained the rules of procedure for addressing the Board.  
 
A Motion was made by Cooper, Seconded by Meyer, to approve the June 18, 2018, Liquor 
License Review Board regular and closed session meeting minutes. 
Motion passed. 3-0. Ayes:  Cooper, McElroy and Meyer.   
 
Items for Review 
 
Review of appeal of suspension of Retail Liquor by the Drink and Sunday Sales Liquor License 
for Cape Broadway, LLC, d/b/a Hangout, located at 727 Broadway, Cape Girardeau, Missouri 
 
Chief Review Officer Lori Meyer called for Applicant Comment.   

 
Travis Statler, 1844 Cape LaCroix Road, appeared representing Shah Reeza and Alam Zahed.  
He gave a brief synopsis of Mr. Reeza and Mr. Zahed’s history WITH liquor establishments in 
the city.  Mr. Statler reviewed the details in the police reports for incidents that occurred at 
Hangout, dated 10/25/18, 11/02/18, 03/21/19 and 03/30/19.  On two incidents the owners 
claim that Hangout did nothing wrong.  On another incident the owners claim that one 
person interviewed lied by stating that she was not asked for ID when entering the 
premises.  Mr. Statler stated that one or both of the owners are present at Hangout at all 



 

Liquor License Review Board 2 April 18, 2019 
 

times during operating hours.  The business uses ID recognition technology, and the staff 
are trained as required by City ordinance.   
 
Shah Reeza of 1749 Delaware Place discussed the ID recognition scanner used by Hangout 
to thwart fake IDs and underage admission to the bar.  He presented the scanner for the 
Board to see, and he claimed that it is used by 60 percent of all bars in the US.  
 
Alam Zahed of 1363 East View Ridge Drive discussed the training and education of the staff 
at Hangout for fake ID recognition, including the training classes required by the Cape 
Girardeau Police Department.   
 
Mr. Statler requested the Board to overturn the 10 day suspension issued by the City 
Manager.  The closure will cause the owners a substantial loss of business and a potential 
loss of employees. He was of the opinion that a 10 day suspension is a drastic measure 
when no warnings were ever issued to the owners.  
 
Ms. Meyer questioned how long the ID recognition device had been in use at Hangout and 
whether it was used during the referenced incidents.  Mr. Reeza stated that the device has 
been in use over a year, that it holds the ID information, and that it was shown to the 
officers during the incidents. 

 
Mr. Cooper reviewed the information presented, and he requested additional information 
regarding the referenced incidents and the operations at Hangout.  In response, Mr. Reeza 
stated that he employs one bartender and two doormen, all over the age of 30.  When fake 
IDs are presented for admittance to the bar, the IDs are given back to the patron. He was 
not aware whether these were to be kept or turned over to the Police, but he would be 
willing to do that. 
 

Chief Review Officer Lori Meyer called for Staff Comment.   
 

Cpl. Rich Couch stated that his supervisor is Lt. Brad Smith, and he routinely works with Lt. 
Smith on alcohol compliance checks in the City.  The Hangout was put on the Police 
Department’s list of locations to monitor because, in speaking with college students, 
Hangout is known for allowing underage individuals into the bar.  Cpl. Couch reviewed 
details of the four referenced incidents provided to the Board, as well as an incident that 
occurred in February of 2018 involving underage patrons in the bar.  He stated that at no 
time did any employee of Hangout state that the business was using scanner technology for 
ID recognition.  The City Police Department does offer server training in conjunction with 
the State of Missouri Liquor Control Office, but he is not certain if any employees of 
Hangout attended the training.  It is required by City ordinance that any disturbance at a 
liquor establishment be reported by the owner to the Police Department.   
  
Mr. Cooper questioned the specifics of the incidents, and Cpl. Couch answered.  Cpl. Couch 
presented to Mr. Cooper the report from February of 2018, which was not included in the 
agenda packet.  Mr. Statler objected to the submission of this report since he had not 



 

Liquor License Review Board 3 April 18, 2019 
 

received a copy.  Mr. Young stated that the Board could consider this incident report in its 
deliberation. 
 

The Board reviewed and discussed the information provided and the comments presented.  
Following discussion, Cooper made a motion, seconded by McElroy, to reduce the suspension 
of the Liquor License for Cape Broadway, LLC, d/b/a Hangout, located at 727 Broadway, from 
ten days to five days.  Following discussion, the motion passed 3-0. Ayes: Cooper, McElroy and 
Meyer.   
 
Mr. Statler requested the Board consider suspending the execution of the suspension for a 
period of time, or not to impose the suspension on a weekend, or to split the days so they are 
not consecutive.  Mr. Young stated that the City Manager has the authority to set the dates of 
the suspension.  The Board’s only authority is to affirm, change or overturn the action of the 
City Manager.   

 
Meeting Adjournment 
 
There being no further business, the meeting ended at 5:53 p.m. 
A Motion was made by Lori Meyer, Seconded by Brandon Cooper, to adjourn. 
Motion passed. 3-0. Ayes: Cooper, McElroy and Meyer.   
 
Minutes taken by:  
Gayle Conrad 
Director of Citizen Services/City Clerk 
 







































































RONALD GARMS                 Attorney at Law 
P. O. Box 795 • Cape Girardeau, MO  63702 • 314.315.3131 • r.garms@garmslaw.com 
 

July 1, 2019 

Liquor Review Board 
City of Cape Girardeau 
Attention:  Gayle Conrad 
P.O. Box 617 
401 Independence Street 
Cape Girardeau, MO  63701 
 
 RE: Liquor License Denial Appeal 
  River Valley Banquet Center 
  631 South Sprigg 
 
Dear Ms. Conrad: 
 
 Mr. Werner and I have received notice by email of the denial of his liquor license 
application for the River Valley Banquet Center, and I am writing to give notice of our intent to 
appeal that action to the Liquor Review Board and above, first including the City Council, if 
necessary. 
 
 In the letter from the City Manager, reference is made to certain findings of the Cape 
Girardeau Police Department attached thereto.  However, we did not receive such findings via 
email.  Could you please look into this matter and forward that part of the City Manager’s letter to 
at least me. 
 
 Although I am not totally rehabilitated from recent heart surgery, I believe I can handle 
this type of hearing at this time unless something unexpected changes.  Could you please set this 
appeal hearing for the first date available for all of the Board members.  If it needs to start at 5:00 
p.m. or some other time outside of regular business hours, that will be fine.  I do not anticipate any 
unresolvable conflicts which I might have during the month of July.  I will need, however, to 
secure the attendance of a certified court reporter to preserve the record for any additional 
appeals/actions which I cannot do until I receive a date or dates from the Board.  Reporters are 
becoming more scarce so it might be best if you could furnish me more than one possible setting 
and let me make a choice based on reporter availability.  I should be able to get back with you 
within a day or so thereafter as all the reporters I use reply timely. 
 
 Thank you for your assistance with this matter, and I look forward to receiving some setting 
dates so we can all advance this matter to its proper resolution as quickly as possible. 
 
       Sincerely, 
        
       s/ Ronald Garms 

mailto:r.garms@garmslaw.com




















 



Staff: 
Agenda:

Bruce Taylor, Deputy City Clerk
8/19/2019

AGENDA REPORT 
Cape Girardeau City Council 19-195

SUBJECT

Appointment of a Council Member to represent Ward 3 until seat is filled by election.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Victor Gunn resigned from City Council effective July 15, 2019, because he moved outside Ward 3.  He was
serving a term  as Council member Ward 3, set to expire April 2020.  Section 3.07(c) of the City Charter states
that the City Council must name a temporary replacement to fill the Ward 5 Council seat within sixty (60) days
of the occurrence of the vacancy.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION

Section 3.07(c) of the City Charters also states that a vacancy in the council shall be filled by the council for a
period running until a special election can be held to fill the vacancy for the balance of the unexpired term, or
until the normal expiration date for that term, whichever occurs first. Any council member appointed must have
been a resident of that member's ward for a period of time not less than ninety (90) days immediately prior to the
occurrence of the vacancy. On July 1, 2019, at its regularly scheduled meeting, the City Council discussed a
process by which interested citizens of Ward 3 could show interest in being appointed. It was decided that
interested persons should submit an application to the City Clerk's Office no later that 5:00 p.m., Wednesday,
July 31, 2019. Applications were received from ten individuals. Later, one withdrew her application. At the
August 5, 2019, study session the nine remaining applicants appeared at study session to introduce themselves
and for City Council to ask them questions. In the regular session on the August 5, 2019, City Council Meeting,
Council  approved a motion  to name Tom Roy, Christina Mershon, and Nathaniel Thomas as finalists to be
considered for appointment at the August 19, 2019 Council Meeting.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the City Council fill Ward 3 City Council Member vacancy by September 13, 2019.

ATTACHMENTS:
Name: Description:

No Attachments Available



Staff: 
Agenda: 8/19/2019

MEMORANDUM 
Cape Girardeau City Council 19-018

SUBJECT

Appointment to the Convention & Visitors Bureau Executive Board

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Agreement with the Cape Girardeau Area Chamber of Commerce for operation of the Convention and
Visitors Bureau includes the creation of the Convention and Visitors Bureau Executive Board. The City Council
appointed term held by the Joel Neikirk, is vacant. Due to no longer being a resident of Cape Girardeau, Mr.
Neikirk resigned from his position on the  Convention and Visitors Bureau Board August 15, 2019.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION

City Council authorized the execution of an Agreement between the Cape Girardeau Area Chamber of
Commerce, Inc., and the City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri, for operation of the Convention and Visitors Bureau.
The Agreement established a six-member Convention and Visitors Bureau Executive Board.  Three members are
appointed by the Chamber Board, one of which is the Chamber President.  Three members are appointed by the
City Council, one of which is the City Manager.  

The Executive Board shall hold open meetings at least quarterly in each calendar year. The Director of the CVB
will serve as liaison to the Board and will prepare, post and distribute the agenda for all meetings as required by
the Missouri Open Meetings and Records Law. The posting shall include the date, time and location of the
meeting, as well as a tentative agenda. Minutes of all meetings shall be prepared and submitted to the City Clerk.

The Board shall have the following duties:

1. Provide oversight on the operations of the CVB, including methods of promoting tourism, conventions,
meetings and other activities and events.

2. Provide input for development of a long-term strategic plan for operations of the CVB, to be prepared by
the CVB Director.

3. Provide input for the Annual Marketing and Business Plan, including short and long term goals, plans,
policies, and proposed projects for the CVB, to be prepared by the CVB Director.

4. Provide input for the annual operating budget of the CVB and ensure that the annual operating budget
clearly reflects the full cost of CVB operations.

5. Submit oversight and input recommendations to the Chamber Board of Directors for final approval.

GENERAL DIRECTION

Unless directed otherwise, one appointment to the Convention and Visitors Bureau Executive Board for a term
expiring December 31, 2019 will appear on a future agenda for consideration.
ATTACHMENTS:
Name: Description:

Convention_and_Visitors_Bureau_Executive_Board_roster_.pdf CVB Executive Board Roster

http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22398&ItemID=7066




Staff: 
Agenda:

Bruce Taylor, Deputy City Clerk
8/19/2019

MEMORANDUM 
Cape Girardeau City Council 19-019

SUBJECT

Appointment of one member to the Golf Course Advisory Board for a term expiring January 18, 2020.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

One position on the Golf Course Advisory Board is set to expire January 18, 2020. This position was held by
Callie Welker, who resigned August 13, 2019, due to other obligations that conflict with board meeting
schedule.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION

According to Section 18-53(a) of the City Code, “A person appointed to the municipal golf course board shall be a
taxpayer and qualified voter of the City. One (1) member of the municipal golf course advisory board shall be a
member of Cape Jaycees and designated by that organization as its representative on the golf course advisory
board.” Mr. Joshua Schulz serves as the Jaycee representative. A copy of the board roster and attendance roster
are attached for your reference.
 
The following individuals have expressed an interest in serving on the board, and their advisory board
applications are attached.  

 Applicant   Ward    Citizen Academy Graduate
 Richard Fehr   4   N
 Mark Buerck   6   N
 Jeff Green   3   N
 Claire Kneer   4   N
 Mark Matthews   6   N

GENERAL DIRECTION

Unless directed otherwise, an appointment to the Golf Course Advisory Board will be placed on a future agenda
for consideration.

ATTACHMENTS:
Name: Description:

Golf_Board_roster.doc Golf Board Roster

roster_attendance_golf.pdf Golf Board Attendance Roster

Allerding.Brian.08-02-18.pdf Allerding, Brian

Gannon.Cindy.07-03-18.pdf Gannon, Cindy

Green.Jeff.03-13-18.pdf Green, Jeff

Kneer_Claire.11-05-18.pdf Kneer, Claire

http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22410&ItemID=7068
http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22411&ItemID=7068
http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22412&ItemID=7068
http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22413&ItemID=7068
http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22414&ItemID=7068
http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22417&ItemID=7068


Matthews.Mark.10-09-18.pdf Matthews, Mark

http://novusagendaintranet.cityofcapegirardeau.org/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=22418&ItemID=7068

	2019.08.19 Cover Agenda
	CA1
	CA1a
	CA1b
	CA2-7
	NO12
	NO12a
	NO12b
	NO13
	NO13a
	NO13b
	NO13c
	NO13d
	NO13e
	Sheets and Views
	LaFont-Plat


	NO14
	NO14a
	NO14b
	NO14c
	NO14d
	NO14e
	Sheets and Views
	Sabellas Subdivision-Plat


	NO15
	NO15a
	NO16
	NO16a
	NO16b
	NO17
	NO17a
	NO17b

	CA8
	CA8a
	CA8b
	CA9
	CA9a
	CA9b
	CA10
	CA10a
	CA10c
	CA11
	CA11a
	CA11b
	CONTRACT AGREEMENT
	AIRPORT MULTI-TASKING SNOW REMOVAL EQUIPMENT
	CITY OF CAPE GIRARDEAU
	State Block Grant Project No. 13-077A-2
	Article 1 – Work
	Article 2 – Contract Documents
	Article 3 – Contract Price
	Article 4 – Payment
	Article 5 – Contract Time
	Article 6 – Liquidated Damages
	Article 7 – MANUFACTURER’S Representations
	Article 8 – MANUFACTURER’S Certifications
	Article 9 – Miscellaneous
	Article 10 – OWNER’S Representative



	CA11c
	CA11d
	CA12
	CA12a
	CA12b
	CA12c
	CA13
	CA13a
	CA13c
	CA13d
	NO14
	NO14a
	NO14b
	NO15
	NO15a
	NO15b
	NO16
	NO16a
	NO17
	NO17a
	NO17b
	NO17c
	NO18
	NO18a
	NO18b
	NO18c
	OB19
	OB19a
	OB19b
	OB19c
	agenda.2019-07-22.packet
	RiverValley.renewal denial.2019-06-27
	agenda.2019-05-31.PACKET.pdf
	min.liquor-review.2019-04-18


	OB19d
	OB19e
	OB19f
	OB19g
	OB20
	MemoCVB
	MemoGolf



